>

|
» CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Va,

Notice of meeting of

Decision Session - Executive Member for City Strategy

To: Councillor Steve Galloway (Executive Member)
Date: Tuesday, 2 February 2010
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: The Guildhall, York
AGENDA

Notice to Members — Calling In

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by:

10.00 am on Monday 1 February 2010 if an item is called in before a
decision is taken, or

4.00pm on Thursday 4 February 2010 if an item is called in after a
decision has been taken.

Iltems called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management
Committee.

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 29 January
2010.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this
agenda.

YORKPR'DE www.york.gov.uk



2.

Public Participation - Decision Session

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The
deadline for registering is 5:00pm on Monday 1 February
2010

Members of the public may register to speak on:-

) an item on the agenda;

) an issue within the Executive Member’s remit;

e an item that has been published on the Information Log
No reports have been published on the Information Log
since the last session.

Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Church Lane

to Carr Lane, Wheldrake (Pages 3 - 28)

This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining
whether or not to make a Definitive Map Modification Order
(DMMO) to add this route to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath.

Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Ings Bridge

to Storwood, Wheldrake (Pages 29 - 66)

This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining
whether or not to make a Definitive Map Modification Order
(DMMO) to add this route to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath.

Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Main Street
to North Lane (Love Lane), Wheldrake (Pages 67 - 88)

This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in
determining whether or not to make a Definitive Map
Modification Order (DMMO) to add this route to the Definitive
Map, as a Public Footpath.



10.

Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, from
Main Street to Sparrow Hall Farm, Wheldrake (Pages

89 - 118)

This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in
determining whether or not to make a Definitive Map
Modification Order (DMMO) to add this route to the Definitive
Map, as a Public Footpath.

Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath,
Thorganby Lane to Lawn Closes (Public Footpath
No.7), Wheldrake (Pages 119 - 144)

This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in
determining whether or not to make a Definitive Map
Modification Order (DMMO) to add this route to the Definitive
Map, as a Public Footpath.

A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements - Consultation
Results and Detailed Design (Pages 145 - 178)

This report provides the Executive Member with the results of the
consultation undertaken on proposed improvements to the
A19/A1237 roundabout. The report concludes that, subject to
approval, the amended scheme can be constructed within a
revised budget allocation in the summer/autumn of this year.

Orbital Cycle Route Scheme - Proposals for the
Remaining Three Sections (Pages 179 - 206)

This report advises the Executive Member about initial proposals
for the three sections of this route together with the best option to
take forward each section.

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent
under the Local Government Act 1972



Democracy Officer:

Name: Jill Pickering
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 552061

e E-mail —jill.pickering@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements

Copies of reports
Contact details are set out above




Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00
pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing
online on the Council’s website. Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the
full agenda are available from Democratic Services. Contact the Democracy
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the
agenda requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you. The meeting
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing
loop. We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours
for Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign
language interpreter then please let us know. Contact the Democracy Officer
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the
meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in another
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing
sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this
service.

T AT TS (AT ST 2T =L G (FI ST T WARAT 56 T AT (b8 T ZA, §F T W
0 T TN 0T (R T S S (RIS AR T4 T | BRI a (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin teriimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terciiman bulmalk icin mimkin olan hersey vapiacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

RS DERMIERAFEE TN RES A » 4 R ERIEMA BN TS ZHEE
=EIOERAS. |ES (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550uéJf-iufﬁ’“f@gd/é_fuu,ﬁ}E’aL}“ﬁﬁ'q_J@ $re e st Sl

Informacja mozie byé dostepna w ttumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550



Page 2

Holding the Executive to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny
Management Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the
Council is to:
¢ Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as
necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?
e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to
which they are appointed by the Council;
e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for
the committees which they report to;
e Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 3

COUNCIL

v,

Decision Session 2 February 2010
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath Church Lane to Carr
Lane, Wheldrake

Summary

1. This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining whether or not
to make a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) to add the route (shown
by a broken black line on Plan 1 (Annex 1)) to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath. In determining this issue it is important to consider the available
evidence against the requirements of the legislation (see Annex 7: Legislative
Tests).

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that the Executive Member approves Option A and
authorises the making of a DMMO to add the route as a Public Footpath to the
Definitive Map.

Reason

3. All the available relevant evidence suggests that this has probably never been
a heavily used path, but that it is nonetheless a public right of way, which has
been subject to use from the mid Nineteenth Century until the latter part of the
Twentieth Century. As there is evidence in support of the existence of a public
right of way over the application route the authority is required to make the
order under the provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section
53(3)(c)(i)-

Background

4. In September 1993 Wheldrake Parish Council submitted, to North Yorkshire
County Council, an application for a DMMO, to add the footpath shown by a
broken black line (the application route) on Plan 1 (Annex 1). Then, in 1996, as
a result of Local Government Reorganisation the application, which had still to
be determined and remained outstanding, was passed to City of York Council
as the newly appointed Surveying Authority for the area.



10.

Page 4

In 2002 the Council commenced preliminary investigations into this application
and a number of other similar applications, made by Wheldrake Parish Council.
Whilst these investigations were substantially completed at that time, the
applications were never formally determined. Therefore, more recently, and in
order to bring these matters to a close, the previously considered evidence was
checked and ratified so as to allow the matter to be brought to a conclusion.

A section of the alleged path has now been subject to development and is
obstructed by housing. In the event of it being determined that a public right of
way does exist, this issue will have to be addressed, probably by way of a
public path order to divert the path onto an alignment which preserved through
the development process. The fact that the alleged path may now be obstructed
is not a lawful consideration in the determination of the application. It is a matter
to be dealt with at a later date if it is shown that public rights exist.

Summary of Evidence

Historical Documents

As part of the investigations a range of documents have been consulted, and
these are listed in Annex 2 of this report. Where the documents are considered
to have some evidential value in this case, they are further summarised within
the report, with more detailed comments included in Annex 3. Copies of the
documents discussed in Annex 2 are included in the bundle of evidence
attached to this report and referenced accordingly.

Ordnance Survey Maps
Ordnance Survey maps for the area consistently show the application route
annotated as a footpath.

1910 Finance Act Records

The Ordnance Survey base map, used to prepare the 1910 Finance Act
documentation shows the physical existence of the application, and that it runs
along the northern boundary of (and within) Hereditament No. 84. The
accompanying Field Book entry for Hereditament No 84 (Wheldrake Hall)
includes, in the notes for Charges, Easements and Restrictions etc, the
following “Footpath across north side of farm. Not much used”. A deduction of
£20 was sought in respect of public rights of way.

Original Definitive Map Process

The application route appears to have been claimed, in the 1950’s, by the
Parish Council, under Part IV of the National Parks and Access to the
Countryside Act 1949. The route was however subject to objections at the
provisional stage of production. Due to the number of outstanding objections in
the East Riding area the County Council, at that time were directed to proceed
to the Definitive Mapping stage by omitting paths subject to objections, with a
view to them being considered at a later stage.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 5

User Evidence

The application was supported by two user evidence forms claiming use during
the period 1917 — 1957. These forms are summarised in Annex 4 of this report,
and the periods of claimed use summarised on the User Graph in Annex 5.

Representations made by and on behalf of the Landowner

The landowners claim that the path was extinguished in the 1960’s and that
there is no evidence of the establishment of public rights since that time. The
submissions made on their behalf are summarised and commented upon in
Annex 6 of this report.

Comments on Evidence

Historical Evidence

The combination of Ordnance Survey maps and 1910 Finance Act documents
provide good evidence of the existence of a public right of way in the late
Nineteenth and early Twentieth Centuries.

User Evidence

There is only a limited amount of user evidence, albeit spanning a considerable
number of years. This is perhaps understandable as the path was described in
1910 as being “not much used”. There is certainly insufficient user evidence to
pursue a case based upon modern user either under common law or the
provisions of Section 31 of the Highways Act. The user evidence should
however still be taken into account along with the historic documentary
evidence.

Representations made by and on behalf of the Landowner

The submissions made on behalf of the landowners add little to the case either
way. They appear to rely upon the false premise that the path has been
extinguished, arising out of a lack of understanding of the processes
undertaken, and their effect, at that time.

Assessment of Evidence

Historical Evidence

The Ordnance Survey maps show that the path physically existed from the mid
Nineteenth Century, and whilst such maps carry a disclaimer regarding public
rights of way, they still provide some evidence of the repute of the way as a
footpath.

The 1910 Finance Act records clearly identify a path along the northern
boundary of the farm, and this is consistent with the application route. These
documents suggest that the landowner accepted the existence of the footpath
at that time.

User Evidence

As there are only two user witnesses, their evidence is insufficient to be
considered to satisfy the “public user” tests under either common law or Section
31 of the 1980 Act. There is therefore no benefit in testing this evidence against



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Page 6

the other legislative criteria. This evidence should however be considered in the
context of it being supportive of the reputation of the route being a public right of
way. The earliest user, dating back to the 1920’s is consistent with the Finance
Act records of 1910, suggesting that both landowners and the public shared the
view that the route was public at that time.

Representations made by and on behalf of the Landowner

The representations made on behalf of the landowner appear to be based upon
the false premise that the path was extinguished in the late 1960’s. This was
not the case, and indeed, the processes being undertaken at that time
(production of the Definitive Map) were not capable of extinguishing public
rights. This would have required a completely separate legal process, for which
no evidence has been discovered.

If, as appears to be accepted by the landowners (i.e. for rights to have been
extinguished, as they claim, they would first have had to exist), public rights
existed prior to the 1960’s, in the absence of evidence of lawful closure, those
rights will continue to exist today.

Consultation

Consultations have been carried out in accordance with the Parliamentary
Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice on consultation, which
includes consultation with user groups etc. The Parish Council and landowners
have also been consulted.

The landowners have consistently maintained an objection to the existence of
this path. Any evidence submitted in support of these objections has been
included in this report: see above.

Ward Councillors
ClIr C Vassie — No comments received.

Political Parties
Clir S Galloway (Lib Dem) — No comments received.

Clir R Potter (Labour) — ‘Happy to support the modifications’, comments
received 30 December 2009.

Clir | Gillies (Conservative) — No comments received.

Clir A D’Argone (Green Party) — No comments received.

Options

Option A: If, having considered all of the available evidence the Executive

Member decides that public rights are reasonably alleged to exist, the Executive
member should resolve that:



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Page 7

(a) The Director of City Strategy be authorised to instruct the Head of
Legal Services to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a
public footpath, along the route A — B on Plan 1 attached to this report,
to the Definitive Map;

(b) If no objections are received, or any objections that are received, are
subsequently withdrawn, the Head of Legal Services be authorised to
confirm the Order made in accordance with (a) above; or

(c) If any objections are received, and not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be passed to the Secretary of State for confirmation.

Option B: If, having considered all of the available evidence, the Executive
Member decides that the alleged public rights do not exist, he should resolve
that:

(a) The application to modify the Definitive Map be refused.

(b) The applicant be advised of their right to appeal.
Corporate Priorities

If it is determined that the available relevant evidence shows that a right of way
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist and is added to the map the
benefits of doing so would link into the Council’s Corporate priorities. A public
right of way is sustainable, car free and provides access to health and
recreation opportunities thus contributing to the priorities of making York a
Sustainable and a Healthy City.

Implications

Financial

If it is determined to progress a DMMO it will have to be advertised in the local
press. The cost of advertising the order would be in the region of £1500. If an
order is made, and no objections are received the order will be confirmed and
re-advertised, again at a cost of £1500.

If objections to the order are received, and not withdrawn, the outcome of the
order will be decided by the Secretary of State, possibly by means of a Public
Inquiry. The cost of a Public Inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the order is confirmed by either the Council or the Secretary of State the
authority has to accept that the route is maintainable at the public expense.
Acceptance is not as such a new obligation but is part of the Council’s statutory
duty to keep that map up to date and formally record the rights of the public
where those rights exist but are not yet shown and recorded in the definitive
map and statement.

Human Resources
There are no human resource implications.



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Page 8

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.

Legal

City of York Council is the surveying authority for the purposes of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, and has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive
Map and Statement for its area is kept up to date.

If, and when, the Authority discovers evidence to suggest that the Definitive
Map and Statement needs updating, it is under a statutory duty to make the
necessary changes. A DMMO enables any changes to the map and statement
to be made.

Before the Council can make a DMMO to add a route to the definitive map, as
is the subject of this report, it must be satisfied that, taking into account the
available evidence, a right of way can reasonably be alleged to exist. If it can,
the authority must make the order. If objections are received during the
process and not withdrawn the order must be forwarded to the Secretary of
State. The Secretary of State will appoint an Inspector who will test the
evidence and determine the outcome of this application.

DMMO'’s do not create any new public rights of way they seek to record those
already in existence but not formerly recorded in the definitive map and
statement. Issues for example such as safety, security and desirability whilst
being genuine concerns cannot be taken into consideration. The DMMO
process requires an authority to look at all the available evidence, both
documentary and user, before making a decision.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications.

Information Technology
There are no IT implications.

Property
There are no property implications.

Other

If the DMMO process concludes that public rights do exist the public footpath
becomes maintainable at the public expense and should be recorded as such
on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public Expense. The Council, as the
highway authority for public rights of way, has a duty to maintain the public
footpath to a standard that allows use by lawful traffic, in this case the right of
way is on foot only.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’'s Risk Management Strategy, Options A is
subject to internal budgetary pressures (financial). There are no risks
associated with Option B.



Page 9

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Joanne Coote Damon Copperthwaite, Assistant Director
(Definitive Map Officer) City Development and Transport
Network Management
(City Development & Transport) Re vz

_ port Date 22.01.2010
Tel No: 01904 551442 Approved
Wards Affected: Al [ ]

Wheldrake

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers:

Evidence evaluated and background report prepared by Consultant: Robin Carr
Associates, Public Rights of Way Management and Consultancy Services.

Highways Act 1980.

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Rights of Way: A Guide to Law and Practice, Fourth Edition, by John Riddall and
John Trevelyan.

England and Wales Court of Appeal (Civil Division) Decisions: R v Secretary of State
for Wales ex parte Emery (1997)

Annexes:

Annex 1: Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Church Lane to Carr Lane, Wheldrake.
Annex 2: List of documents consulted.

Annex 3: Summary of Documentary Evidence.

Annex 4: Summary of User Evidence.

Annex 5: Graph showing Periods of Claimed User.

Annex 6: Summary of Objector’s Evidence/Comment.

Annex 7: Legal Tests



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11

Annex 1

Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Church Lane to Carr Lané,
Wheldrake :




Page 12

mmmmmmmm o B Jo%‘wlﬁh_ TI2NNOD
IMVHATIHM ‘WYY TIVH V—uomﬁo_u>f -1




Page 13

Annex 2

List of documents consulted




Page 14

Wio oo . 1981
Application for Definitive Map Modification Order
Church Lane to Carr Lane, Wheldrake

Aunex 2.

Documents Consulted

Enclosure Award, Map and Act
Tithe Plan and Apportionment

1910 Finance Act records
Ordnance Survey Maps

Rights of Way Act 1932 Depositions
NPACA 1949 Maps and Documents
Local Authority Files

Quarter Sessions records

Parish Council Records

Other Highway Authority records
Local Historical Maps

Deposited Plans

Estate Records

Deeds

Aerial Photographs

Robin Carr Associates
Public Rights of Way Management & Consultancy Services



Page 15

Annex 3

Summary of Documentary Evidence




$801M9S Aoueynsuo) g juawabeuepy Aepn 30 siubiy ongnd
S9Je0SSy LB uiqoy

‘Buipueisino sulews.
i3S Bunyeads Ajesiuyos) pue ‘uoisniouod Aue o} Jybnolq Ajjenjoe
J9A3U sem io)jew ayj IsIxa jou op sybu dygnd jey) aduspine
1ON st “a1siuy ay) AQ pansst uoioalp 8y} JO )nsas e se
‘depy aAluYS(Q SY WOy SIN0J BY) PARIIO {IDUNOY BY; Jey) Joey 8y |

“JaJeW SIY) UO MBIA S 1ouno) ystied
ay} yum paasbesip ays/ay jey) sajedipui Aluesp abers |euoisinoig
Je ajnos syl Jo Buipiodas sy} 0} uonoslqo sJsumopue] eyl

‘siybu o1qnd jo aouaysixe ayj jo poddns ul souapiaa poob si siyt
‘gjdoad |eao} Aq aw jey) je Aem jo Jybu oyqnd e aq 0} pasapISuod
SEM 3)N0J ay) Jey) aouapinad poob sapinoid s,0661843 Ul 1OUN0D
ysued ay) Ag pswie|d sem ajnos uopedldde ayy Jeyy joej syl

‘abe)s Joje} e Je paiapisuod Buiaq way) 0} MalA B ypm 'suoijoafqo
0) pafgns syjed Buppwo Aq ebejs Suiddepyy aanuyeg ayy
0} paao0Jd 0} pajoalp alam awi) By} Je ‘Isunod Ajuno) ayj eale
Buipry ise3 ayy ui suoioafqo Buipuelsino jo iaquinu 8y} 0} anQ

‘uononpoud
jo ofiejs jeuoisinold a3y} je suoyoafqo o} joalgns uayl sem

"6¥61 10V 9pisAnuno) ay) 0} ssa00Y pue
Syied |BUOHiEN 8y} JO Al WBd Japun ‘1ouno) ysuied auyi Aq ‘s,0661
dy} ul ‘pawied ussq aaey o) sieadde asjnos uoneoydde syt

$s800.1d de aAnjiuyaqg

0] bBunes spioday

Page 16

‘@oud)sixa
S}l JO SJEME JOU 8JB SISUMOPUE| JUBuND oy} Aym uieldxd
Janamoy Aew } ‘swi} J9A0 paseasosp uaas sdeylad 10 ‘asealoul
Jou pip 8sn § pue ‘0i6L Ul Pasn yonuw jou, sem yled ay}

'8N JO YoB) & Jo Ynsau e se asde| Ajdwis jouued sybu oqnd
'ss800.d jeba) anp ybnoiy} paysinbuixa ssajun ‘Aepoy 1sixs IS
Inm A8yy 0164 Ul pajsixe sjybu j| 'snies s)i wioly Joeil8p Jou Sa0p
0161 ul ,pasn yonw jou, Butaq se pajou si yjed ay) jey) Joej 8y

‘0161 Ul Aem Jo syubiu o1ignd Jo aous)sIXa
ayl jo poddns up aouapine poob s siyp -anos uopeosydde
JUBLND BY) S| JoIj8) XE) 10} WIEjD JO 10Bigns 8y} Si Jey) 8ol sy}
jey) 1sebbns pinom siyy ‘Buipjoy pue| ay} jo Aiepunog uiayuou
a8y} Buoje suns ajnos uoneondde ayy jeyy moys ‘pasodsuei)
S uoljewLIou) J0y eoueuld 3yl yoym uodn ‘sdew aseq SO 8yl

*, PSN YINWI JOU ‘ULe} By} JO PUd UIBYHOU
ay) ssoioe, Buiaq wiep ayy 0} aiqns yied ayl o3 19)81 sajou
ay) pue Jasn Jo Aem jo sjybu oygnd jo padsal ut Og3 Jo uonoNpal
B 10} WIBD B Sapnpul yg ON Juswejipalay Joj Joog pajid ayL

+8 ON Jusweypasey Ul papnjoul st 3noJ 8y

SPJI0O8L oY AoUEUIS 0161

8l-G1
‘T

‘moys Aay) sainjes;
|eaydeibodo} ay) jo aoualsixa [eoisAud ay) Jo aouapine poob Aiaa
apincid 310018y} sjuawnoop assyj ‘sdew J1ay) uo pamoys Aay)
sbuiy) Jo snjeis ay) o} preBar ypm sauinbus 3jqeuoseas ayew
0} painbai Janamoy asam si1ohenns ayy sybu Aemyby oyqnd jo
9OUD)SIXS 3Y) JO SOUSPIAS Jou S| Aem 10 ey yjed Aue jo Buimoys
ay) ey} 8ys ay) 0] Jawieosip e Aued sdew AaANg 3duBUPIO

"Yyled 1004 10 44 pejelouue
‘gjnoJ ay; jo aoualsixe jeasAyd ayy moys sdew AaaIng 20UBUpPIO

sdepy AeAng soueupiO

sjuswIWOo

U JuswWINd0Qg

uonduosaq

ebeyd

qey

S xvv«%

asuapiAg liejuawinsogq jo Arewwng

HNRIPIOYM ‘BueT 41 D 0} dueT YaInyD
13p10 UoNESKIPOW dBpN 3nUYaQ 40f uonedlddy
1861 10V 9pisAiunod g ojlIpIA




Annex 4

Summary of User Evidence

Page 17




Page 18

S80I AouB)insuoy) g Juswabeueyy Aepa jo sty oland

$9)e100SSY LB uIqoy

"a10y} 1doy SMOD 8y} Woyj Kjiw 193)102 0} sbu) auy 0} 36 pasn
sem }) ‘abe|jia ayl U1 yied pasn Ajuowwod jsow ayy Algeqoid
sem pue ainseg|d io} abejjia ajoym ay) Aq pasn sem yjed ay|
‘aue]
youny uo ejeb puey e pue ‘yied ayy Jo pus sue e ay} je
‘WB S ||BH 9YEIPISUM SO 18UI00 B} Je Jj1}S B SEM B13L | WIMS
0} 10 ysiy 0} sBuj ay} 03 06 03 Aepung Aiane ujed ay; pesn M r M (1] 0564 - 0Z61 M uingiied 4 el 2
y|Em [BUOIE103) B JO Yed SB syjuow
Jowsuns sy} Bunnp yluow e aomy 3noge yied ayy pasn IS S M ov 2661 — L161 M IS Aaeg 9 © l 4}
= | § | 5| % ? |82 | § |3§
] 2 3 o > |33 3 3%
- o - m. “ -
s -4 ® < ] m L
=S o N W =3 <] —— a
Se -~ “n a3 c 2 2 o
s P o o |8 & 3
= c c o P o
< G @ 3 < o
uoReULIOjU| J8YI0 - s ® o m aweN | eBeqd | gel

7 Xominly

22UapIAg Jasn Jo Aieunung

2y IpIBYM ‘BueT] LEeD 0} AUET YoINyD
19pIQ uonesyipo de aauyaQ 103 uonediiddy
1861 10V 2pIsAiunoD 2 SHIPIM




Page 19

Annex 5

Graph showing Periods of Claimed User




Page 20

SHny

0564 -0261 wnqued4d ¢ 4}
861 - 2161 Aqegoo zL
0961 0561 ov6l 0€61 0z61 0161 asn Jo polad sweN eobed qej

Jasn pawne|) Jo spouad

o)eIpjayM ‘BueT L. 03 aue yainy)d
48p1Q uonedyIpolN dely sAuyeQ 1o} uonedyddy
1861 10y apisAnunod 2 apIM




Page 21

Annex 6

Summary of Objector’s Evidence/Comment




Page 22

$901A198 Aoue)nsuoy B juswabeuepy Aepp Jo siybry onand

$3)B1008SY LB uqoy

'sjybu Bupsixa-eid Aue paysinbuiixa aAey jou pinom yied ay} jJo jearowsas
ay} usy} ‘eseo ayy si siy) J} "pesnoid o) ssasoosd depy sAIUYR(Q 3Yi MO|je 0)
Se 0s ‘ajep i9je} & je pajebisaaur oq 0} snjejs s) ‘depy [BuoisIACIg Sy} wiidy
yjed ay) Jo |eaowal ayy Aujigeqod e ul ‘sl S,0961 8y} ui juswysinbunxe
pafjes os ayt "Aepo} Isixa {13s |Im Aay} uay) ‘siaumopue) ay} Aq pajdaocoe
aq o) sieadde yoym ‘Ajjeosuoisiy isixa pip sjybu ji asopelayy pue ‘yYed
ay} Jo wawysinbulxe jnyme} 10 jBnjOE JO SOUSPIAG OU S| Y] "Bduejsu)
ISy 3y} Ul paIsIxa 8AeYy jsnw ¥ ‘paysinBunxe uaaq aAey o} yied ayy Jo4

‘sdew SO Jusnbasqns WO} SUOISN|OXS
s} Aq pauuyuod si siy) pue Bunasw abe|jia e Buimol|o) s,0961
ay) ui paysinBuixa sem ‘aouspiAa [ejopoaue Aq ‘Yjedijoo) syl

'S,0661
ay} ui pasn sem Yled sy} Jey} S0USPIAD Si S8y} BIoULBUNNG  -AIoWBW
Buia) uiylm 81 YoIum /G661 Ul wiiey ayy paninboe Ajuo suopels) ay) asnesaq

SJaumo

€002
1aquisoa( apew uoIssIWgng

Yy m
SUOS ' UOLIBID) A " 0 JiBYaq uo

juawaels siy} jo Aoeinooe ayj O} se AjuleUaoun awos aq Isnw aJay) ay} jo Auowaw BuIAl| Ul pasn usaq Janau sey yiedjoos ayl Sa0INBS AUadold (einy SNIOdY Z 8l
"apeuw aq 0} SARY (1M $30U3) JUO3|9 {4 pue sajeb
suoisiaoid ssaooe Isixa sybu olgnd ji “ssevosd Buiyew uoisiosp ay; jo ped Z 9jenobiau 0} aaey pinom siasn pue ajgejdadoeun aq pinom
SE JUNOJOE }0} Ul 9)B} 8¢ JOUUBD PUB UOIIBIaPISUOD JUBASIS) B JoU S| SHYL piay 0} sseo9e aqnd Bumojie pue pieay Aiep afle| e areH
‘yied ay) pasn pue 'jo d1BME 319M SjuapISel Jap|o awos AjuiBuad ‘pasn Huiaq yjed ayj Jaquiawal Jouued sieak
Jey} sisabbns yolum ‘aouapias Jesn 8y} AQ pejoipeiuo? aq o) siesdde syl 06 J9A0 10} 818Y) Panll aAey oym ‘abe||iA ay) Jo suapisal p|O
‘9]esipap 0} uolusjut JO xoe}
10 uondnualul JO SJUBPIAS 8G 0} PAIBPISUCD BQ UBD SIY) JBYIBYM |nJANop
9i0J213Y} S| ]| '9ABS| O} WSY] PIYSE pue YOBq WSY) Pauin} aABY JOUUBD QABD| O} PO)SE U2 SBY SPEO) WB) JO Wa)sAs jeusdiul
Aayy ‘synos uoneoidde ay) Buisn auUOCAUB U38S JOU IABY SISUMOPUE| ay] Ji 2y} 0} uo syied pabpamounoe woly pakess sey oym auokuy
‘yYyed ay} Jo Joadsal uj 431181 Xe) pawelo sisumopue; 8y} Jeadde pinom
JI 3J9ym Spi0dal acueuly Q161 Y} Sl anjeA |enuapias Jajealb sdeysad
JO ‘pouad awi payioads sioumo ‘Jusund ayy a104aq ‘Apybl Ajuo nage ‘pasn snb
sem yjed ayj pue ‘eousisixa ul alam siybu jey; sisabbns ased Jepnoied o mmmm f“cczﬂwoﬁﬁmhwww%:wq_
SIY} Ul 80UBPIAS Y} JanaMOH 'aoe|d uaye} Jou SeY asn Yons Jey} ueaw jou 8JN02 8y} Yjem auoAue UBSS J3ABU Sey swil JBy}
so0p ‘yled ay) Buisn auokue usaes Jou SABY SIUMOPUE| 3y} Jey) JoB) By Buunp pue (g661 0} Joud) sieek /¢ 10} pue| 8y} paule) sey SUOS B UORBID AT (%4 8L
sjuawIwo) uopseiqo sweN efed | qeip

SJUBWIWOY/IUBPIAT S,40329{qO JO Alewwing

9 xousyy

ONBIPISUM ' BUBT LB 0} BueT yaInyD

JapIO uonesiipoyy de aauyaq Joj uonesiddy

1861 10V SpISANUNOD B BYIPIM




Page 23

saointes Aouelinsuo g Juswabeuepy Aepn 40 siybiy oiqng

S9JeI00SSY LBD) UIGoY

"goe|d 00} YoIyM sessa01d [BNJOE BY) JO BulpuejsapuUNSIW
e s j) "Aosyl JuswysinBunxa, ayy poddns 0] 8duspiA9 OU St 818yl

‘Aepoy Jsixa (18s m siybu
asoy; awysinbuixe |ebs} Aue jo aouasqge ayy ul usy) ‘uodn Ajas Ajjenjoe
ng ‘sndsip o} seadde jou op Aoy) Jajew e St YoIym ‘ased ay} Si syl J| ‘0961
0} Joud pajsixa Aem jo syybu odlgnd e Jeyy ydaooe o) seadde sisumopue} ayl

‘paysinbunxe
sem §I uaym 0961 1sod sdew uo umoys Jou s1 Yed syl
'sdew Anjuad yjsnuam] g YjuasjauIN Jo AjoueA B U0 punoy
aq Aew juawysinBuixa sy 0} Joud yied ayj jo aoualsixe ayy
suuyuod sjsabbns sisumopue| ay) yowym ‘a0USPIAS [BDLI0}SIH

BAOQE SJUBWIWOD 888

‘Wyed ay) asn 0} Huiks) suoAue uaas 1ans Buiaey jjeval
JOU OP 8jIM SIY PuB UOYEIS UBYIBUYOS J) 19UMO Juasaid ayj

3A0Qe SjUBLIWOD 398

‘@)nol uonesydde
ayy Buisn auoAue Buleas [[eodr Jou Op 666l PuUe 0661
ugaM}aq wuej ay} JB Pa)JOM oym saskojldws Jauuo} 1Byl0

‘abpamouoe 0} Jeadde
siaumopue| ay} yoiym ‘yled ay) jo aoualsIXd (BoUOISIY By} uodn paseq
S| Wiejd ayy ‘Jasn wapow uodn paseq wied Aue jo uoisabbins ou si a1ayl

‘aynos uonesydde
ay) Buisn auokue Butaas |jeoas Jou sa0p M v66L Pue 8986t
uaamiaq uue4 jleH axelpiaip Je pakoidwa sem uosuyor | JW

BAOQER SJUSLLIWIOD 998

‘paysinbunxa sem yjed ayy usaym
Buneaw ebejia sy} ||eoas osje Asyl ‘yied ay} asn o} Buiky
auoAue Jo pieay Jo mes Jansu Aay} pouad Jeak Og Jey; Suung

‘8861 1jun abeyoo ay) paldnooo Aay] “jiEH a%eIpldUM
peseyoind uopel Ar JN (L661) siuy Jaye Ajuoys pueggel
u abeyon yueo o} panowi Ajiwe} 118y} pue uolels) 9 SHA 2 JN

‘aoe|d %00} Yoiym sassa201d jenjoe ay) Jo Buipuejsiepunsiw
e st )] Aioay) Juawysinbunxs, ayj poddns 0) 8ouspIAS Ou S| 1aYy ]

"U89Q SeY JAABU | MOU |3UN YIIYM ‘Sjep

19)e| B JB yIMm }jesp aq 0) Yo} Buiaq Janew ay) ‘panjosal 198U ‘19ABMOY
a1am suonoalqo asay ‘pabpo) Buiag sousysixa S)t JOAO ‘SUoRdaqo 0} anp
dew jeuoisinoid ayj wolj paAowas sem ) ‘sdep [BuOISIAOLd pue Yesq ayy uo
UMOUS SEM pue '[15uno) ysued ay) Aq pawiejo sem 3] "depy aaniuygaq ayy uo
Papi0oal uaaq 1anau sey yled ayj asneoaq uayelsiw AlJes|d s SSaUNIM SIy ]|

‘pasn Buiaq jou sem ) asnenaq S,086) du} ul
depy samuyag syl woyy paacwas Buleq ylediooy ey sjesal sy
*A)9100s |BO1I0ISIY [BD0] BY) JO JOQUUSW JBPUNOS B SI Pue 3yl sIy
30 Auofew ayy 10} abejin ayy u pany sey G/ pabe ‘umoig 3 JN

sjuswILIO)

uop29(qo

aweN

ebeyg

qel

O)BIPISYAMN ‘ SueT] LEeD 0} dUBT yoINyd

18piQ uonesypoy dep aARuyaq Joy uonesiiddy

1861 10V 9pISARUNOD B SHIPIAA




Page 24

§801/8G Aoueynsuo) B uswabeuepy Aepa jo siubry anqnd

S9JeI00SSY LD uiqoy

‘abpamouoe o} Jeadde

sJaumopue| 8y} yoiym ‘yied ayj Jo aoud)sixa |eaL0}SIY 3y} uodn paseq
SI wiejo ay] “Jasn uapows uodn paseq wied Aue jo uoisabbns ou s| aiayy

pue| ay} Jo juswabeusw
ay} o} bupeas S8OEISGO  SNOWBA  PAIBUNOIUS  BABY
pinom Asy) sieak Op ise| ay} ui yied sy} payiem pey suocAue ji

sjusWIWO)

uopdalqo

sweN

ebeyd

qel

ayeIpldayYM ' BueT e o} sue yaInyy

13p10 uonesyipowy dep aanuLag Jos uoneolddy

1861 10V 8pIsAUN0D 2 BJIPIAA




Page 25

Annex 7

Legal Tests



Page 26

Annex 7 - Legislative Tests

Test to be Applied

When considering an application for a DMMO to add a public right of way
to the Definitive Map the burden of proof initially rests with the applicants
to prove their case. If a prima facia case in favour of the application is
established, the onus then falls upon anyone opposing the application to
provide evidence in rebuttal. The standard of proof is the civil test of ‘on
the balance of probability’ .

If, having taken into account all of the available relevant evidence, the
Authority is satisfied that, the alleged rights subsist or are reasonably
alleged to subsist the Authority has a duty to make a DMMO. Such an
Order can however, only be confirmed if, on the balance of probability,
the alleged rights can be shown to actually subsist.

Evidential Tests
Highways Act 1980, Section 31

3. Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states:

“(1) Where a way over land, other than a way of such character
that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to
any presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the
public as of right and without interruption for a full period of
twenty years, the way is deemed to have been dedicated as a
highway unless there is sufficient evidence that there was no
intention during that period to dedicate it.”

‘(2)The period of twenty years referred to in subsection (1)
above is to be calculated retrospectively from the date when the
right of the public to use the way is brought into question
whether by notice, such as is mentioned in subsection (3) below
or otherwise.”

‘(3) Where the owner of the land, which any such way as
aforesaid passes has erected in such manner as to be visible by
persons using the way a notice inconsistent with the dedication
of the way as a highway; and has maintained the notice after the
first January 1934, or any later date on which it was erected, the
notice, in the absence of proof of a contrary intention, is
sufficient evidence to negative the intention to dedicate the way
as a highway”

Section 31(1) has two ‘limbs’ the first provides that proof of twenty years
continuous user “as of right” endorses a claim that a highway exists; the
second (sometimes referred to as ‘the proviso’) provides that proof of a
lack of intention to dedicate the way as a highway defeats the claim.

Section 31 is further supplemented by Section 32 of the Highways Act
1980, which states:



Page 27

“A court or other tribunal, before determining whether a way has
or has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which
such dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration
any map, plan or history of the locality or other relevant
document, which is tendered in evidence, and shall give weight
thereto as the court or tribunal considers justified by the
circumstances, including the antiquity of the tendered document,
the status of the person by whom and the purpose for which it
was made or complied, and the custody in which it has been
kept and from which it is produced.”

Common Law

Before public rights can be asserted under the Common Law, a
landowner must be shown to have intended to dedicate the right of way
over his land. The question of dedication is purely one of fact and public
user is no more than evidence, which has to be considered in the light of
all available evidence. Public use will not, therefore, raise the inference
of dedication where the evidence, in its totality, shows that the public
right of way status was not intended.

At Common Law, there is no specified period of user, which must have
passed before an inference of dedication may be drawn. It is necessary
to show, in order that there may be a right of way established, that the
route has been used openly, “as of right’, and for so long a time that it
must of come to the knowledge of the owners of the fee that the public
were so using it as of right.

If the landowner has done exactly what would be expected from any
owner who intended to dedicate a new highway, the time may be
comparatively short. However, as a matter of proof at Common Law, the
greater the length of user that can be demonstrated, the stronger the
inference of dedication will (usually) be.

Factors such as desirability, suitability, financial viability, need or even
public safety, whilst genuine concerns cannot lawfully be taken into
account, when making a decision. Therefore, whilst there may be some
genuine concerns about the anti-social behaviour occurring along part of
the alleged public right of way, it cannot lawfully be taken into account
when determining the application to modify the Definitive Map.




Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

Decision Session 2 February 2010
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Public Rights Of Way — Application for Definitive Map Modification
Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Ings Bridge to Storwood,
Wheldrake

Summary

1. This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining whether or not
to make a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) to add the route (shown
by a broken black line on Plan 1 (Annex 1)) to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath. In determining this issue it is important to consider the available
evidence against the requirements of the legislation (see Annex 7).

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that the Executive Member approves Option A and
authorises the making of a DMMO to add the route as a Public Footpath to the
Definitive Map.

Reason

3. Taking the evidence as a whole there is a prima facie case in favour (i.e. there
is a reasonable allegation) of the establishment of public footpath rights over
the application route

4. The depositions made by the landowners in 1975 and 1992 would appear to be
incomplete because they were not followed up by the required Statutory
Declarations. Clarification on whether such declarations were made has been
sought, on numerous occasions from the landowners, but no information has
been forthcoming. It is therefore only reasonable to conclude that they were not
made. As a result the 1975 and 1992 depositions do not serve to have their
desired effect, and do not demonstrate sufficient lack of intention to dedicate
public rights to overturn the prima facie case made in their favour.

5. No other evidence demonstrating sufficiently overt acts, demonstrating a lack of
intention to dedicate, on the part of the landowner, during the period 1946 -
1966 has been submitted, by or on behalf of the landowners.



10.

20.

21.

22.

Page 30

All the available relevant evidence shows that Public Footpath rights are
reasonably alleged to exist thus requiring the authority to make the order
(Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53(3)(c)(i)).

Background

The existence or otherwise of public rights over the application route has been
ongoing for some considerable time, and at least since the mid 1970’s when the
issue was the subject of discussions by Cottingwith and Wheldrake Parish
Council’s. This resulted in the collection and submission of user evidence forms
with a view to the matter being considered as part of a future review.

In 1983 the Definitive Map review procedure was overhauled and replaced by
new procedures introduced by the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981.

In May 1988 Wheldrake Parish Council submitted, to North Yorkshire County
Council, an application for a Definitive Map Modification Order, to add the
bridleway, shown by a broken black line (the application route) on Plan 1
(Annex 1). Then in 1996, as a result of Local Government Reorganisation, the
application, which had still to be determined, and which remained outstanding,
was passed to City of York Council as the newly appointed Surveying Authority
for the area.

In 2002 the Council commenced preliminary investigations into this, and a
number of other similar applications made by Wheldrake Parish Council. Whilst
these investigations were substantially completed at that time, the applications
were never formally determined. Therefore, more recently, and in order to bring
these matters to a close, the previously considered evidence was checked and
ratified so as to allow the matter to be brought to a conclusion.

Summary of Evidence

Historical Documents

As part of the investigations a range of documents have been consulted, and
these are listed in Annex 2 of this report. Where the documents are considered
to have some evidential value in this case, they are further summarised within
the report, with more detailed comments included in Annex 3. Copies of the
documents discussed in Annex 2 are included in the bundle of evidence
attached to this report and referenced accordingly.

Ordnance Survey Maps

The Ordnance Survey maps for the area show the existence of an embankment
along the side of the old course of the River Derwent, which appears to also
coincide with the application route. Some maps also show paths or tracks
leading onto the embankment

The Swing Bridge at Storwood

In a letter dated 8 December 1977 the British Waterways Board wrote to
Humberside County Council regarding the Swing Bridge at Storwood. This letter
suggests that the bridge was crossed by a public right of way, and problems



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 31

were encountered with the bridge being “frequently swung over onto the
Storwood bank so that pedestrians approaching Storwood from Wheldrake Ings
are unable to cross the canal’

The letter goes on to confirm that this particular bridge was actually paid for by
the County Council at a cost of approximately £15,000.

User Evidence

The application was supported by 45 withesses who completed user evidence
forms claiming use during the period 1920 — 1994. Some of these witnesses
completed forms in the 1970’s others in the 1980’s. These forms are
summarised in Annex 4 of this report, and the periods of claimed use
summarised on the User Graph in Annex 5.

It has not been possible to undertake any form of substantive witness interview
due the length of time that has passed since the forms were completed. By and
large they provide evidence of long uninterrupted use of the application by the
public.

Evidence of Previous Landowners/Occupiers

Various members of the Popplewell family who previously tenanted and owned
land on the Ings have submitted user evidence forms, and state that they
always considered the route to be a public right of way. Sir John Dunnington-
Jefferson who also previously had a landowning interest in the Ings also filled
out a user evidence form confirming that the way was considered to be public.
This evidence is summarised in Annex 4 along with the user evidence.

Representations made by and on behalf of the Current Landowners

The current landowners deny the existence of any public right of way along the
Order Route. They refer to depositions, made pursuant to Section 31 (6) of the
Highways Act 1980 and its predecessor legislation, denying the existence of
public rights in 1975 and again in 1992. They have also provided evidence of
the erection of signs and of challenges to users etc, mainly in the 1980’s and
1990’s. Various issues are also raised with regard to the conservation status of
the land. The submissions made by, and on behalf of the landowners are
summarised in Annex 6.

Comments on Evidence

Historical Documents

Caution must be exercised when considering the Ordnance Survey maps in this
particular case because of the co-existence of the embankment on the same
alignment. The correspondence from the British Waterways Board, combined
with the fact that public funds were expended on providing the Swing Bridge at
Storwood, would strongly suggest that the path “approaching Storwood from
Wheldrake Ings” was considered, at that time to be public.

There is however insufficient documentary evidence to pursue a purely
documentary based case, however this evidence should still be taken into
consideration along with the user evidence.



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Page 32

User Evidence

In common with many cases of this nature across the country, the fact that the
application is being determined some nineteen years after it was made, is
problematic so far as the continued availability of witnesses is concerned. The
evidence of the four withesses who were interviewed should be given more
weight than that of the witnesses who were not, which can only be taken as
read.

Representations made by and on behalf of the former landowners

Use of the application route, by the former landowners, and occupiers, during
their periods of ownership/occupancy, is unlikely to constitute user that is “as of
right’ and should not therefore be taken into account, in such a context, when
considering the user evidence. It is however, very good evidence to show that
during their periods of occupancy, and perhaps more importantly their periods
of ownership the application route was considered to be, and accepted as, a
public right of way. This is quite significant evidence.

Representations made by and on behalf of the current landowners

Issues such as nature conservation, suitability and the practicalities of land
management etc, whilst genuine concerns, are not matters that can lawfully be
taken into account as part of the decision making process.

The depositions, made in 1975 and 1992 would appear to be incomplete
because they were not followed up by the required Statutory Declarations. As a
result they do not serve to have their desired effect, and do not therefore
demonstrate sufficient lack of intention to dedicate public rights.

The assertion that signs were erected on the Ings Bridge, circa 1966, has been
substantiated by the landowners, by the production of various pieces of
correspondence. These signs would appear to challenge public user and would,
in all probability call into question the existence of public rights. If this is the
case the relevant 20 year period under Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980
would be 1946 to 1966.

No other evidence of sufficiently overt acts, on the part of the landowners, to
demonstrate any lack of intention to dedicate during the period 1946 to 1966
has been forthcoming. The landowners have however suggested that there was
no bridge at the end of Ings land prior to circa 1966, but this has not been
substantiated, despite requests to that effect. The 1911 Ordnance Survey Map
shows a bridge at this location as do the 1767 navigation plans.

Assessment of Evidence

Historical Documents

There is insufficient historical documentary evidence available in this case to
support the making of a Definitive Map Modification Order. The evidence which
is available should therefore be considered in context to the user evidence.

User Evidence
Common Law




37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

Page 33

The user evidence forms suggest continued public pedestrian user, as of right,
and without any interference from circa 1920 until about circa 1966, when use
may have first been challenged, by the erection of signs. Use over such a long
period of time must have come to the attention of the landowners, and indeed
they confirm not only that such was taking place, but that they accepted that the
route was a public right of way. Under such circumstances, unless there is any
evidence of contrary intention, it may be possible to infer dedication on the part
of the landowners. The second part of the equation, public acceptance is
demonstrated again by the user evidence and the public expenditure on the
Swing Bridge.

Highways Act 1980 Section 31

Calling into question and 20 year period of user

From the available evidence it would appear that the existence of public rights
was called into question by the erection of signs on the Ings (Wheldrake) Bridge
circa 1966. The relevant twenty year period would therefore be 1946 - 1966.

Actual use and enjoyment by the public

A substantial amount of user evidence (Appendix 3) has been submitted in
support of this application, although it is more supportive of footpath, rather than
bridleway rights. This evidence, which has to be taken as read, due to most
witnesses no longer being available to confirm their evidence, suggests actual
use and enjoyment of the route by the public, throughout the period discussed
above.

Use “As of Right” and without interruption

For use of a path or way to be “as of right”, it must be use without force, without
secrecy and without permission. There is no need for the user to believe they
are exercising a public right of way. The evidence submitted in support of the
application would appear to meet this test for both of the periods (1920 to 1966
and 1946 to 1966) discussed above.

There is no evidence to suggest that use of the route has ever been interrupted
(within the meaning of the legislation) during the relevant twenty year period.
Interruptions to user as a result of flooding do not fall within the meaning of
interruption (within the meaning of the 1980 Act) due to there being no intent to
prevent usage.

References to users being challenged and possibly turned back by, or on behalf
of the landowners, during the relevant periods, have not been substantiated by
the production of actual evidence.

Consultation

Consultations have been carried out in accordance with the Parliamentary
Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice on consultation, which
includes consultation with user groups etc. The Parish Council and landowners
have also been consulted.

The landowners have submitted objections and representations. These are
discussed, and any evidence considered, within the report.



45.

46.

Page 34

Ward Councillors

ClIr C Vassie — No comments received.

Political Parties
Clir S Galloway (Lib Dem) — No comments received.

Clir R Potter (Labour) — ‘Happy to support the modifications: comments
received 30™ December, 2009.

Clir | Gillies (Conservative) — No comments received.

Clir A D’Argone ( Green Party) — No comments received
Options

Option A: If, having considered all of the available evidence, and in the
absence of any evidence to the contrary the Executive Member decides there is
sufficient evidence to raise a reasonable allegation in support of the existence
of public footpath rights:

a) under common law based upon user between 1920 and 1966
b) under the provisions of Section 31 of the Highways Act between 1946
and 1966

that the alleged public rights do exist, the Executive Member should resolve
that:

a) The Director of City Strategy be authorised to instruct the Head of Legal
Services to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a public
footpath, along the route A — B on Plan 1 attached to this report, to the
Definitive Map;

b) If no objections are received, or any objections that are received, are
subsequently withdrawn, the Head of Legal Services be authorised to
confirm the Order made in accordance with (a) above; or

c) If any objections are received, and not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be passed to the Secretary of State for confirmation.

d) The East Riding of Yorkshire Council be invited to make a corresponding
Order for the section of the route within their area.

Option B: If, having considered all of the available evidence, the Executive
Member may decide that the alleged public rights do not exist, the Executive
Member should resolve that:

a) The application to modify the Definitive Map be refused.

b) The applicant be advised of their right to appeal.



47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Page 35

Corporate Priorities

If it is determined that the available relevant evidence shows that a right of way
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist and is added to the map the
benefits of doing so would link into the Council’s Corporate priorities. A public
right of way is sustainable, car free and provides access to health and
recreation opportunities thus contributing to the priorities of making York a
Sustainable and a Healthy City.

Implications

Financial

If it is determined to progress a DMMO it will have to be advertised in the local
press. The cost of advertising the order would be in the region of £1500. If an
order is made, and no objections are received the order will be confirmed and
re-advertised, again at a cost of £1500.

If objections to the order are received, and not withdrawn, the outcome of the
order will be decided by the Secretary of State, possibly by means of a Public
Inquiry. The cost of a Public Inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the order is confirmed by either the Council or the Secretary of State the
authority has to accept that the route is maintainable at the public expense
inclusive of the existing bridge (metal frame and wood decking spanning in
excess of 20 metres) that crosses the River Derwent. Acceptance is not as
such a new obligation but is part of the Council’s statutory duty to keep that
map up to date and formally record the rights of the public where those rights
exist but are not yet shown and recorded in the definitive map and statement.

Human Resources
There are no human resource implications.

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.

Legal

City of York Council is the surveying authority for the purposes of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, and has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive
Map and Statement for its area is kept up to date.

If, and when, the Authority discovers evidence to suggest that the Definitive
Map and Statement needs updating, it is under a statutory duty to make the
necessary changes. A Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) enables any
changes to the map and statement to be made.

Before the Council can make the a DMMO to add a route to the definitive map,
as is the subject of this report, it must be satisfied that, taking into account the
available evidence, that a right of way can reasonably be alleged to exist. If it
can, the authority must make the order. If objections are received during the
process and not withdrawn the order must be forwarded to the Secretary of



56.

S7.

58.

59.

60.

61.

Page 36

State. The Secretary of State will appoint an Inspector who will test the
evidence and determine the outcome of this application.

DMMO'’s do not create any new public rights of way they seek to record those
already in existence but not formerly recorded in the definitive map and
statement. Issues for example such as safety, security and desirability whilst
being genuine concerns cannot be taken into consideration. The DMMO
process requires an authority to look at all the available evidence, both
documentary and user, before making a decision.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications.

Information Technology
There are no IT implications.

Property
There are no property implications.

Other — Maintenance implications

If the DMMO process concludes that public rights do exist the public footpath
becomes maintainable at the public expense and should be recorded as such
on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public Expense. The Council, as the
highway authority for public rights of way, has a duty to maintain the public
footpath to a standard that allows use by lawful traffic: the right of way is on foot
only.

Risk Management
In compliance with the Council's Risk Management Strategy, Options A is

subject to internal budgetary pressures (financial). There are no risks
associated with Option B.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Joanne Coote Damon Copperthwaite, Assistant Director,
(Definitive Map Officer) City Development and Transport
Network Management
(City Development & Transport) Re vz

_ port Date 22.10.2010
Tel No: 01904 551442 Approved
Wards Affected: Al [ ]

Wheldrake

For further information please contact the author of the report.



Page 37

Background Papers:

Evidence evaluated and background report prepared by Consultant: Robin Carr
Associates, Public Rights of Way Management and Consultancy Service

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Highways Act 1980

Rights of Way: A Guide to Law and Practice, Fourth Edition, by John Riddall and
John Trevelyan.

England and Wales Court of Appeal (Civil Division) Decisions: R v Secretary of State
for Wales ex parte Emery (1997)

Annexes:

Annex 1: Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Ings Bridge to Storwood, Wheldrake
Annex 2: List of documents consulted

Annex 3: Summary of Documentary Evidence

Annex 4: Summary of User Evidence

Annex 5: Graph showing Periods of Claimed User

Annex 6: Summary of Objector’s/Landowners Evidence/Comments

Annex 7: Legal Tests



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

Annex 1

Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Ings Bridge to Storwood,
Wheldrake




Bomex |

Page 40

il
2 woA 181£18 90610 :ouoydajel

res) Anw puz JyBuAdes umoig seBulul das p usoi @ b ‘ageld 5p1euoa "
»u.S—o:c_-_E.-n-c-ﬁ_; Bujddew 05z):} ADAINS GSUTURIO £68} Bl WO} peanpold 137 LOA 0L 1d 5P s 8

Kep 30 SWUBY u__n_:__
- _ imefaig 1tnop BumUBLO! NMINNOD

o) )
£00z 1snbBny 9 :seq :Ag umerg 00091 9(83S V— mo -

{sbu) exespleUM)
ayeIpjaUM 'poomiols 0 8bpug sbuj - Aemsiplg POWIEID

sB8uipaasoad JA|S JO UORNINE. = ¢
w0 Assuopeis sAisafew 30K i

SONI IXVHATIZHM

€¥y 00 IS 49 PUD

\

J13pIO UOEoLIPOIN dBIN BAULEQ Joj uonesliddy

186} 1V OPISARUN0D. 2 SJIPIAN m
T = el —h \‘

[4




Page 41

Annex 2

List of documents consulted




Page 42

WilC v v covrre yeroe - wen 481
Application for Definitive Map Modification Order
Wheldrake Ings Wheldrake

4&4“ ex2.

Documents Consuited

Enclosure Award, Map and Act
Tithe Plan and Apportionment

1910 Finance Act records
Ordnance Survey Maps

Rights of Way Act 1932 Depositions
NPACA 1949 Maps and Documents
Local Authority Files

Quarter Sessions records

Parish Council Records

Other Highway Authority records
Local Historical Maps

Deposited Plans

Estate Records

Deeds

Aerial Photographs

Robin Carr Associates
Public Rights of Way Management & Consultancy Services



Page 43

Annex 3

Summary of Documentary Evidence




Page 44

s8o1u3g AoueyinsuoD g Juswwabeuepy Aepp jo sybIy olandg
S9]BI008SY JIBD UIGoY

ajnos uonedjdde sy} Jou pue yyed mo; ayj 0} sajejal
pauonusw wajsAs juuad ay) "sniejs dlqnd Jo aAnedIpul st Jasy
ur yoym 'abpuq ayy Jo 1s09 Yy papuny |1DuNoD AJunoD 8yl eyl
ueoylubis osie s1 )| “Aep Jo spubiy 21and, pepeay st pue 's,0/61
ay) Guunp aynos uoneadde ay jo asn alqgnd sysabbns Jona| SIyL

‘yyedmo) ay; Buoje wajsAs Juuad e 0) $13j81 OS|e 1913
ayl 'DoH Aq 104 pred sem abpug ay) Jo souBUBUIRW JBY) PUB
‘swiajqosd sajunoous axelpjsuaA woly Bulyoeoidde siayem jeyy
os uado yo) Buleq poomio)g je abpuq Bums ay) 0} sajejel JapeT]

‘lvuno) Aunod
episiaquiny o} pseog shemialep ysiug
woy /6l Jaquisdeq 8 Pelep Jepan

61

L16} Aq aoeld ul sem abpug
8y} jey) sdew SO 8yl uuoj ‘1es)0 Janemoy S )| ‘dn umesp azem
sjesodoid oy} uaym poomuois e abpuq e 104 Juswalnbas ou sem
aJay) 18y} 15966ns op Asy) ‘siy) Bulpueisyumiop "uonedineu ayj jo
Juawubiie mau 3yl yiim pausasuod Ajlediouiid] ale Aay) se ainoy
uoljeo||ddy au} InOge uolBWLIOU] 3[R} SPINCIG SJUSWINDOP asey )

pauonuaw
Jou s poomiols Je abpuq Bums syl sue sbu| Jo pus ay) e
umoys s abpug (sbuj,) axespaum -ajqebireu Juamiag Janly ay)
Bupyew jo joadsas w pasodoid sysom 0) Bupe|a: sajou pue ueld

2944
SOJON pue ueld uonebiaen juamiag

6-9

‘do} yueq ayy Buoie jsixa osje Aew yied e jey)
BunssBbns ‘) ojul Buiuuna syled ylM UMOYS SI SSOUBJSUI BWOS
ui pue ‘Buiddew ay) Uo UMOYS S} JUSWRUBQIS Y. "juswUBqd
ue yim sisixe-0d yjed pawie|d ay) eduelsul Jeinomed siyy uj

"‘moys Aay) seinjesy
|esiydesbodo) ay) Jo eous)sixs jeatsAyd auy Jo aouapiae poob Aisa
opirosd ai0je18Y) SjuewINoop aseyy ‘sdew Jidy) uo pamoys Asy}
sbuiy; jo snjejs sy} o) piebas yum seuinbue siqeuosess ayew
0} pannbas Janemoy asam siokamns ayy sybi kemybiy oignd jo
90UB)SIXe Yy} JO S2UBPIAS Jou SI Aem Jo yoen yled Aue jo Buimoys
ay} j1ey; payd sy} 0} Jawepsip e Aed sdew Asang aodueuplo

poomIo}s
1e 9bpuq Buims ay) osje pue ‘abpug sbuj smoys uolpe | 161 ayL

JuswiyuequIe
8y} ojuo Buipes) sxwoes 1o syjed moys osie sdew swog "synol
uojedndde ay) yum apiouod osie 0} sieadde yoym ‘yuemiaqg
JOArY 3y} JO 3sIN0O plo 8y} JO epis ay} Buoje Jusunjueque ue
JO a0udISIXa By} moys ease ay) o) sdew AsaIng aoueuplO 8yL

sdepy Aaaung asueupiQ

SsjuswILIo)

JudUOH JusWINI0Qg

uonduasaq

s0g

qey

< xv-\v‘*

aouapiaz Alejuawindog jo Arewiwing

aeipfaym ‘sbuj axespiaum
JapiQ uonesyipoy de|n aauyaq Joy uonesiddy
1861 1V 3pisAjunoDd g I '




Annex 4

Summary of User Evidence

Page 45




$801Ma8 Aoueynsuo)) g Juswabeuepy Aepp J0 sIybiy dliand
S3JeI00SSY JIBD UIqOY

Page 46

.61 peja|dwod uuog p p I3 or v161-vE6) p 191 J91ed bL] ool

8861 pajajdwod uuogy I3 p r S 8861-€v61 M p Jeg uoQ oLl o1

8861 P8ja|duiod uLoy p r p or 8861-8¥61 I3 p ueD uuy 6| o4

186} pajd|dwod uiog p r p ra4 L¥61-6261 p uojog-umoig TN g| ol

8861 paje|dwod wio IS N p 89 8861-0261 N Aiqieg ey L] 01

Pum

Ul PapOOY UBYO ANOY €261 PEIBIAWOD ULOH r p I3 4 ZY6L-0v6L p Aqieig jaqepn 9| ot
Buiysy uaym yied ay) pesn "ge6 L PJSIdWOod w04 M é IS o¢ 0861-0564 p IS fquieg ueyy ydasop S| o
261 peia|dwod wio4 3 p p 0z v161-561 3 sianeag Haqly v| ok

/61 paleiduiod uuog I3 r r 5 §/61-0261 p |eag sawer €| ot

JBAN JO S10UOSLd
3y} Kq osie pue Juny ay) Aq pesn sem ajnoy A N p IE 0.61-6€61 N ie)1Eg SIN PUB I zZ| o

“WIOM 10} Yled ay) pasn ay jey) sale)s

261 peie|duiod wiogy M p M 6C ¥661-G961 M uapiy Jaljep l ]
ig | §| B | % 7 (82 | £ |35
g 2 3 e 3 |38 | § (38
H > M. < m. [] - 73 m
CT = 7] - o o T L <.
m. - [ o 0 -~ [+] 5 a
S (=] - - a3 c W. b=3 ]
s 2 p) g |e ] a
@ = s ® 13 3 ®
-4 Z o 3 )
uojeuLloju] J3UI0 o £ 3 awep | abeg | qey

82UapIAT J9sN JOo Aewwung

1 Xotelely

axeipisym ‘sbul axespisum
lapJO uonedlipoy depy aaiuyaq Joy uojedliddy
1861 10V apisAuncd B SJIPIM




S801A19G Aoueynsuo)) B Juswabeuepy Aepn j0 siybiy onand
S3BIDOSSY LB WqoY

Page 47

8861 Pa1a|dwod uuo4 r r p 08 8861-8061 I3 uBwIEH PnEn €| Ol
G261 pe1ejdwod uuog I3 p I3 59 G161-0161 p uosieH Yip3 | ol
8861 Paje|dwiod uuo4 I3 p r or 8861-8v61 p uewieH AyioioQ 12| ot

SIBUMOpuej

10} Buppom pue ajied Bulaup 0} SaouaIdyR) SWIoS
1861 PIR|duIod Lo IS ¢ ¢ oy 6£61-6681 p sseueH Paqo 0z| oL
€261 paya|dwod unog p p r p adioymon Awy 61| 01
/861 paje|dwod wioy M N IS 0s 1861-/€61 M Kaison Aaupis abioag gL | O
261 Ppeia|dwod uuo4 p r p z ¥161-CL61 p pAold yueld L] ot
€261 pa1e|duwiod uuo4 p p IS €5 £461-0Z61 p uinguie 4 yueld gL ol
§261 peje|duiod wo4 r I3 p € €€61-0€61 r UOIX3 pPIEMP3 SaLEYD SL| oL
/861 Pe1a|duwiod uuoy r p p 0z 0961-0v61 3 Isuyw3 veiio vl | Ol

9.61 pajeidwod uuoy
Aem jo ybu oyqnd

€ 90 0} 8JN0J 3y} SSASIS] OYM JBUMOPUET JSWLO oL 9/61-0061 p uossagar-uojbuiuung uyop et | o1
£861 Paja|dwod uLo4 A A p VL 1861-9161 N uung payy ebiosp utor | zL | oL

s 3 ~ Z3 -3 o M ] 2a 33

£ s > Q-3 = a [§° s 2 m

T = L4 = o -] o m @ <.

52 o o ] -~ !0 g

ge = ) 4 c 3 []

s ] @ 2 3

& S ® |3 &
uopeuLIoju| JOYO = o 8 eweN | abed | qel

axesplayM ‘sBuj axesployMm
18pIQ UoNesyIPOW dejy aAnuYaQ 4of uonedliddy
1861 1OV 3PISANUNOD 2 AYIPIM




Page 48

$80I1M8G Aoueynsuo)) g Juswabeuepy Aepn Jo subry oland
S3JeI00SSY LB) uIqoy

2861 pay8|dwiod wioy
alignd aq 0} Aem ay) sans1|aq Ing ‘auo
0} paje|al Jo Jueus) JaLL0) B 3q 0} POOIsIapUN oe 0.61-0v61 Jloma)ddod 3 8g ot
6.6} peyejdwod wiod
olgnd aq 0} Aem ay} SaAaljaq Jng ‘auo
0] Pejejal J0 JUBUS) JBULIO) € 8 0} POOISIBPUN 14 Gl61-0¢61 jlameiddod g Gt 0l
.61 paye|dwod uuog
otignd aq 0} Aem ay} saAsI|9G INg ‘SUO
0} pejejal Jo jueus) JaLLoy e 8q 0} poojsiapun %14 G/61-2¢61 liemajddod d v AN (]
8861 paye|dwod ulo4 N p» IS ov 8861-8v61 sIsAy welm uey i€ o]
¥.61 pa1ejdwiod uuoy M IS p 1S 9/61-6261 9I00W BoueT 62 ol
G641 pa1ejdwiod uuo4 M p p 6V G.161-9261 UBLUSSNOK ouapald 8c 0}
¥.61 p8ie|dwod wio4 I M I €9 y961-1 161 uewasnoyH 1 Ll [¢]3
a131e0 BuiAup o0} saoualsjey
1861 peIajdwod wiog M é ¢ 14 8v61-€261 YHOMSPIOH 3 sa8dueld °74 /]2
9261 pays|dwod wioy p M p :T4 6G61-2261 KenjeH Auay inypy gz | O
PUE} U}IM SUOIIOBUUOD 0} SE0UBISOY
G.64 pais|dwod uuog M é é 14 G.61-6261 suissiey uospni Welipn ¥e ot
35 |35 |2F |43 ? |22 |78 (1% :
3= i £3 ° o o2 33 33 w
c s > -4 =< Q o T m
= 14 = o) Q ° s ® <
53 o o ® = IS 2
uolewIo U] J8W0 - © ] 8 afed | qel

oxeIpldyM 'sBul oxeIploUM
19p1Q uonesyipon dew aauyeg Jos uoneorddy
1861 1OV 8pIsAjUN0D B SNIPIA




$90I1M8G Aoueynsuo) g JuswaBeuepy Aepn Jo siubny onand
S3JeI00SSY i) uiqoy

Page 49

G261 Paja|dwiod uuo4 M p M 14 GE6L-GL61 M pAoy4 yoer es ol
8861 Paja|dwiod wio4 M M M Lz 1961-0v61 M Buno soer 1S ol
M M M IS PPOL M 0S ot
¢ 9/6) paYoIdwiod wuo4 IS I p 0z G961-Gv61 M sojemg uaydalg 6¥ | Ol
9/61 pajejdwod wio M M M oy 9/61-9¢61 p yiwg jssui3z 8y | Ol
/861 '8 G264 paJajdwod wio4 IS M I 0g Gl61-GZ6} M uosdwig abuoan 14 1]}
5.6 pa)ajdwod o4 p p I A% Gl61-8€61 p» Bhad payly Sy | Ot
¥.61 pa1d|dwod wioy M p I 0z vi61-9G61 M» Wiooy UagisH uyor v | Ol
¥.61 pa)ajdwiod wuo4 IS M IS oy y.61-PE6L M o0y UBWION Haqoy <y | 0L
¥./61 paiaidwod wioy p IS M Se v.61-6€61 M wooy M piemp3 (34 ol
2861 pa19|dwiod wio4 M M IS (174 0961-0v61 IS wooy v 1 or | 0l
1861 paejdwod wioy I p I oy 1864L-1¥61 p siaboy uewoN 6¢ ol

i¢ | g | 2F | % 3 g2 | FF | g%

g g | g3 o 3 g | 33 | 3%

g | 2 | g | =2 a 8 | 3B m

° = ) 4 o° o ° 7] <.

= m o o N - o 3 o

o0 - = 2 c 2 o©

8 | = e 3 g 3

] & 3 ®
uopeuuoU| 13410 4 o® Y awen | abed | qer

oyesplayp ‘sbuj axespleym
1ap1Q uohieatipoly de anuyaq Joj uonediddy
1861 10V 8pIsAnunod B sjlipiIM




Annex 5

Graph showing Periods of Claimed User



Page 51

§.61-G¢61
2961-0v61

G96L-S¥61
9461-9¢61
GL61-6261
§.61-8€61
vLi6L-vG61
P.i6L-PE6L
v.6i-6€61
0961-0v61
1861-1y61
0.61-0¥61
§.61-0€61
Gl61-ce6t
8861-8¥61
9461-5261
G.64-9261
Po6L-L161
8p6i-cC6l
G661-2264
G.61-6261

8861-806}
GL61-0164
8861-8¥61

6€61-6681

1861-L£61
vi61-2i61
€261-0261
€£61-0£61
0961-0¥61

9.61-0061
1861-916}
v.61-vE61
8861-€¥61
8861-8v61
Lv61-6261
8861-0261
ayeL-0vel
0861-0661
vL61-vS6L
§.61-0261
0.61-6£61
$661-5961

2000

1990

1980

1970

1960

1950
1940
1930

198 pawie|) Jo spouad

1920

oS 0 pouad

phoid xoer

6unoA doep

PPoL M

sajemg uaydels
yuws jsewiy
uosdwig ebiocen
unad payiy

wooy WeqisH uyor
W00y UBLLION Haqoy
wooy M piemp3
wooy v

s10b0y vewloN
liemajddod 3
119majddod
liemaiddod d ¥

SIeAN WeyIm uey
21001\ soue
UBWBSNOH %o1ape)d
UBWASNOH 1
YUOMSP|OH 3 SeouBsd
AaneH AlusH Jnypy
BUISIIEH UOSPNH WEII{IAA
uewsieH pnep
UOSIUBH Y)IP3
ueweH Ayjoioq
sseueH uags
adioymon Awy
Aajsoo) AsupAg ebioen)
phol4 yueiy

wnqued yuel4

uoix3 piemp3 sspeyd
sIyw 3 veo
uosieyar-ucibuiuung uyor
uung payly eBuoen uyop
18%21q J819d

Led uog

ed uuy
uoyog-umoig TN
Kareg Aie

Aaielg 19qen

Aqueg uely ydasor
sianeag Haqiy

|eag sawer

Joyeg SIN pue Jn
usp|y Jajepm

aweN

25

0S
6
14
oF
Sy

44
134
oy
6¢
8¢
SE
[43

6C
8c
x4
92
°14
14
4
(44
24
874
6l
8l
L
9i
Sl
vl
€l
zi
11

o 2

- N M ¥ v © N~ O

abed

S w!\vww\

sbu} ayeIpPUM
18pI0 uonesyipoyy deyy saiuyaQ Joj uonesiiddy
1861 WY apisAiuno) B 3

0l
0t

ol
ol
ol
ol
ol
oL
oL
ol
ol
ot
oL
ol
ol
oL
ot
]}
oL
ol
ol
oL
(3
ol
oL
oL
ol
oL
oL
oL
oL
13
oL
0l
oL
ot
ol
ol
[o13
ol
ol
ol
ol
ol
[+]3

qeL




Annex 6

Summary of Objector’s/Landowners Evidence/Comments




Page 53

seoinag Aoueynsuo) 3 Juswabeuepy Aepn Jo siybiy onandg

S3)RID0SSY JIBD) UIqoy

‘uonejaidiaul 0} uado aq ued Aay) ‘jlasy Aem jo Jybu ay) uey) Jaylo
pue) 0} ajejal Aay) uaym Ajjevadsa ‘snonbigue aq ued ainjeu sy jo subig

Jeak Aiana

aunp ,0¢ 0} [udy (| WO ISNIL 3Y} JO SISqUISLL 0} PAULUDD
S| 9AJ9S3I BINjeU ay} 0} SS800E jey) dlignd ay) Buiuuojuy
sleak Auews Joj abpuq ay) uo 9o1j0u B U3 Sey asay L

‘Joaye ou aAey Ajqissod pue Apadoid
papiwqns uaaq aaey 0y Jeadde jou 0p A8y} — SACQE SJUBLULLOD 893

*9]B2IPSP 0] UONUSIUI JO XOB| SSNi]
ay} Buluuyuod peRiwgns Uasq aAeY sjuawajels Aisnoiaaid ay |

‘Juasayp Ajuesyiubis st yoym ‘deiy sajuyeq syl
uo papsodas sem Buiyjou Jey; uuyuod 0} 3|ge U3q AABY pjnom Aay} jSow e
paapuj Juawslels [eduofiajes B yons ayew 0} d|qe aiam jIouno) Aunod ayy
MOY paspus JO ‘uoiUaUO0I Siy} poddns 0} paIBAOISIP UG SBY JDUSPIAS ON

sBuj axeIp|auan 19A0 Aem Jo sjybu oignd ou alem alay)
1By} 1261 Ui pauuyuod ounod Auno Suipry 1se3 Jauuo) ayl

'SONSS JO Joquinu B SBjels OSjy

‘ajnos pabayje
ay) Buimouys ueid e sjsanbai pue {1ouno?) ysued exeIp|sun sy}

8861 1snbny .2z pajep Jeye

Aq panies uopediddy jo 810N 8y} 4o Jdiaoal sabipajmoudoy ISNJL 8JlIPIM SIIYSHIOA 8Y 4, 8L 94
*an|eA [BIJUSPIAS |BLUIUIL A|UO SABY O} uw._mv_m:mo 8105213y} m_ ) ‘usodap . 9861 19GLIIAON G PAJEP 130T
(9)1L€ UOROaS B JO LOISSILIGNSDS BY} SINSUOD IS S0P JOU ‘(BN JO N0 uonisod sy siseydws-a 0} SaYSIM Jsni] 8y Jey)
usaq 9ABY PINOM LoIym) uoljesepaq Aiojnjels e Jay)au st juawnoop sty | Buneys (anoge) uoissiwgns G261 aus jo Adoo e Buisopus japeT | P ISNIL BJIP(IA SIYSHOA dUL 08 gl
‘9Je0Ipap 0} UORUBIUY JO 3OEB| B S)EIISUOLUBR O} SAILS JOU S80p
usodap ayy uonesejoaq Auoinjels e Aq dn pamojjoj Si UOISSILIQNS |BIIUI 9L}
$S9|un ‘s;085308paid Sjl pue (9) L€ LOIO3S JO UDIIONIISUOD By} 0} anp ‘Jeyl
Wbnoy; Aluotwiuod st )t ‘spnod ey Aq peise) uaaq Jou sey anss! SIY) IS|IUM
‘10843 Aue sey Ajjenioe )i Jayioym
JBAO JGnOp SWOS S| 219y} 8104810Y) puE ‘voljelIePaq Asojniels pelinbel ay)y
Aq pajuejddns Ajjuenbasqns sem uoISSILIGNS SIY} JBY) BOUSPIAS OU S| 88y
‘uonsanb ui pue| ay} JaA0D S30P JI 1BY) 3PNJOUD
0} 9|qBUOSEal 8q 8104218Y) P|NOM )i pue BnIasay ainjeN sbu| axyelplRUMm (uoisinoid (g) L ¢ uonoes S/61
8y} 0} 9jeja1 SOOP UOISSIWIANS By} ‘SIY) BuipueisyiMION "uolsanb u) pue| 0861 1OV sAemybiH ulopow ay} 0} JBUUNISIO) Y} yoIym JOqWB08Q G} UCISSIWGNS
40 eaJe 8y} 0} SaJe|a) UOISSIWIGNS SIY} JAYIBYM LWIYUOD 0} 3|qIssod a10)aIay} 6561 19V shkemybiH (9)pe uonoag Algewnsaid) syybu ongnd w o
j0u st i pue Buissiw ale yuawsels siy) 0} payoene sueid ayy Aj@jeunuoun 40 uoieaIpap Buikuap sjuawaiels pue dew jO UOSISILGNS PITISNIL SISIUNIEN IIUSHIOA 2818 9l
sjudmItIo) uoposiqo aweN abeyd qel

9 xvtv-*

SIUBWILLI0)/2IUDIPIAT SIduMOpueT / $,40}99[q0 Jo Alewwng

axeip|ayM sBu| axeIplayM

19p10 uonedlipoly dew aaluyaq o) uoiedliddy

1861 10V 8pISANUNOD 2 SYIPIM




Page 54

$8018S Aoueynsuo?) 9 awabeue Aepn Jo siybiy dland

$8]eI0sSY LeD) uIqoy

"a)ep siy) 0} joud Jasn jo 0UaPIAS Jueoyiubls 1 a1ay] “uonsanb ojul pajed
sem yjed auj Jo 20UB]SIXD B} UDIYM Je 3Jep ay} 8 PINOM SIY} 8SED YOIym
ul ‘996 BOJID Woyy ubis e Jo aoudlsixa ay) 15966ns saop souspire By

‘anissiuwad uaaq sey asnh Aue pue
aull} ajqelspiIsuod e 4o} abpuq sbuj uo adnou B udeq sey alvy L

'ssa00.d Bupiew uoIsioap ay) Ul UOJBISPISUOD OJUI UdNE) 3G UED ey}
siajjew jou ase (ISSS '9'1) SNjels pue asn pue| Jusnnod Buipunosins sanss|

ISSS & ybnoiyy st yied pawieo ay

"uoISNOUOD B Yyans melp 0} ajqissod aq jou pinom y dep
BaAIIUYaQ BY) JO ¥OBYD SdWiIS B SeMm Ji J| “SpEL USSQ SABY PINOM JUSIUIE)S
e yons uoyefisaAul J0 Siseq Jeym uodn LLUYLOD O} UOHBULIOUI OU 819y

1261 ut sBuj ay; Jano sybu 2lgnd ou asom
2I18Y) JBY) pauuLyuod 1ouno) Ajuno) Buipiy Ise3 Jauuo; ay )l

‘uonedipep Jo yoddns ul ased aioey ewd Aue UINUSAO 0] aNjBA [BIJUSPIAS
JuamNSUl JO 8q 0} palusap ale Aay) yons se pue ‘suonese|dag Aloymels
paiinbal ay) Ag pamojjo} a1am Aay) Jey) 1sab6ns 0} a0UapIAS OU SI 218U}

'sa1doo $asojoud pue
‘G261 U1 0861 10V skemyBiH 8y} Jo (9) L€ uondsg 0} uonelsiba)

2661 AB L2 Pajep Jonan

‘G261 Ul Spew aiam sUsodap |eniul 3y Jeyl ey} IGNop ou si 818U} IS|IYM Jossaoapaid o} uensind apew sem }sodap e jey) suuyuod (LMA) I1SNIL SHIPIM BIUSYIOA | L2-LL 9
'ss$800.d Buiyew uoisioap
3} Ul UOJIBIBPISUOD OJUl UBNE]} ] UBD Jey) SIaRewW Jou aze (ISSS 9'1) snjejs
pue asn pug| juaund Buipunosns sanss| ‘deyy SARIULSQ BY} UO PapI0da) snbn 21eD o1
jJou Jaqje sisixa Apeaije jey} Aem j0 Jybu e papiodal 0} sy89s uonestjdde 1SS e ybnouy) sassed )i se Aem jo Jybu 8861 ¥ V oPC PRSP 19431
ay "Aem jo siybu ongnd mau Aue ajeasd 0} sjesodoid ou ase eiey] onqnd mau e jo uojeasd ay) o} pasoddo aq pinom QDN eyl j1ouno) AoueAIaSUOD BInleN 18-68 13
“JUBIDSNSUL S| SIBUMOPUE] BY) JO PullL By} Ui Pexdo| Buleg uoneiapisucd
4ONS "a0uapIAG AQ PaJeNJUBISGNS 8q 0} PBBU PINOM JUSLWISIE)S SIYL
"yied
pebsijie sy} Buoje sa)o a1e sainsesw YoNS Jayjaym paapul Jo 'pajjo)uod swa|qoid asay} asealdul pinom AAONd
S] §S800B YONS MOy paaput 1o oignd ayj 0} pexiwsuel) ase suoisiroid B JO 90Ud}SIXa 8y 'Sino00 abewep pue ssedsal) siy) apdsag
$58008 aAIss|uLad pabajje ay} moy o} Se papinoid S| uojeuLIOjUl ON "pajj04u02 pue aAIssiuLad St 9A19S8) 8y} 0} SS3008 di|qnd
5 p anasay mEﬁz penunuod
jeuoneN e pejeubisep )l aney o} Aemiapun ale juawabueny snbn 218D Jon
'ssa00.d Bupjews ucisioap ‘fenpues Aiojnjels e pue asuepodu jeuoneuajul 9861 ¥ v wlC PIEP 193
2y} Buunp Junodoe ojul U3XE)} 8q AfjnJME] UED JBY) SJIO)BLU JOU SIB 9S8y JO [SSS B S| SUNJ 3Jn0J PIWIE|O By} YJIUM 19A0 pue| 8yl 1SNJL SHIPIAA BIUSHIOA BY L 8. 9l
SjuUBWIWOYD uopoelqo eweN eBed qelL

axeipjaym sbuj axeIpisym

13psQ uolesIpoy dep aAuyaQq Joj uonesiddy

1861 10V 8pisAunoY 3 SIPIM




Page 55

$801M9S Aoueynsuo) 9 Juswabeuepy Aepn jo siybiy onand

SOJBIN0SSY 1IB) UIqoY

"19sn afignd Ainus) 0z uodn paseq si aouejsul

Sy} ut sigBu oiand O JUBLUYSHGRISE Byl JO INOARY Ut SSED BY ] "S)ep Jaje)

e Je sjybu jo Juswystiqe)sa ay) Juanaid Janamoy Jou saop siy] “slep Aljes
ue yons je sybu Jo aouasIXa ay) 3sabbns 0} PaIaA0ISIp UBDQ SBY SDUBPIAD
OU paapul PUB ‘pJEME aINSOJOUS By} Ul Jou S 8Jn0s ay) jey) paalbe si

‘ajnoJ ay) Jano Aem jo Jybu oygnd
e Buiaq 218y} Yiim JUSISISUODUI S| PIBME BINSOOUT 22/ ] Syl

abpuq

3y} JaAo uonedipap 0} Jeq ou st a1ay | -angnd Buisq aynol ay) Jo 1NoAey i
ased Aue jo anipoddns aq pinom siy] ‘esuadxa 2iiqnd je pasiedal/psjjeisul
sem abpuq au yeyy suuyuod pue Kepa Jo siybiy diqnd, papeay

s1 ) Aiesjuod ay) o} apny “aaissiuiad 6uiaq se abpuq ay) Jo asn 0} 19jal
}S 80P Jaj8] BUY UIYYM BISUMON "UoRE)aIdIBIUI JO JBREW € BQ PINOM SIY L

Ajuo uojssiuuad Aq pasn s} abpug
BuImS 3y} SULBUOD /76 Ui SAEMIDIEAA USIIIG WO} 198} 9yt

"‘9ouapIAG swes ay) uodn Ajas Aiqeqosd

PINOM )i paapul ‘|1ounoD aHYSHIOA JO Buisiy 1se] ay} ul paaocons pinom

3Ul| ples auy} 6uippe ‘13pio Jejuas g jey s)qeqoud Ajubiy si 1 ease jrouno)
SHI0A JO AND BU} UIyIm 33nol Y} Jo Wed ey 1By} PaLLIU0D S| OWING

B JI ‘1ouno? anysyioA jo Buisiy ise3 Aq pajebisanut aq 0} 194 sey jey;
Japew e )1 sy} pue ‘sybu yons Jo aousisixa ajqissod ay} apnjoaid Jou sa0p
siy} ‘depy sauyeq ay) uc papiodal buiyiou s a1ayj Jeu} and} s it JISIUM

Kuadoid siy ssosoe Aem jo y6u oipqnd ou si a18y) Jey)
pajeanal sey JOUBIA POOMIOIS JO JBUMO BU} Y}IM UONBYNSLOD

‘siybu oiqnd Jo Juawysiqeisa

3y} 0} Jeq Ou SI aIdY) 2404219y} Aldde |j1is uoHeDIPap MET UOWWOY) JO
sejdiound ay) ‘0861 10V sAemybiH ay) Jo suoisiacid ay) woyj Jdwaxs aq Aew
‘0}0 sjuswedaq] JUSWILIBGAOS) SBPNILI YOIYM ‘UMOID BU} JO dIYSIBUMO By}
Ul puej Isliym ‘podas sy} Jo aiep auyj Jo Se 0S auop Jou aaey Aay; Ing ‘1enew
SIY} AJUejo 0} payse uaaq aABY JAA 8YL 'S,0061 Ales ay} aouls euej

sBuj Jo pus ay} Je abpug e jo soua)sixa ayj sjsebbns esuapire Buiddejy

8jedlpep

0} Aj1oede aABYy JOU Op OYM SI0SS29NS SYi pUE 9)E)SS
umoJD ay) woy asuaoll Aq aiay) S| 9bpuq 8y 2961 douls
paisixa Ajuo sey yolym ‘ebpuq sbuj ssoioe seob ajno. eyl

‘uoISn|oxa s)! 1oy uosess Ajuo ay si sy ‘sueid Aue Ul papnjoul usaq 800z Joquia0eq 992
jou sey ¥ “SuoA Jo AnD Aq uonebysaaul Japun Jou S jul| B YONs Sy |Iouno) 8| pojep uoisSIWgNS 9
MIOA Jo b@o 84} JO Jey} Jou pue 'eale JIay) UILIM S3Y Il SE |IDUNOYD BAYSHIOA w T
Jo Buipry 1se3 Joj Jajlew B S| POOMIOIS O} YU} B JO B0OUBISIXD 9|qissod oyt ‘poomiolg 03 sBu| ayl puokaq “yuil UISISED OU S| Iy L (LAA) I1SNUL SIPHAA BAUSHIOA |  05-8€ gl
apew s} JapiQ ue ji pajuawaiduy
8q 0} psau Aew ainseaw juawabeuew ajeudosdde jeyy
Inq ‘ssaooid Bupjew uoisioap ay) Jo Hed se uonesapiIsued ojul
US)E) 8¢ JoUUED 2}9 S)SAIBJUI UOHBAIBSUOD JBL) SabpamouNoy £002Z 42G0100 L Palep Jepd
uofjeoldde ayj Jsutebe 10 10} Joy)ia IOUSPING ON anot uoneodde ay) jo abpajmou ou seH pue|bug |esneN 8 gl
SJUsWIWoD uoy322(q0 sweN obed qel

axBipjayM sbu| exeIpiaym

18piQO uoiesyipowy dep saniuyaq Joj uonesyddy

1861 10V 3pIsALN0D B PRI




Page 56

saoInag Aourynsuo) @ Juswabeuepy Aepn jo SIYBIY oand

$9}RI00SSY LB UIqoy

‘9961 — 9v61 Jasn Jo pouad e Buuinbal ‘0g6 1 OV shkemybiy
3y} jOo LE uonodag Jo sasodind ayy Joy uonsenb ojul Buied e ansuod
pinom gosL ul ubis ay} Jo uoioale 3y} usy} ‘seop ) §| ‘Paye Aessaodau
9y} sey subis B yONS JaYlaym apioap PUE SIOIOB) JUBASIDS BY) 4O (I8
JBpISU0D 0} JayeW UoISap ay) Joj st ) “ybu ongnd e Buisiolaxa Jo anuia Aq
pasuoyiny, sem asn J1ay) Jey} panaljaq aney Ajlenba Aew Aasy) ‘olgnd ag 0}
Aem ay) panaljaq siesn i ‘aouejsul J04 ‘snonbiquie jJeYMawos passpISuod
aq Aew pue ‘sjybu ongnd ayedipap o} uonualul Jo yoej B Bugessuowap
J0 sasodind ay) 40} eapl woly ey Jaaamoy si ubis ayy jo Buipiom ayy

‘ubts ayy
10 90UB)SIXS Y} JO 3ouapPIAG poob apiacid op sjluswnoop asay) ‘ydeibojoyd
8y} Jo ajep oyl ojenueisgns 03 paonpoid u9aq Sey IJUSPIAS OU IS|IUA

-abpugq ay) uo subis ay Jo a0ua)SIXa Y}
Buimoys g.61 ul uaxe} pabajie ydesbojoyd e pue gggl ul ubis ay) o J8pIO
oy} 0} Bunejes souapuodsanod jo Adoo e Aq pauoddns si uoipasse siylL

'S,0,61 98] 9y} 158}
Je 0} 996} WoJj Juamia( jany auy) 1aao abpuq ayy uo aseid
ul sem 8sn pasuoyineun oN — abpug ajeaud, Sunels ubis v

"JaulIo) ay) 1SN dY) JO SOUBPIAS BY) ‘iayje} ayy
}sab6ns pjnom aouapine Jasn ay ‘1019 ul Aldwis St JUSWSIBIS | AA 941 1Y)
(g 10 9961 0} Joud Ajerpawu Jou Jng ‘isixa Aisnonaid pip abpuq e jey)
(e 6uiaq suondo ay) ‘souapirs s|qejiBAE 3Y) Uodn paseq apew aq 10ja184}
Jsnw od Sy} Uo uoISSILUGNS S, I MA 9y} JO AOBINDOE 3y} JBAO UOISIOBp
7 "ol SIY} 1B JUBLULIOD 0} JOU USSOoyd pue papuodsal SBY JAAA YL Jeyun;
juswajels jeuibuo sayy AJueo 10/pue Juswwod o) Auunyoddo ay} palayo
uaaq aAey Aeyl pue IMA Yl Yum pasiel usaq sey Jous juasedde siyl

"Joau00u) eq 0} Jeadde aioja18y) pinom Jusuidle)s siyy ‘eueT sbuj jo pua
8y} 1e JusmiaQ JeAry 8y} Jano abpug B ‘SWeU PUB ‘J0 DOUIJSIX AU} MOYS
9964 Bunep-aid ‘Aunjuagd ylenuamy ayy jo ued piw 0y Aues ay) wioly sdepy

‘Aisnolnaid aiay) abpuqg ou sem 318y} pue 9g6|
810490 ISIXd JOu pIp JUaMIaQ) JOATY 3y} 1an0 abpuq JAA 8YL

‘suoseas BuIMO0} Y} JOJ puB| S) SSOIOE ABM JO

6002
Ae ,S1 palep uoissiugng

1y6u oNigNd ou SI 310y} JBY} SHSSSE JSNUJ DPIM SIUYSHOA SUYL | (LAA) ISNIL SJPIM SIUSHIOA | 81-G gl
pajep Jaa
9A0QE SJUBWILIOD 385 SA0QE SJUSWIWOD 898 pue|bu3 feinjeN €8 9l
SJUBIWILIO) uonoalqo eweN abed qel

aelpiaypA sbu) axespiaym

J9pIO uonedsyipoy dey aauyeq 104 uoneslddy

1861 10V 8pISANUNOD 2 SYIPIAA




Page 57

$801M3G Aoue}nsuo?) g juswabeuepy Aep Jo siybiy oigng

S9JeI0SSY 4B UIqoy

"Josa Ou aABY JiIIS {|im AY) ‘Jaw uaaq Jou SeyY uone;siba;
Y} JO BLBJLD BY) I ‘9SED By} UBAQ dABY |[am ABW Yo1um ‘Uonsanb JnoYIM
pajdaooe asam sia)8) pue suomisodap asay) jey) 1se6bns | AA 3Ul ISIIUAM

(anoge sjuawwiod 93g) aya palisep ay}
aney 0} Jeadde jou 105213y} pinom pue ‘uoieleoaq Aoniels Juanbasqns
e Aq papoddns uaaq aney 0) seadde jou saop uonisodap st} ‘uiebe asuQ

"0861 PV shemybi ay1 jo (9) L€ uonoasg Jo suoisinoid sy}
Japun juawajels pue ueld e papiwgns uiebe ] MA 34} 2661 Ul

‘8}E2IPap O} UORUBJUI JO ¥OB| B JjeJjsuowap
0} juailynsul ale Ajuoyiny ayj 0} Japa) e Bungum se yons sjoe Jey) (spio
JO 9SNOH Ul JaJSayduUBWPOD) $a|NJ 40 SUNOD ayt "yied pabsje ay) jo siasn
je pajoasp pue ‘WAA0 Ajjuaioyyns aq 0} aAey pinom Joe Buikjend ssyjo Aue
pue ‘0861 1oV sAemybiy au} Jo (9) 1€ UKD JO SluBWRINDaI Y} UIYIM jlBy
Jou saop Ajuiepad 3 siybu oiqnd 9)eOIPaP 0} UOHUBIUI JO YOB] JO BOUBPIAS
se Ajenb Jaaamoy ‘jou saop Jape| B yong ‘Alioyiny ayl Aq pealadal
Ajluanbasqns pue |AAA 8} AQ Juas sem Jays; SIU) By IGNOP Ou S| BJ8Y )L

9861 uoi Qoyiny Aemybi uayy
8yYj 0} 19)3| € Jo Aem Aq papasse-al sem uoljisod sisni ) ayl

‘9]e0IPap O} LONUAJUI JO XOB| JO duUapIAS Buikyenb ajnsuoo jou seop pue
‘109j49 ou aney o} seadde pinom §sodap G/61L Y} SED BY) St SIY) §| "epew
aJem suonelepaq AI0JeIS yons ou jeyl S UMeIp aq Ued Jey} uoisnjouod
o|jqeuoseas Ajuo 8y} ‘Jsyew siy) uo pauonssnb Ajoaup USUM JAAA
8y} woyy asuodsal aanesado-0d Aue Jo ¥oej 8y} pue ‘uonelejpaq Alojniels e
Kq pamoyjo} sem uoi)isodap ay) Jey} Moys 0) 0UBPIAS AUe JO 3JUBSqE BY) U|

“JUBWIWIOD 0} Jou
uasoyd aney £sy) salew siy) uo puodsas Ajleul pIp ISl ayj ISIIUAA "dpew
siom suonesepsq Aoymels pannbal ay) Jayjaym SuUOISBOS0 snosawnu
uc payse uaaq aney Aey} pue JAAA SU) UM pasiel Uasq SeY anssi SIyL

‘pawelo uooa)osd ay) apiaoid )i SBOP 10U ‘3)edIPap 0} UOHURUI JO HOB|
9)elISUOWP BJ0JAIBY] 10U S0P pue ‘1083 BXE) Jou saop Jisodap |eRiul ayy
‘uonjeseloag Asojniels pasinbas ey ypm dn pamojjos ale suonsodap yons
ssajun ‘uoye;siba) ay; jo Buipsom ayl 0y anp ‘Jey; ‘senuoOYINY |BIOT JBYI0
Auew Jo jey) pue ‘(sesed pajejeiun Jayjo woly) |13suno) 40 jeyy Buipnipous
‘uoiuido jo Apoq [enuelsqns e S| aiay] josye Aue sey )l J9Yldym ISA0
1qnop si 18y} JaAsmoy ‘apelwl sem uonisodap sty Jey) Jgnop ou st a1ayj

'sBuj 8y
ssosoe Aem jo syybu oland Aue §o aoualsixa ayy buiAuap 0861
PV shkemybiy auy 0 (9)LE uoiPag Jo suoisinoid Jossaoapald
ay) Buisn juswalejs pue ueld B paIWIGNS IAMA BUl GZ61 Ul

"Mojeq
PaJPISUOD SI YIIYM ‘0861 10V SKEMUBIH By} JO (9) L€ UONOaS JO suaisiroid
lossaoapaid sy} Jspun apew suopisodep oy} O} SI9@1 ) SSOUN ‘IAMA
ay} Aq papinosd s) 4o pasudwos abusjieys pabaje siy) 1eym Jo SiEJep ON

G/61 W kem
40 146U a1qnd e jo sduasixe ay) pabualieys Ajjleuuo) [AAA YL

9

sjuaww 9

u poefqo

sweN

abed

qel

SYEIPISUM SBU| BXEIPISUM

18pI0 uonedyipopy dep sAuyaQq Joj uonesiddy

1861 1V apIsAUN0D B BHIPIA




Page 58

$801A13G Aoue)nsuo)) B uswabeuepy Aepn 30 SYBIY dHand

$9)el00SsY LED UIGoy

"1ounoy)) sy} Aq papasse Jo Jno }as uasq
2J0J213Y) JoU sey anor ayjy JepiO palsanbas ay) aowold 0} ased e sy
2JBY} J0U 10 JBYJOYM ‘)i 910jaq S2UBPIAS By} uodn paseq ‘auiuwualap o} Buiaq
ajos ) ‘feieduw sulewal Ajsoyiny ay) ‘@)ejdwod aie suonebisaaul s )i se
aw) e yons |iun ‘sang AIOINJEIS SY YIIM SDUBPIOIJE U JBPIO LOHRIYIPOIN
deyy aauyeq e to} uoneoydde ue Bunebisaaur si jouNoD YOA J0 AN

‘louno)
MIOA 0 A1 Aq 1no jos se sBuj sy} JaA0 MOHd OU St aiayy

‘olignd sem Aem ay) jey) Aes oym SI1sumo
pue) snoinaid JO S0USPIAG BY} SPNIOUl ISINOD JO ‘SIOP YoIym ‘Auoyiny
3yl 21045q 20USPIA3 Jasn jo Apoq ay} o} Aiesjuod pue aaiensads Ajeind
S1 UOIUBSSE S JSNJ | 8Y] "Way)] wiejo 0} AIeSsasau )i JapIsuod Jupip A3Yj jeu
JAem jo sybu ongnd Ajsnoingo os, asem Aay) ajdoad |BSO] By} O} Isnedsq
uayo ‘pawie|d jou asam syjed SNOIAQO AJOA pue ‘JUSIOUE BJAYM S3OUEB)SUI
Auew ase asay)] ‘sjybu oignd jo sousisixe sjqissod ay) apnoaid ‘Aem
Aue up Jou saop pawiep Aisnoinaid Jou sem ajnos pabajje ay) jey) 1oey syl

‘JusWases
ajeaud e aq 0) paispisuod sem ) Jeyl ajqeqord alow
s) )| ‘Aem jo WyBu olgnd e pasapisuod usaq shkeme sey Aem
ay} Jayjaym suonsanb sainpacsord deyy aapuyaq jeulbuo oy
6761 8y} Jjapun pawieo Buiaq jou Aem ay) yim ajdnod ‘G/61
pue ggel uaamjaq uondalqo Jo wiepd Joud Aue jo 3oe| ayyL

‘anoqe
opew usaq Apeasje aney subis ay} jo Guipsom sy} Buipiebas spuswwon

‘uonje|noads |
8SIN0J JO ‘Sl SIY1 "way) Jo sonou Aue axej Jou pip Aduns Asy) jeys Jo ‘way)y
o} Aidde jou pip subis ay) ‘otjqnd aq 0} Aem ay) pasepisuod Aay) se ‘asnedssq
aq Aew 3 ‘spuiw yjay) ui 49ysiBas Jou pip Ailduns Aeyy ‘asn Buinuucs nay)
wanaid AjjeaisAyd jou pip subis ay) se esnesaq aq Aew }| “subis Aue jjedal
Jou op Aay} Aym Aes o) ejgissodwil S| }} SULOj SOUBPIAS Jash Lidy) Ajued
0} ajqejieae 1abuoj ou Buiaq ased siy) ui sessaulim jo Auofew syl YIA

‘apew
asom Aayy saye Ajuoys pejosla aiam subis ay) ‘AIBJJUOD BY) O} 9oUSPIAS
Aue jo aouasqe ay) ui ‘Jey} apnjouod o0} 8|qeuoseal aq Ajuo Aews i pue ‘9ol
ul paiaplo asam abpuq ay) uo subis ay) jey) aouspine Ajuleued si aisyy

subis
ay} Jo uondaIs By} 0) uonoeal Aue JO S0UBPIAS OU S| AIdY]

‘996 ) SOUIS SOUB)SIX Ut diam subls
yons jey) uayobioj 10 pasoubs ‘sas 0} pajiey aney o0} teadde
yjed ay) pasn aAey 0) Wield oym (e JaA ‘(diysiaumo %00} 1 MA
jjun awos) subis Aue Jansu ai1om 313U} JBY) 9)B}S SOSSAUNA

(Mmo]aq) SjusWle)S UIOMS By} JO D)0 AJBLILINS PUB SIUSLULIOD 835

saneaibieH
pue uojsiey ‘uoxiq SISSOly JO SIUSWARIS UIOMS By}
ul pajenueisqns ale asay] ‘sjeuajew paysiqnd sejeb ‘saousy
‘ssaooe U0 suonoujsar ‘subis ybnosyy psyosioid Ajsnosobia
usaq SABY |MA JO sisaisiul ay) s0/61L Aues ay) aoulg

sjusWIWO)

uonoelqo

swieN

abey

qel

axeIplauM sBu| axespisym

18pI0 uonesyipoy dew anuyaq 1oy uonesyddy

1861 10V apisAnunoD g SjIpItM




Page 59

$801A9g Aoueynsuoy g Juswabeueyy Aepn Jo sjybry dland

SaJeI00SSY LED uqoy

‘pouad awn
jueas|al sy} Buunp pannooo sjuana asay) jeys Buipincid ‘Jasn o} uondnisalut
pue a)niisuod Aew xoeq uin} pespul pip A3y} ji ‘siasn Jo yoeq Buiuiny ayy
pue ‘sjybis oyqnd 81eo1pap 0} UORUSIUI JO HOB| B Sje)SUCWSP 0} JUBIDIYNS 3q
Aew sabuajjeys yong ‘passjunodua uaym pabuajjeyd sem i jey; Ing ‘aoejd
Bunye; sem ajnos uonesydde ay) J0 asn SWOS JBY) SWIYUOD SIUBPIAS SIYL

‘uonebiisanul
ay) 0} JuBAdas Jou ase 3ol uonedidde oy} Wol Aeme asn pue suapiou|

"NOB( LN} 0} W3y} payse pue Aem
J0 Wb6u o1ignd ou sem a1ay) ajdoad pjo} shkem|y ‘a)eiplaYM pue
POOMIO)S Udamaq Bupijem auoAue Jaw 1ana AjpieH sbuj siiH
yuoN Buoje spiemyinos yueq Janu ay) Buoje Jo aynos Bujney
Rey sy} Buoje Buntiem asem Aoy uayo ‘yled saissiwsed
ay} wuo; Aeme passjunooua oalam sjdoad suoisesdoe uQ

“pOYLI SI BN|BA [BIJUBPIAS
113y} yons se pue ‘papua pey pouad Buiuoxoas jueasjar ay) ioye soed
500} Suoioe asay} jo Jle uay) ‘yied pabajje ay} Jo adudSIXS Y uonsanb
Ol ||B 0} JUBIOYNS BIaM GYBL UI pajoase subis ay) jey) pajdenoe st 3t 4

‘Buiuapiem
pue saou9 ouele ‘sajeb paxoo} ‘subis jo uonBUIGWOD
e Aq pajjonuod Ajsnoinobu sem ssasoe awy jey) Suunp pue
uapIBAA SAIBSaY By} Sem uoxig JN 0002 PUB v86] usemieg

awy Aue je siasn
sbuajieyo pinom suapiem jey) Aldwis ‘aInsoj Jo sueaw [esisAyd Aue pajels
Jjou Inq Pasod, SeM aAI9Sal ay) jey} papuodsal aney Asyl pue ‘suus}
jeanjoeld ul padiojua alam SuOISINOId SBY) MOY PaYSe Uaaq BABY JMA SUL

‘Aluo siaquisy
ISniL 0} pajoLIsel 8q O} S| SS300B 'Bunf |z 0 |udy | poued
ay) Buunp pue Aeq sewjsuyn uo 3dsoxs punol hww% e uado
aq 0] si 9AI9sal 8y} Jey) sajels osje ued Juswabeuew ayl

(sp10 Jo asnoyH
9y} ul ase) JajsayduBwWpPoS)) uonsanb up Aem ayj JO s19sn 3y} Je pajoalp aq
}snw sjoe yong ‘uonejstbal ay) jo Bujueaw ay} ulyim aJedIpap 0} uonuajul
40 )OE| B ajesjsuowsp 0} JuaRynsul aq pinom uejd jusweabeuew |eusajut
ue ulyim ‘ ajedipap 0} uonuaul ou Buisabbns ‘suoisinoid jo uoisnjoul sy

‘paxoojun Ya) Buiaq ayeb ueuisepad Juaoefpe ayj Inq
paxoo; Buiaq abpuq ay) 1e 81eb sendIyan ay} JO SjieIdp sapn|oul
sy °sseooe pue juswabeuew pue| o) Buneds suoisinoid
snouea pepnpul siyy sbup ayy 105 ueld juswabeuew
s)snil a8y} Bugum ul panjoAul sem uoxig JW 0861 Ul

‘ajeb JejnodiysA paxoo; ay)
0} Ixau pajeoso| 8)eb ueuisapad e Ag pajej|ioe) sem sy 18y} poojsIapun si i
‘abipuq ay) ss010 0) 8|qIssod uaaq aAey jsnul )i ‘yied siy} sseooe 0} AuealD)
“Jon 9y} apisbuoje ‘ebpuqg ay) woiy spiemyinos suns yied aaissiuuad ayy

sBu| siiiH yuoN jo Aiepunog uiaypou ey) se e} se yied
apISIaAL BAIssiad e 0) pajoLsal sem Jeak ayy Jnoybnoiy)
$S300e pue ‘uoseas Oulpeasq pug Buunp isniy ey jo
sJaquiswd 0} pajoulsal ‘awil Jey) Je ‘Sem aAIasal ay) 0} SSeddY

"SUOROLSaI SS800e Buioiojud papnioul suapiem
oy} JO sanp 8yl 'J9A0 %00} suspiem Alejunjoa jo dnosb
e Jey) Joye pue 'uspiem awi [N} B peY SIBUMO Byl 8761 U

‘sbuiuana
Aep)9am JBWLWINS JSOW PUB SPUSYIBM JSOW  ‘SUOISBID0
Auew uo sbBu) aeispjaypy PauSIA 000Z Pue G/GL usamieg

‘7861 9ouls siossaoapasd S} pue IN JO payJom seH

‘1abeuepy 8AI9S9Y JOIUSS B SB puebul [eJnjeN J0§ SHIOM

6002 Aewy

8 Palep uonesepaq Aojnmels

uoxig3 L

€261

9l

sjuswiw 9

u ndelqo

oweN

Beyq

qet

axespjaypn sbuj axeplaym

JapJO uonedytpo deyy aaliuyaq 104 uoneayddy

1861 10V SPISAIUN0D B BYIPIAN




Page 60

$921M198 Aoueynsuo)) g Juawabeuepy Aepp jo sybIy oland

S9}RI00SSY L) uIqoy

"9)e2Ipep 0} UOHUBIUI JO HOB)

JO 9OUDPIAS JUBIOYYNS SINJISUOD SBAjESWAY) U ‘A3Y) Op Jou ‘Joaya palinbes
8y} aAey Jou op Aoyl suonese(paq Aloynjels paiinbax asyy Jo aoussqe
8y} Ul 19ABMOY PORILLIGNS BIOM SJUBWINDOP 8say) Jey) aindsip jou S| alay|

FENET]
Jayuny e Aq paoiojutal sem G/64 Ul pajels se uolysod sisndp
ayl 9864 ul ‘sybu ongnd Jo souaysixa ayy Buikusp Auoyiny
KemyBiH oy yum sueid paysodap Jsni} ay) 661 PUE G/6) Ul

‘uogeoydde siyy Bujutuuaiap ul anjeA pajiw jO S ING ‘SPIEMUO 8661 WO}
SJUSAD JNOQE UOHBULIOUI punoibxoeq [njasn sapinoid Ajuiepad jj "aouapiad
sanb ssaupMm SIyl yotym o} pouad ay} sajep-aid 1asn jo pouad Jueaajas sy

"yoeq pauiny
2q pinom yled aaissiuuad ay) uey) Jeyjo sainos Buisn punoy
suoAuy ‘ajnos uonediidde sy} uo ussq aaey o) Jeadde Jayueu
‘yied anissiuad ay) uo uey) Jayio Bupjlem sjdoad jo sjes
OM] uaas 1an8 Ajuo sey ay sbuj ayy uo ads swn ayy Buung

"Spuayasm
pue sAep ¥oam yjoq susiA Jejnbas panjoaur yoym alis sbuj
ay) Joj a|qisuodsal Ajoalip sem 3y J00Z PUB 8661 usamieg

‘sieah
GZ 40} UOIJBAIBSUOD INjeU Ul paJom SBH ‘8664 ouls uolsod
Jey} ul uSaq SBY pue SAaAI9SSY jJO pPESH SEB ISnUl SIpIM
alysHIoA a3y} jo Aojdwa ayy ui 3stbojoo3 ue si saaeabie I

6002 Ae ,£1
pajep uonesedaqg Aonels

sanealbieH 4 g

0e-L2

9l

‘uonesydde

siy} Buuiuusiep ul anjea paywy Jo si Ing ‘6861 pue ZgelL usamiaqg
SJUaA3 Jnoge uoneuuojul punoibyoeq |njasn sapiaosd Ajuiepad 3| ‘souapine
SOAID ssaulm Sy} Yoium 0} poudd ay} sajep-aid Jasn Jo pouad Jueas|as ay

ajnou uoijesiidde
ayy asn o} Buiky usas auokue sem UOISEDD0 auo Aluo uQ

‘pebusjieyo pue
U9as uaaq aABY Jou pinom ajnos uoljedlidde auy Buisn suoAue
Jeu; Ajaxiiun si i ays auy uo juads awi o Junowe 8y} 0} ang

‘yied apisianu
8yl O} ¥OUS Jsnw SIONSIA jey) Buiuuyuod UueqIaAu ay) uo
sufis yym punots Jeak |je uado uaaq aaey sbuj ay) 6861 aouIS

‘siseq
Auo puuad e uo sem sbuj ay} 0} ssaode 6861 — 2861 WoI4

‘uaplem
J99JUN|OA B SE J9JE] PUe JOUSIA B SB JSIy “Z86| douIS sIseq
Ajep 1sowie ue uo sbuj sy} 0} JOYISIA B USaq Sey uojsiey JN

6002 Aepy
47} Pelep uonesepaq Aoinels

uolsiey S 0

9e-vZ

9l

sjuswiwo)

uopoefqo

oswien

obey

qey

aeplaym sbu| axeIpiayM

13pIO uonesyipop dep aauyaq 104 uoyediddy

1861 10V apISAIILNOD B BHIPIAA




Page 61

s80108G Aoueynsuoy) 3 Juawsbeuepy Aepn Jo siubiy ongnd

S8)RI00SSY LB uIqoy

‘Paysiiqejsa
uasq Apeasje pey siybu j anjea jenuapire spli jO 8q 8i0jeidy) PINOM pue
‘uonjeIapIsuod Japun pouad awi) JueAdja: sy} ay) ajep isod o} sieadde siy

paxo0|
uaaq sey abpug Asjreg ay} uo a1eb ay) 8661 1SEI| JB BVUIS

‘paysliqelss usaq Apealje pey
SyBU J) anjeA jeRuapIAG S|l JO 8q B10}B1aY) PINOM PUB ‘UCIBISPISUOD Japun
pouad awi jueasias ay} oep jsod o) jeadde sayoeosdde asay) jo yjog

"SUOIOLIISaI
ssaooe 0} Duneias subis mau pasepio Isnil 3yl 68861
U] "panowa) uaaq pey .yied apisisAl 0) dasy aseald, Bunels
ubis Js1ayy Jeyy BuisiApe iaye] B paaiadal Jsnil ayl €861 Ui

UOoIJeIaPISUOD Japun
pouad swiy jueasjas ay) ajep jsod o) Jeadde os|e sayoroidde asay} Jo yjog
"SAID9YD 150D aJ0Ww pue JxdIND S| )l se payoeas aq ued Juswaslbe ajoym
s$900.4d dey aARIuYS(Q BY) 0} dAlBUIA)jE Ue Sk sjuawaalbe uonesipap 3aas
0} s Ajuoyiny 10} aonoesd uowiwod e S| 3 "ISIXe PIp Siybl ou Jey} paapisucd
psuiaouod s fuoyiny 8y Jey) 1sabbins 3 saop Jou ‘eynos uonesydde oy}
Jono syybu oyqnd jo aoudsixa alqissod ayy apnjoasd Jou Op suoloe 8say )

pasnjas a1om pajsanbal asay] 'sbuj sy 1eno syjed Bunead
jnoge sayoeosdde apew aaey (jounod Buipny ise3l) 6661
pue (jouno) AJunod apIsIaquing) 286l SUOISEDD0 OM} UQ

‘UOIBISPISUOD JSPUN pPoLIad awl} JUBAS|a By} Jjep
1sod 0) sieadde 3 senamoy aoe|d %00} sbuajieyd siy) ey} pajndsip Jou st}

Wiy 0} USYLIM SEM JBN3)
e se pajuawnoop si siy] ‘yjed aaissiuuad ayy uo jou nq ‘sbuj
3y} uo punoy usym pabuajjeyd sem JuapISal |BOO] B |86) Y|

JSixa Jou op sybL Jey) ouapIAS Jou Si sty 'siybu ognd jo aous)sixe
8y} Jano andsip Buipuels Buo| & sem ai1ay) Jey) PSSIAPE USSq SABY PINOM
ays/ay 1qnop ou awn ay) je Auoyiny AemybiH ay) paynsuod ays/ay pey
J9ASMOY ‘uoijeunIoquo Siy} JOB JOYINE Sy} SJoyM SB UCHEBLWLIOMI OU S| 818y

‘sbuj
2y} Jono Aem jo sjybu ogqnd ou aiem a1y} jeyl pajels yolum
spoiUe ue paysiqnd ssaid BulusAl SnysSHIOA 3U) ¥661 Uj

"9sED SiY) JO SWIODINO Sy} U0 Joaye Aue aaey 0} Way)
10§ 5,096 piw ay) ut paonpoid aq 0) pey aAey pinom Aayj jey; seadde pinom
)l "paonposd asem Aay) uaym pue soualpne jabie} Jiay) uodn uepuadep
84 ||IM 1088 J18Y} Inq papiroid Uusaq dABY SIUBWNDOP YoNs Jo se|dwexs oN

"Ajuo yjed anissiuuad auy
eln Ul sBuj ay) 03 ssaooe jey) ajels yolum spieo diysiaquisul
pue sjoyes| ‘sajole snouea paysignd Sey Isnil 8yl

's)ybu asoy;
40O SSO] 8y} ul ynsal pinom sabuajeyd Jaje] Jo Junowe ou ‘awl} Jeyy Buunp
paysiiqeiss asom sjybu Ji pue ‘diysioumo iy} sajepald yoIum 20USPIAD
Jasn jo Apoq |enuelsqns B st 219yl "LMA o4l AQ aus ay} jo uonisinboe
Buimojoj yo paddoip pey 1asn Jo s|aAa| ay} asnesaq aq Aews Ji dAleUIS)Y

‘pansst asam sabuajeyd
yons ou ai05218y; pue Aem jo Jybu oygnd e Buleq se Ajeoo| pejdeocce

SBM }i 8snedaq aq pjnod uoneolidde ay) uo sydoad o) sabusjieyd Jo xoe| syt
> R

*asn 40 joAs} ay} uanlb
ajnos uoneoydde ayy jo siasn o} sabuajeyo Buipiebas jus|is
fiqexpewsas ale Ing ‘yjed aaissiwad auyy uey) Jayjo assymAue
punoy y pabusjieys aiem ajdoad jeys moys spiodal sysnit 8yl

SJUUWOD

uopdeiqo

eweN

abey

qel

axeipay sbuj sxeIpisym

JapiO uonesyipoly depy saliuya( Joj uones)|ddy

1861 10V 8pIsAnunoD 3 sjIIPIM




Page 62

$801M3S Aoueynsuod B juswabeue Aepn Jo siubiy ongng

sa)eI100SSY Jen ulqoy

*ss8004d Buijew uoIsioap ay) 0} JUBAS|S) JOU Si SIY )

ays ay) Buysia
suemg JadoOYAA O} SaJe|al JoJa| BY} JO S8l By Jo Ajuolew sy

‘uosiad
u; ssaooe Bujjjonuod pue Buucjuow suopiem uodn jueyas Ajediouud
S 3INSOD 3Y) Jey} sueadde | 10.; uj JoayYa Jey) 0} Isanbai e apdsap papirosd
uaaq sey pajuswajdwy AjesisAyd sI ainNso B UyoNs MOy JO S|iElsp ON

"pasold st AI8sal Ay Jey) sapirold ) ng uoneiedaid Jo ajep s)
0} BNP S0UBAS|S! SN} JO SI 086 L Pajep ueld Juswabeuew ay]

‘Buiwiooypo) usaq sey Jamsue ou Jng I AMA Uuos ybnos
uaaq SeyY uoiedoyle|) ‘dpeW uaeq Sey 996 0} Joud paysixa ebpuq ou jey)
wile[o ay siseq jeym uodn Jeooun si J) 81040953U) | 161 Ise8| Je aouls paddew
usaq sey (abpug sbu| 10 abpug ayepiaysn) 26pug B jo 8dusisIxs oyl

“I8JieW 8Y} JO SARBUILLISISP 8q 0}
SWaas 996 0} Joud 8IN0J BY} UO 3INONLS AUB JO SOUSSAE Y|

‘sjybu Jo Juswysyqeise
8y} jJO JnoAej} Ul 9sed dey ewud Aue WNUSAO O] JuaDYNSul ase
Aay) uonesepag Aojnels juanbasgns B jo eouasqe ayj ui pue ‘syybu ayy
40 @ou8)sIxa ay) uonsanb oju jjeo saop ysodep e yons Jayieym 0} SE Jgnop
AWOS S| 819y} ‘Jaramoy (9) L€ uonoas 0861 1oV sAemybiy ay Jo uonejsibay
Jossaoapald ay) Japun apew sysodap ey} uodn paseq aq o} sieadde ajep
G/61 9yl '996| BouI0 Ul pajdasa subis ay) jo enlia Aq ‘paasbe si sy} ISIUM

G/64 UeY) 13)e] ou st abuajjeyd Jo alep syl

"SuotsSitugns snojaeld s
1MA 8y uuoy Buisue sauanb o3
asuodsal uo si Jas} siy ;910N

6002 AeW 92 PRIEP J9RS] LMA

Lol

St

sjus W)

uopefqo

eweN

ebeyq

qel

ayeupIauMm sbu| axesplaym

JapiQ uoijesyipoy dep aagiuyaq Joy uonesiddy

1861 10V SpISAUN0D 7 BJIPIM




Page 63

Annex 7

Legal Tests




Legislative Tests

Test to be Applied
When considering an application for a DMMO to add a public right of way
to the Definitive Map the burden of proof initially rests with the applicants
to prove their case. If a prima facia case in favour of the application is
established, the onus then falls upon anyone opposing the application to
provide evidence in rebuttal. The standard of proof is the civil test of ‘on
the balance of probability .

If, having taken into account all of the available relevant evidence, the
Authority is satisfied that, the alleged rights subsist or are reasonably
alleged to subsist the Authority has a duty to make a DMMO. Such an
Order can however, only be confirmed if, on the balance of probability,
the alleged rights can be shown to actually subsist.

Evidential Tests
Highways Act 1980, Section 31
Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states:

“(1) Where a way over land, other than a way of such character that
use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the public as
of right and without interruption for a full period of twenty years, the
way is deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless there is
sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that period to
dedicate it.”

“(2)The period of twenty years referred to in subsection (1) above is
to be calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of the
public to use the way is brought into question whether by notice, such
as is mentioned in subsection (3) below or otherwise.”

“(3) Where the owner of the land, which any such way as aforesaid
passes has erected in such manner as to be visible by persons using
the way a notice inconsistent with the dedication of the way as a
highway; and has maintained the notice after the first January 1934,
or any later date on which it was erected, the notice, in the absence of
proof of a contrary intention, is sufficient evidence to negative the
intention to dedicate the way as a highway”

Section 31(1) has two ‘limbs’ the first provides that proof of twenty
years continuous user “as of right” endorses a claim that a highway
exists; the second (sometimes referred to as ‘the proviso’) provides that
proof of a lack of intention to dedicate the way as a highway defeats
the claim.

Section 31 is further supplemented by Section 32 of the Highways Act
1980, which states:



Page 65

“A court or other tribunal, before determining whether a way has or
has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such
dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration any map,
plan or history of the locality or other relevant document, which is
tendered in evidence, and shall give weight thereto as the court or
tribunal considers justified by the circumstances, including the
antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by whom
and the purpose for which it was made or complied, and the custody
in which it has been kept and from which it is produced.”

Common Law

Before public rights can be asserted under the Common Law, a
landowner must be shown to have intended to dedicate the right of way
over his land. The question of dedication is purely one of fact and public
user is no more than evidence, which has to be considered in the light of
all available evidence. Public use will not, therefore, raise the inference
of dedication where the evidence, in its totality, shows that the public
right of way status was not intended.

At Common Law, there is no specified period of user, which must have
passed before an inference of dedication may be drawn. It is necessary
to show, in order that there may be a right of way established, that the
route has been used openly, “as of right’, and for so long a time that it
must of come to the knowledge of the owners of the fee that the public
were so using it as of right.

If the landowner has done exactly what would be expected from any
owner who intended to dedicate a new highway, the time may be
comparatively short. However, as a matter of proof at Common Law, the
greater the length of user that can be demonstrated, the stronger the
inference of dedication will (usually) be.

Factors such as desirability, suitability, financial viability, need or even
public safety, whilst genuine concerns cannot lawfully be taken into
account, when making a decision. Therefore, whilst there may be some
genuine concerns about the anti-social behaviour occurring along part of
the alleged public right of way, it cannot lawfully be taken into account
when determining the application to modify the Definitive Map.




Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67 Agenda Item 5

COUNCIL

Decision Session 2 February 2010
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Public Rights Of Way — Application for Definitive Map Modification
Order, Alleged Public Footpath from Main Street to North Lane
(Love Lane), Wheldrake

Summary

1. This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining whether or not
to make a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) to add the route (shown
by a broken black line on Plan 1 (Annex 1)) to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath. In determining this issue it is important to consider the available
evidence against the requirements of the legislation (see Annex 6).

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that the Executive Member approves Option A and
authorises the making of a DMMO to add the route as a Public Footpath to the
Definitive Map.

Reason

3. There is evidence in support of the existence of a public right of way over the
application route thus requiring the authority to make the order: Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981, Section 53(3)(c)(i).

Background

4. In September 1993 Wheldrake Parish Council submitted, to North Yorkshire
County Council, an application for a DMMO to add the footpath, shown by a
broken black line (the application route)on Plan 1 (Annex 1). Then in 1996, as
a result of Local Government Reorganisation, the application which had still to
be determined and remained outstanding, was passed to City of York Council
as the newly appointed Surveying Authority for the area.

5. In 2002 the Council commenced preliminary investigations into this, and a
number of other similar applications made by Wheldrake Parish Council. Whilst
these investigations were substantially completed at that time, the applications
were never formally determined. Therefore, more recently, and in order to



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 68

bring these matters to a close, the previously considered evidence was
checked and ratified so as to allow the matter to be brought to a conclusion.

Summary of Evidence

Historical Documents

As part of the investigations a range of documents have been consulted, and
these are listed in Annex 2 of this report. Where the documents are considered
to have some evidential value in this case, they are further summarised within
the report, with more detailed comments included in Annex 3.

Ordnance Survey Maps
The physical existence of a path or track is shown on the Ordnance Survey
Maps for the area, but they do not attribute any status to the route.

1910 Finance Act Maps and Field Books

The 1910 Finance Act Plan shows that the application route was excluded from
the valuation of the adjoining hereditaments (land holdings). As a result of the
path being excluded form valuation there is no corresponding Field Book entry.

Plan of Wheldrake Village
A plan entitled “Part of Village of Wheldrake” dated 20.8.46 (presumably 1946)
shows the existence of the application route, but is silent as to status.

User Evidence

The application was supported by five user evidence forms, and an additional
two forms were located in the Parish Files. These user witnesses claim use of
the application route during the period 1920 — 2002 (82 years). The forms are
summarised in Annex 4 of this report, and the periods of claimed use
summarised on the User Graph in Annex 5.

All of the witnesses claim to have used the route, “as of right” and without
interruption. One of the witnesses lives alongside the path and has always
considered it to be public. Four of the withesses were interviewed over the
telephone as part of the 2002 investigations.

Comments on Evidence

Historical Documents

The Ordnance Survey Maps certainly confirm the physical existence of the path
as being a feature in the village for some considerable time, however such
maps carry a disclaimer to the effect that the showing of any path, track or way
is not evidence of the existence of public highway rights. The 1910 Finance Act
documents provide good evidence in support of the application route enjoying
public highway rights.

User Evidence

In common with many cases of this nature across the country, the fact that the
application is being determined some sixteen years after it was made, is
problematic so far as the continued availability of witnesses is concerned. The



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 69

evidence of the four witnesses who were interviewed should be given more
weight than that of the witnesses who were not, which can only be taken as
read. Notwithstanding this problem there is a clear indication of long
uninterrupted use and acceptance of the application route as a public right of
way.

Assessment of Evidence

Historical Documents

The recording and depiction of the application route on the available
documentary evidence is consistent with it being a public right of way however,
on its own it is probably insufficient to meet the legislative tests. This evidence
should however be considered alongside, and in support of the user evidence
to demonstrate the use and reputation of the route as a public right of way.

User Evidence

There is no evidence to suggest that the existence of the application route has
ever been called into question (challenged), and prior to 2006 this would have
precluded consideration of this case under the provisions of Section 31 of the
Highways Act 1980. However the Natural Environment & Rural Communities
Act 2006 amended the legislation so that where such a challenge does not
exist, the date of the submission of an application for a Definitive Map
Modification Order may be used instead. The reckoning date for calculating any
twenty year period of user is therefore, in this case, 1993; the relevant twenty
year period being 1973 to 1993.

The user evidence suggests uninterrupted user, “as of right” and by the public
throughout the whole of the period, and for quite some time before it.
Furthermore the route continues to be open and available for use. There would
therefore appear to be a prima facie case in favour of the establishment of
public rights over the application route.

No objections to the registration of this route as a public footpath have been
received, nor has any evidence been discovered to suggest any lack of
intention to dedicate such rights, on the part of a landowner.

Consultation

Consultations have been carried out in accordance with the Parliamentary
Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice on consultation, which
includes consultation with user groups etc. The Parish Council and landowners
have also been consulted. No objections have been received.

The Parish Council commented, along with the original application that:

“This “snicket” is a long established short cut between Main Street and
North Lane and has always been considered a village lane. In former
times it was used for access to the village pump and playing fields. Its
position opposite the village store in Main Street and opposite the village



20.

21.

22.

Page 70

school in North Lane generates consistent use today by shoppers and
school children wishing to avoid the hazards of the road at Dalton Hill.”

Ward Councillors
Clir C Vassie — No comments received.

Political Parties
Clir S Galloway (Lib Dem) — No comments received.

Clir R Potter (Labour) — ‘Happy to support the modifications’ comments
received 30" December, 2009.

Clir I Gillies (Conservative) — No comments received.

Clir A D’Argone ( Green Party) — No comments received.
Options

Option A: If, having considered all of the available evidence the Executive
Member decides that the alleged public rights do exist, the Executive member
should resolve that:

a) The Director of City Strategy be authorised to instruct the Head of Legal
Services to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a public
footpath, along the route A — B on Plan 1 attached to this report, to the
Definitive Map;

b) If no objections are received, or any objections that are received, are
subsequently withdrawn, the Head of Legal Services be authorised to
confirm the Order made in accordance with (a) above; or

c) If any objections are received, and not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be passed to the Secretary of State for confirmation.

Option B: If, having considered all of the available evidence, the Executive
Member may decide that the alleged public rights do not exist, the Executive
Member should resolve that:

a) The application to modify the Definitive Map be refused.

b) The applicant be advices of their right to appeal.
Corporate Priorities

If it is determined that the available relevant evidence shows that a right of way
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist and is added to the map the
benefits of doing so would link into the Council’s Corporate priorities. A public
right of way is sustainable, car free and provides access to health and
recreation opportunities thus contributing to the priorities of making York a
Sustainable and a Healthy City.



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

Page 71

Implications

Financial

If it is determined to progress a DMMO it will have to be advertised in the local
press. The cost of advertising the order would be in the region of £1500. If an
order is made, and no objections are received the order will be confirmed and
re-advertised, again at a cost of £1500.

If objections to the order are received, and not withdrawn, the outcome of the
order will be decided by the Secretary of State, possibly by means of a Public
Inquiry. The cost of a Public Inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the order is confirmed by either the Council or the Secretary of State the
authority has to accept that the route is maintainable at the public expense.

Acceptance is not as such a new obligation but is part of the Council’s statutory
duty to keep that map up to date and formally record the rights of the public
where those rights exist but are not yet shown and recorded in the definitive
map and statement.

Human Resources
There are no human resource implications.

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.

Legal

City of York Council is the surveying authority for the purposes of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, and has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive
Map and Statement for its area is kept up to date.

If, and when, the Authority discovers evidence to suggest that the Definitive
Map and Statement needs updating, it is under a statutory duty to make the
necessary changes. A DMMO enables any changes to the map and statement
to be made.

Before the Council can make the a DMMO to add a route to the definitive map,
as is the subject of this report, it must be satisfied that, taking into account the
available evidence, that a right of way can from the evidence reasonably be
alleged to exist. If it can, the authority must make the order. If objections are
received during the process and not withdrawn the order must be forwarded to
the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State will appoint an Inspector who
will test the evidence and determine the outcome of this application.

DMMO'’s do not create any new public rights of way they seek to record those
already in existence but not formerly recorded in the definitive map and
statement. Issues for example such as safety, security and desirability whilst
being genuine concerns cannot be taken into consideration. The DMMO
process requires an authority to look at all the available evidence, both
documentary and user, before making a decision.



Page 72

Crime and Disorder
33. There are no crime and disorder implications.

Information Technology
34. There are no IT implications.

Property
35. There are no property implications.

Other

36. If the definitive map modification order process concludes that public rights do
exist the public footpath becomes maintainable at the public expense and
should be recorded as such on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public
Expense. The Council, as the highway authority for public rights of way, has a
duty to maintain the public footpath to a standard that allows use by lawful
traffic: the right of way is on foot only.

Risk Management

37. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, Options A is
subject to internal budgetary pressures (financial). There are no risks
associated with Option B.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Joanne Coote Damon Copperthwaite, Assistant Director,
(Definitive Map Officer) City Development and Transport
Network Management
(TCimD?g%o&msgf 48;2“3”390”) Report v | Dpate  22.10.2010

el No: Approved
Wards Affected: Al [ ]

Wheldrake

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers:

Evidence evaluated and background report prepared by Consultant: Robin Carr
Associates, Public Rights of Way Management and Consultancy Services

Highways Act 1980

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Rights of Way: A Guide to Law and Practice, Fourth Edition, by John Riddall and
John Trevelyan.



Page 73

England and Wales Court of Appeal (Civil Division) Decisions: R v Secretary of State
for Wales ex parte Emery (1997)

Annexes:

Annex 1: Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Main Street to North Lane (Love
Lane), Wheldrake

Annex 2: List of documents consulted
Annex 3: Summary of Documentary Evidence
Annex 4: Summary of User Evidence

Annex 5: Graph showing Periods of Claimed User
Annex 6: Legal Tests



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

Annex 1

Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Main Street to North Lane (Love
Lane), Wheldrake




Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
| Application for Definitive Map Modification Order

Claimed Path;:

Grid Ref: SE 681 450

g
ANIEN NN \
N
Claimed Public Footpath, Main Street to North Lane, Wheldrake W@
(Love Lane) v
)
Scale 1:1250 Drawn By: Date: 6 August 2003
Ongmating Group: Projoct: Drawing No.
|Public Rights of Way
9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office

® Crown Copyright. Unauthorised repreduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings
Telephone: 01904 613161 York Cit

Puad 1




Annex 2

List of documents consulted

Page 77




Page 78

Wi_ o, ... 1981
Application for Definitive Map Modification Order
Love Lane: Main Street to North Lane Wheldrake

Documents Consulted

Enclosure Award, Map and Act
Tithe Plan and Apportionment

1910 Finance Act records
Ordnance Survey Maps

Rights of Way Act 1932 Depositions
NPACA 1949 Maps and Documents
Local Authority Files

Quarter Sessions records

Parish Council Records

Other Highway Authority records
Local Historical Maps

Deposited Plans

Estate Records

Deeds

Aerial Photographs

| 4;4;4&(2.

Robin Carr Associates
Public Rights of Way Management & Consultancy Services



Page 79

Annex 3

Summary of Documentary Evidence




Page 80

$80IM138 ASUBYNSUOY) 2 uswabeuep Aepp Jo siubIY dland
$9}21008SY JIED UIGOY

‘aIndsIp uj st Jey) Jonew e Jaaamoy Jou st siyj ‘paonpoad
sem dew ay} awyp ay) Je adudsixa |eoisAyd sy uuyuod ssop
INg ‘ajnos ay) 0} sniejs Aue NQUIE JOU SSOP JUBWNDOP SIY]

uejd Siyy o Saul| PIIOS OM} AQ PIPUNOQ UMOYS SI 8N0J By |

axeIpaynn Jo abejliA au} Jo Wed jo ueid

"Hos awos jo snjejs Aemybiy
J0 yoddns up aouspine poob sapinosd pue (Auoyiny Aemybiy
ay} '6'9) AQuoyiny Buney e Jo diysiaumo ayj ul aq 0} PAIBPISUCO
sem ) jey) s)sabfins ajnos uogeondde ayy jo uoisnioxs eyjy

uonen|ea o} Jalgns
jou s pue sBuipjoy pue| Juadefpe sy} Woly papnioxe S| 8o 8y

$P10081 JOV @0UBUL4 0161

‘sjuswnoop asay} Aq payoddns
st osy) sy} pue ‘yiomidu ebejia duolsly ey} jo Wed st yied
sIy} jey) pajdesoe Ajuowiwiod aq 0} swaes )i ased Jenoiued sy )

‘mous Aay) sainjesy
j{eoiydeibodo) ay) jo aouajsixa jesisAyd auy) Jo aouapine poob A1aa
apinoid a10)219Y) Sludwnoop asey) sdew Jidy) uo pamoys Aay)
sbuiy) jo snjeys ay} o} piebas yym saunbug s|qeuOSEal ajEW
0} palinbai Janamoy a1am siohkamns ey siybu Aemybiy ongnd jo
92U3)SIXd Y] JO IDUIPIAS Jou SI Aem 1o yoen yied Aue jo Buimoys
ay} jey) aye ay) 0} Jawielosip e Aued sdew KBAING aoueupiO

‘snjejs oyoads Aue 3 )nquNe Jou op Ing
‘8)nos By} Jo SousysIxe [eaisAyd ay) moys sdew Aanng soueupIO

sdey AsAIng ddueupIO

SJUBWIWOY

jueU0Y JUBWINI0Q

uonduuoaseq

abed

qey

M.xvtx%\

asuspiAag Aiejusawnsoq jo Alewwng

MBI/ SUET YUON O] }984iS UIBN ‘SueT 8no
Jap10 uotieoyipoly depy aauyaq Joy uoledliddy
1861 10V apIsAUN0D g BHIPHIM




Annex 4

Summary of User Evidence

Page 81




Page 82

s901M3G Aoueynsuo) g Juswabeueyy Aepn Jo siybiy onand
S91BI00SSY LB uigoy

‘Yyed ay} jo pua
SuUeT YHON 3y} JB /96| 810jaq Pajjelsul aiam SIBUIE] JjeH
‘uaJppyo jooyos AQ pasn Auiew st yled ‘peddols Janau
SeM pue ‘wasAs yjed ay} jo ped Ji peaiapisuod sAemiy
'7961 ui abejjia ay) 0} Buinow aouis yjed ay) umouy SeH
suonebisanul 200z J0 Hed se pamaiaiaiu| M IS p ge 2002 - L961 IS M e’ r S Ll
'$301j0U AUB JBA3U aiam 218y} pue ‘yied ayy Buisn uuoy
pajuaaaid 1o paddols JoAsN "0} sdoys ay) 0} pue ‘|ooyos
0} 06 0} }I posn uaipjiyd J8H ‘yied ay) umouy sAemiy
suoneBysaaul 00z j0 Yed se pamainsdiu S I M 9¢ 2002 - 9961 p M ssabing 14 L
‘paddols
aq iona pjnom Apoqou pue saonou Aue U38q JaAsu
aney a1ay] ‘yjed augnd B S )l SMOUY SUOAIBAT "UBIP|IYO
looyas Aq Ajjeroadsa syjed abejjia pasn jsow ay) jo auo
st 3} ‘ebe(jia 8y} ojul Buinow 2ouls yjed ayj umouy shemly
"suonebisaaul 00z Jo Hed se pamainaiu M r M ot Z00Z - 9961 M M ssefing D | ¢ 1L
*o11gnd aq 0} §I spsebal pue
Yied ey} 0} Jueocelpe si YdIym ‘19345 U L. ON SUMO
suonebiseAul Z00Z 40 Hed se pamalnIajuj IS M p 8c 2002 - v.61 M M SUUINN O O 1 4 Ll
“IiiH uoyjeq Buipioae sue YUON 0} 183118 ulepy
woyy 106 0y pue spiey Buikeld ayy o} 106 03 yied ay pasn M M M 65 €661 - €61 M SjUoON ! L
5c c =2 z v 00 s mne
(73 7] (=] (] Q ow
g 2 3 o 3 1353 | § |3¢
3 : | 2 g (5%
£ | 2 | 8 < 2 g |° ¢
=5 o e e |8 = &
¥ =3 e 2 3 5 2
3 a g |2 g ]
=S 2 T 2 |8 a
T | &E| § - ! ®
uoieuLoju} J3Yl0 -~ & ® .M.. ewep | ebeyq | gey

b Hrinny

aJuapiAg J9sn jo Liewwng

OXBIPIBYAA SUBT YUON O} 19311 UIB|\ 2ueT aA0T
J8pJQ uonesyipow deyy anuyaq 10y uonesiddy
1861 10V apIsAuN0D ' SUIPIM




$801n8S Aoue)nsuog g Juswabeuep Aepn 4o sybiy aland
S3Je|00SSYy LBD UIqoYy

‘yied ay) uo Suom aduBUBIBW
yoopapun Aguadal 1ouno) ysued syl ‘i Buisn sjdoad
Jaylo Auew usas pue /g6l douls yled sy} pasn sey

‘dew SO UoRIPa | 3y} uo paruBw st yied ayy Ly 800Z - L964 | M pealsied M 1) | £ 1z

Page 83

-olgnd 8q 0} Jl paAaljag HOM 0} Aem ey)
uo pue sdoys ayj 0} 106 03 ‘siseq Ajiep e uo yjed ey} pasn

€461 Ut pajo|dwiod wio4 souapag sesn | b S r €5 €161 - 0261 p wnqedd [ £ i

Yedjoo; e aq 0} )l peAsleq pue
‘SOUBIUBAUOD puB $S3208 10 ‘AjleuciSesno yied ey} pasn

€461 U1 pajeidwiod o4 souapiAg 1asn I M M ve €l61) - 6£61 I Aaieig W 9 b
5c c = z v 00 nc
28 | | § & |85 | § |48
3 £ > g > g 8=~ 2 m
82| 2| % § s 3 | &z
58 2 p @ g |2 g 3
T & | § ° 13 ] ®
uonjeulou| JaI0 -~ 5 o : ewep | abed | qeyl

9)eIP|dYM SUBT YUON O} }o8NS UIBIA :3UBT] 8A0T
18pJQ uoneoyipopy de aauyeq Joj uoiesnddy
1861 10V apISAUN0D B SHIPIM




Page 84

Annex 5

Graph showing Periods of Claimed User




Page 85

w—— 8007 - /964 PESISIBH MLIQ L (¥4

€61 - 0264 uingied 4 L 1

€/61 - 661 fqelg iy 9 1

200Z - 2961 f’0r § 1

200Z - 9961 ssafingr ¢ 1

2002 - 9961 ssebingd ¢ L

2002 - v261 SUUNW 901 ¢ L

£661 - ¥E61 SUOON [+ | L

8002 0002 0661 0861 0461 0961 0S61 ov6l 0€61 0z6l asn 40 pouad aweN afed qeL

S rovaly 1asn pawie|) Jo spouad

9)BIPISUAA SUET YHON 0} 198A1S UIBN :3UBT A0
18pI0 uonesyipoy dewy eanluyaq 4oy uoiedddy
186 1OV 8p1sAIunoy 8 SjIPIAA




Page 86

Annex 6

Legal Tests




Page 87

Legislative Tests

Test to be Applied

When considering an application for a DMMO to add a public right of way
to the Definitive Map the burden of proof initially rests with the applicants
to prove their case. If a prima facia case in favour of the application is
established, the onus then falls upon anyone opposing the application to
provide evidence in rebuttal. The standard of proof is the civil test of ‘on
the balance of probability .

If, having taken into account all of the available relevant evidence, the
Authority is satisfied that, the alleged rights subsist or are reasonably
alleged to subsist the Authority has a duty to make a DMMO. Such an
Order can however, only be confirmed if, on the balance of probability,
the alleged rights can be shown to actually subsist.

Evidential Tests
Highways Act 1980, Section 31
Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states:

“(1) Where a way over land, other than a way of such character
that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the public
as of right and without interruption for a full period of twenty years,
the way is deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless
there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that
period to dedicate it.”

“(2)The period of twenty years referred to in subsection (1) above
is to be calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of
the public to use the way is brought into question whether by
notice, such as is mentioned in subsection (3) below or otherwise.”

“(3) Where the owner of the land, which any such way as aforesaid

passes has erected in such manner as to be visible by persons
using the way a notice inconsistent with the dedication of the way
as a highway, and has maintained the notice after the first January
1934, or any later date on which it was erected, the notice, in the
absence of proof of a contrary intention, is sufficient evidence to
negative the intention to dedicate the way as a highway”

Section 31(1) has two ‘limbs’ the first provides that proof of twenty years
continuous user “as of right” endorses a claim that a highway exists; the
second (sometimes referred to as ‘the proviso’) provides that proof of a
lack of intention to dedicate the way as a highway defeats the claim.

Section 31 is further supplemented by Section 32 of the Highways Act
1980, which states:




Page 88

“A court or other tribunal, before determining whether a way has or
has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such
dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration any
map, plan or history of the locality or other relevant document,
which is tendered in evidence, and shall give weight thereto as the
court or tribunal considers justified by the circumstances, including
the antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by
whom and the purpose for which it was made or complied, and the
custody in which it has been kept and from which it is produced.”

Common Law

Before public rights can be asserted under the Common Law, a
landowner must be shown to have intended to dedicate the right of way
over his land. The question of dedication is purely one of fact and public
user is no more than evidence, which has to be considered in the light of
all available evidence. Public use will not, therefore, raise the inference
of dedication where the evidence, in its totality, shows that the public
right of way status was not intended.

At Common Law, there is no specified period of user, which must have
passed before an inference of dedication may be drawn. It is necessary
to show, in order that there may be a right of way established, that the
route has been used openly, “as of right”, and for so long a time that it
must of come to the knowledge of the owners of the fee that the public
were so using it as of right.

If the landowner has done exactly what would be expected from any
owner who intended to dedicate a new highway, the time may be
comparatively short. However, as a matter of proof at Common Law, the
greater the length of user that can be demonstrated, the stronger the
inference of dedication will (usually) be.

. Factors such as desirability, suitability, financial viability, need or even
public safety, whilst genuine concerns cannot lawfully be taken into
account, when making a decision. Therefore, whilst there may be some
genuine concerns about the anti-social behaviour occurring along part of
the alleged public right of way, it cannot lawfully be taken into account
when determining the application to modify the Definitive Map.




Page 89 Agenda ltem 6

COUNCIL

Decision Session 2 February 2010
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath from Main Street to
Sparrow Hall Farm, Wheldrake

Summary

1. This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining whether or not
to make a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) to add the route (shown
by a broken black line on Plan 1 (Annex 1)) to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath. In determining this issue it is important to consider the available
evidence against the requirements of the legislation (see Annex 7).

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that the Executive Member approves Option A and
authorises the making of a DMMO to add the route as a Public Footpath to the
Definitive Map.

Reason

3. There is a good case in support of the existence of public rights based upon
historic evidence, in addition there is a prima facie case in favour of their
establishment of such rights under Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980.

4. Whilst evidence has been submitted alleging that people were turned off the
land and that signs deterring use were erected, these incidents have not been
substantiated and indeed are, to a certain extent, contradicted by the
statements that nobody was ever seen using the route.

5. Taking into account all of the available evidence there is a good case in support
of the existence of public rights over the application route based both upon
historic documentary evidence and modern user thus requiring the authority to
make the order (Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53(3)(c)(i)).



10.

11.

12.

Page 90

Background

In September 1993 Wheldrake Parish Council submitted, to North Yorkshire
County Council, an application for a Definitive Map Modification Order, to add a
footpath, shown by a broken black line (the application route) on Plan 1 (Annex
1) attached to this report to the Definitive Map. In 1996, as a result of Local
Government Reorganisation, the application, which had still to be determined,
and remained outstanding, was passed to City of York Council as the newly
appointed Surveying Authority for the area.

In 2002 the Council commenced preliminary investigations into this, and a
number of other similar applications made by Wheldrake Parish Council. Whilst
these investigations were substantially completed at that time, the applications
were never formally determined. Therefore, more recently, and in order to bring
these matters to a close, the previously considered evidence was checked and
ratified, so as to allow the matter to be brought to a conclusion.

Summary of Evidence

Historical Documents

As part of the investigations a range of documents have been consulted, and
these are listed in Annex 2 of this report. Where the documents are considered
to have some evidential value in this case, they are further summarised within
the report, with more detailed comments included in Annex 3.

Ordnance Survey Maps

From the mid - late nineteenth century onwards, Ordnance Survey maps of the
area show the physical existence of the application route, annotated “FP”
(Footpath). The most northerly section of the path is however shown running
along the field edge rather than diagonally across the field as per the
application.

1910 Finance Act Documents

The Finance Act Maps show that Low Well Lane and Chapel Lane were
excluded from the valuation survey. The remainder of the application route is
shown on the Ordnance Survey base map.

The accompanying Field Book entries for hereditament 37, in the notes on the
second page under “Charges, Easements, and Restrictions...... ” reference is
made to a footpath running through ‘“fields 173, 174 etc’. These are fields
crossed by the application route. The entry for hereditament 131 (Haggwood
Farm), under the same section refers to a “footpath up west side of farm”. The
application route is situated on the western boundary of the hereditament.
Sums of £30 & £18 are claimed respectively in relation to the existence of
above mentioned public rights of way.

Deposited Railway Plans
The deposited plans for the Derwent Valley Light Railway, dated May 1899, and
their accompanying books of reference record the physical existence of the
application route, identifying it as a public footpath in the ownership of
Wheldrake Parish Council.



13.

14.

15

16.

17.

18.

Page 91

Wheldrake Enclosure Award

The Enclosure Award for Wheldrake sets out the path along what is now known
as Chapel Lane and Low Well Lane, for access to the well. No continuation of
the route is set out.

Original Definitive Map Process

The application route appears to have been claimed, in the 1950’s, by the
Parish Council, under Part IV of the National Parks and Access to the
Countryside Act 1949. The route was however subject to objections at the
provisional stage of production. Due to the number of outstanding objections in
the East Riding area the County Council, at that time were directed by the
Minister of Housing and Local Government to proceed to the Definitive Mapping
stage by omitting paths subject to objections, with a view to them being
considered at a later stage.

User Evidence

The application was supported by nine user evidence forms claiming use during
the period 1920 - 1993 These forms are summarised in Annex 4 of this report,
and the periods of claimed use summarised on the User Graph in Annex 5.

Submissions made on behalf of the Landowner

Various submissions have been made both by and on behalf of landowners
affected by the application. The landowners and objectors refer to having never
seen anyone using the route and that if it was used then those users were
trespassing. They also refer to proceedings during the late 1960’s in respect of
the provisional maps discussed above. None of the submissions provide
evidence of acts which would constitute a lack of intention to dedicate on behalf
of the landowners. These submissions are summarised and commented upon
in Annex 6.

Comments on Evidence

Historical Documents

The enclosure award provides near conclusive evidence of the existence of the
Chapel Lane and Low Well Lane sections of the application route. The 1910
Finance Act records are quite specific as to the routes upon which tax relief was
sought, and provides strong evidence that the landowners, at the time
considered the routes to be public rights of way. These are then further
supported by the deposited railway plans, which, as documents forming part of
a parliamentary process and having been open to public scrutiny are also of
significant value.

User Evidence

In common with many cases of this nature across the country, the fact that the
application is being determined some sixteen years after it was made, is
problematic so far as the continued availability of witnesses is concerned. The
evidence of the five withesses who were interviewed should be given more
weight than that of the witnesses who were not, which can only be taken as
read.



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Page 92

Submissions made on behalf of the Landowner

The fact that the landowners, and their supporters, claim to have never seen
anyone using the application route, does not mean that such use did not take
place, indeed there is a body of evidence that confirms that it did. Furthermore if
the rights existed historically, which appears to be the case in this instance,
then those rights would still exist today, even if subject to little or no use.

The objector’'s reliance upon the proceedings which were undertaken in the
1960’s (at provisional map stage) is based upon a misunderstanding of what
actually happened at the time. The objections that had been lodged were
withdrawn and never determined at that time. In other words no decision was
made as to whether or not the claimed public rights existed. That was a matter
to be decided at a later date and forms part of the process now under
consideration.

Assessment of Evidence

Historical Documents

The historical documents, taken as a whole, provide a compelling argument in
favour of the existence of a public right of way along the application route.
These alone should be sufficient to trigger the Authority’s duty to promote a
Definitive Map Modification Order.

User Evidence

Common Law

If the user evidence and historic documentary evidence are considered
together a picture of long uninterrupted use is provided, with dedication of the
public rights occurring some time prior to 1899. Dedication by the landowner,
and acceptance by the public may therefore be inferred.

Highways Act 1980, Section 31

The historic evidence, combined with the more modern user evidence suggests
that public rights have existed over the application route for at least 100 years
and therefore it should not be necessary to consider the establishment of rights
under Section 31 of the 1980 Act. For completeness the issue is however
considered below.

Calling into question and 20 year period of user

The existence of pubic rights over the application route does not appear to
have been challenged at any particular time, and therefore there is no act of
calling into question. Under such circumstances it is possible to calculate the 20
year period of user from the date of the submission of the application for the
Definitive Map Modification Order. The relevant period of user would therefore
be 1973 to 1993.

Actual use and enjoyment by the public
The user evidence forms provide evidence of the use and enjoyment of the
route for well in excess of the required twenty years.

Use “As of Right” and without interruption




26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Page 93

For use of a path or way to be “as of right”, it must be use without force, without
secrecy and without permission. There is no need for the user to believe they
are exercising a public right of way. The evidence submitted in support of the
application would appear to meet this test.

There is no evidence to suggest that use of the route has ever been interrupted
during the relevant twenty year period.

Consultation

Consultations have been carried out in accordance with the Parliamentary
Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice on consultation, which
includes consultation with user groups etc. The Parish Council and landowners
have also been consulted.

Ward Councillors

ClIr C Vassie — No comments received.

Political Parties
Clir S Galloway (Lib Dem) — No comments received.

Clir R Potter (Labour) — ‘Happy to support the modifications> comments
received 30™ December, 2009.

ClIr | Gillies (Conservative) — No comments received.

Clir A D’Argone (Green Party) — No comments received.
Options

Option A: If, having considered all of the available evidence the Executive
Member decides that public rights are reasonably alleged to subsist, the
Executive Member should resolve that:

(@) The Director of City Strategy be authorised to instruct the Head of Legal
Services to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a public
footpath, along the route A — B on Plan 1 attached to this report, to the
Definitive Map;

(b) If no objections are received, or any objections that are received, are
subsequently withdrawn, the Head of Legal Services be authorised to
confirm the Order made in accordance with (a) above; or

(c) If any objections are received, and not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be passed to the Secretary of State for confirmation.

(d) A decision be made regarding the Authority’s position in respect of the
confirmation of the Order (i.e. support, or seek non-confirmation)



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Page 94

Option B: If, having considered all of the available evidence, the Executive
Member decides that the alleged public rights do not exist, they should resolve
that:

(@) The application to modify the Definitive Map be refused.

(b) The applicant be advised of their right to appeal.

Corporate Priorities

If it is determined that the available relevant evidence shows that a right of way
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist and is added to the map the
benefits of doing so would link into the Council’s Corporate priorities. A public
right of way is sustainable, car free and provides access to health and
recreation opportunities thus contributing to the priorities of making York a
Sustainable and a Healthy City.

Implications

Financial

If it is determined to progress a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) it
will have to be advertised in the local press. The cost of advertising the order
would be in the region of £1500. If an order is made, and no objections are
received the order will be confirmed and re-advertised, again at a cost of
£1500.

If objections to the order are received, and not withdrawn, the outcome of the
order will be decided by the Secretary of State, possibly by means of a Public
Inquiry. The cost of a Public Inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the order is confirmed by either the Council or the Secretary of State the
authority has to accept that the route is maintainable at the public expense.
Acceptance is not as such a new obligation but is part of the Council’s statutory
duty to keep that map up to date and formally record the rights of the public
where those rights exist but are not yet shown and recorded in the definitive

Human Resources
There are no human resource implications.

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.

Legal

City of York Council is the surveying authority for the purposes of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, and has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive
Map and Statement for its area is kept up to date.

If, and when, the Authority discovers evidence to suggest that the Definitive
Map and Statement needs updating, it is under a statutory duty to make the
necessary changes. A DMMO enables any changes to the map and statement
to be made.



41.

42.

43

44

45.

46.

47.

Page 95

Before the Council can make the a DMMO to add a route to the definitive map,
as is the subject of this report, it must be satisfied that, taking into account the
available evidence, that a right of way can reasonably be alleged to exist. If it
can, the authority must make the order. If objections are received during the
process and not withdrawn the order must be forwarded to the Secretary of
State. The Secretary of State will appoint an Inspector who will test the
evidence and determine the outcome of this application.

DMMO'’s do not create any new public rights of way they seek to record those
already in existence but not formerly recorded in the definitive map and
statement. Issues for example such as safety, security and desirability whilst
being genuine concerns cannot be taken into consideration. The DMMO
process requires an authority to look at all the available evidence, both
documentary and user, before making a decision.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications.

Information Technology
There are no IT implications.

Property
There are no property implications.

Other

If the definitive map modification order process concludes that public rights do
exist the public footpath becomes maintainable at the public expense and
should be recorded as such on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public
Expense. The Council, as the highway authority for public rights of way, has a
duty to maintain the public footpath to a standard that allows use by lawful
traffic: the right of way is on foot only.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council's Risk Management Strategy, Options A is
subject to internal budgetary pressures (financial). There are no risks
associated with Option B.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Joanne Coote Damon Copperthwaite, Assistant Director,
(Definitive Map Officer) City Development and Transport

Network Management

(City Development & Transport) Report v |Date 22.01.2010

Tel No: 01904 551442

Wards Affected: Wheldrake All

Approved




Page 96

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers:

Evidence evaluated and background report prepared by Consultant: Robin Carr
Associates, Public Rights of Way Management and Consultancy Services

Highways Act 1980

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Rights of Way: A Guide to Law and Practice, Fourth Edition, by John Riddall and
John Trevelyan.

England and Wales Court of Appeal (Civil Division) Decisions: R v Secretary of State
for Wales ex parte Emery (1997)

Appendices:

Annex 1: Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Main Street to Sparrow Hall,
Wheldrake

Annex 2: List of documents consulted

Annex 3: Summary of Documentary Evidence

Annex 4: Summary of User Evidence

Annex 5: Graph showing Periods of Claimed User

Annex 6: Summary of Objector’'s Evidence/Comments

Annex 7: Legal Tests



Page 97

Annex 1

Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Main Street to Sparrow Hall,
Wheldrake




A\ )

iy N
Pag e 98 & & Countryside Act 1981 lﬂ-m ex 1

ation for Definitive Map Modification Order

AN

AN
Claimed Footpath:

Grid Ref: SE 674 452

Claimed Public Footpath Main Street to Sparrow Hall
Map 1

Scale 1:5000 Drawn By: Date: 6 August 2003
Orrating Group: Frotect Orawing No.
Public Rights of Way I

9 St. Leonards Place, York, YO1 2ET Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majstys Stationary Office

©Cr Ci ( it
Telephone: 01304 613161 Ymo:: opyright, Unauthorised reproduction Infringes Crown and may lead to of civit

Z N




A} 27 NN

Page 99

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
Application for Definitive Map Modification Order

Claimed Footpath:

Existing Definitive Footpath

Existing Definitive Bridleway: T T T

Grid Ref: SE 663 459 +—t t

Sparrow Hall Farm

N

5 CITY ©F Claimed Public Footpath Main Street to Sparrow Hall, Wheldrake
Map 2
I s
o R K Scate 1:5000 Drawn By: Date: 6 August 2003
COQUNCHL [Griginating Group: Frogect: [~ Drasding Mo
Pubtic Rights of Way l
9 St. Leonards Place, York. YOt 2ET grnduud fiom the 1993 Ordnance Survey 11250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office
Telephone: 01304 613161 vn‘::o;: Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction Infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution of civil proceedings
RN N \ AN N AN




Page 100

Annex 2

List of documents consulted




Page 101

wil ; 981
Application for Definitive Map Modification Order
Main Street to Sparrow Hall Farm Wheldrake

Documents Consulted

Enclosure Award, Map and Act
Tithe Plan and Apportionment

1910 Finance Act records
Ordnance Survey Maps

Rights of Way Act 1932 Depositions
NPACA 1949 Maps and Documents
Local Authority Files

Quarter Sessions records

Parish Council Records

Other Highway Authority records
Local Historical Maps

Deposited Plans

Estate Records

Deeds

Aerial Photographs

Robin Carr Associates
Public Rights of Way Management & Consultancy Services



Page 102

Annex 3

Summary of Documentary Evidence




Page 103

ssoIag Aoueynsuod g Juaswabeuely Aepn jo siybiy olgnd
S3JBID0SSY LB uiqoy

“Apy6i papieBaisip
aq joupjnoys pue ‘Aem jo sybu ogqnd jo aouIsIXs Ay}
Buluialap ul anjea |enuapiae poob AJan Jo 2104319y} a1 audyL
‘Auinios pue juswwiod dgnd o0} uado osie asom pue ‘ssaoold
Aejusweled e jo ped se pasedaid asem Sjuawnoop asayl

‘Rem jo ybu oygnd
e se Aemjies pasodoid ay} Jo aul ayj passold ) 3idym ‘aInos
ay} moys sdualsal Jo Yooq Bulkuedwoose ey} pue suejd 8yl

sue|d Aemjiey payisodaq

‘apew a1am jey) swielo Suluiewas sy) Jo anjeA ay) ysiuiwip jou
S30p ‘WIBIO JOU PIP JOUMOPUE|/UOIIOSS SUO ey} JOB) 8y, "SJaumo
puei ayl Aq QL6L W Aem 3y} Jo soudisixe ay) jo aouejdasoe
ay} Jo aouspine poob siI spjay uado 8y} sasS0ID ) BBYM
8)noJ ay) Jo 1oadsal ul Jaias Xe) 10} SWieD ale 319y} Jey) ey ay|

'HoS awos jo smejs Aemybiy
40 Joddns uj aouspirne poob sapiaoid pue (Auoyiny Aemybiy
ayy ‘6°9) Awoyiny Bugey e jo diysiaumo 3y Ul 8q 0} paJapisuod
sem ) jey} sjsabbns ajnor uoneondde ay) jo uoisnPxe 8yl

‘aJnoJ 8y} Jo Japulewal ay} jo syed jo 10adsas u) jai1as pawie
aney sisumopue| ay) jey} jeadde pjnom }} ‘uoienjea o} joalgns
jou aie pue sBuipjoy pue| Juadelpe sy} wolj papnjoxd ale sue’)
119 MO pue aueT [adeys Se umouy St )l aISym ‘ajnol ay} jo ued

Spiodal Joy 3dueuld 0L6L

44
6L 2
14511
01’6y

"MOUS Aay) sainjes)
|eaydesbodoy ay) o adua)sixa jedasAyd ay) Jo aouapina poob Aiaa
apinosd a104818Y; sjuawndop aseyy ‘sdew Jjay) uo pamoys Asy)
sbuiy) jo snjeys oy} o} piebal yym seuinbua ajqeuoses) axew
0} pasinbai 1anemoy a1am siohanns ay | “siybu Aemybiy oiygnd jo
SOUS)SIXS 3Y) JO SDUBPIAS Jou S| Aem Jo xoedy yied Aue jo Buimoys
ay} 1.y} 1099 ay) o} Jawiejpsip e Aued sdew Aaaing adueuplO

‘yyedjoo; e se pajejouue
‘aIn01 By} J0 BoUSIXS {eoisAyd ay) moys sdew Aaang ssueupiO

sdejy Aanng asueupIO

"PIEME BY} LIYIIM PBPNIOUt Jou ale splay uado ay) ss0.
yolym yied pawied ay) JO Suonoas pajndsip ayj 'SNORUSIUCD
Apenoied ‘JoAOMOY JOU S1B pIEME BINSO[OUS 8Y) Ul PapNioul
8JN0J PAWIEID AU} JO SUOIOBS BY] "WBYY UIYIM INO }BS SAem ay} jo
80UBJSIXd S} Jo douapIAe Buosls K1an apincid spieme ainsojpusl

"JNO }3S Si 3JN0J Y} JO UOIBNURUOD ON ‘jIoM 3y}
0} SS909E 10} ‘BueT] ||9M MO pue aue jadeys Se UMOUY MOU si
Jeym Buoje yied ay) IO S}9S OXEIPIBUM 1O PJemy 3inNsojoug 8y

piemy ainsojoul

sjuswiio)

JuaguoH Jusundog

uondposag

20Q

qel

MJ.N-\V*\

a9uapiAg Arejuawnosog jo Alewwng

YBIPIYM Wi [[BH moLrdS 0} j9oNS Ulei
19pIO uonESLIPON deN aAULaQ Joj uonedlddy
1861 1V 8pISAiUN0D B P




Page 104

Annex 4

Summary of User Evidence




Page 105

s80IM8G Aoueynsuo?) g uawabeuep AepA 50 Siybiy duqnd
$8je1008sY JIBD UIqoY

sieak gz 10} pasn ay yied ay) jo }sais ay) ‘sieak g Jnoqe
104 uUE ||]oAA MO S0 pua ay} puokaq yied ayy pasn AjuQ

‘pafjuBWSIp SEM
} 21049q Aemjiel ay) je Buissoio pajeb sadoid e sem auay |,
‘Remjies

{pajjuewsIp mou) a8y} se lej se yyed uappol) e sem a1ay; Inq
punoib ay) Uo SNOIAGO JBASU SEM SPial 3y} SSO108 Yled ayt

€661 - /961

ssabung

i

sieak gz 1o} pasn ay yied ay jo jsai ay} ‘sieak g Jnoge
10§ BUET |19 MO SO pua ay} puoheq yied ay) pasn AjuO

‘DSJUBWISIP SEM
1 210409q Aemjies ay) je Buissold pajeb sadoid e sem aisyy

‘puofaq pue Aemjles (papjuewsstp

MOU) ay) se 1e} se yjed uappol) e sem a1ay} Ing punoib

Y} UO SNOIAQO JBABU SBM Spjay U} SsoJoe yled ayy yjed
Y} JO PUD WIBYINOS BY) JEBU ‘BUE| [|]IAA MO UO BAH 0} Pasn

p 9z €661 - 196l

ssabing o

vi

‘affuaj|eyd Jnoyym pue ‘uayo
a)nb 3 pasn oyqnd jesauab ay) onagnd aq 0} § palapISUod
pue ‘yied ay} jo yed Aq passoId pue| paumo Ajsnolraid

€661 - L¥6l

GuisiteH M 9

vl

yjed ay) Guisn woyy pajuaaald 10 paddols 1oAaU Sepp “sawly
1e paddoso pue paybnojd sem Jngq snoingo sem yjed ayj.

€661 — 8961

PESISIEH M L

14}

‘ajnol uoyjesidde ayy
JO SUOIOaS aueT j|]aA MO pue aueT jadey) ay pasn AluQ

€661 - L961

-
-
~
w0
N

esior

147

uopeuLIojU] J8Yl10

uopdnuisjul
INOYUM Josq)

oS SIeaA JO ON
as() Jo pouad
asuspuodsesso)
Y10

W61 jo sV Jesn
2)|qnd JO Joquiapy

MaIAIBIL) SSBUNM

wuo4

eouspIAg Josn

awepN

abed

qel

 ata 4

92UapIAT Josq Jo Alewwng

ONBIPIBYAA LLB jleH mouieds 0} 19a1S ute
Jap10 uoieouipoly de AUy Joj uojedlddy
1861 10V 8pisAiunoD g sjIIPIA




Page 106

$90IM88 Aoue)nsuo g Juswabeuepy Aepn jo sybiy ongngd

S9JeI00SSY LB UIqoy

"} Buisn uuoy pajuanald Jo paddoss Jonsu
sem 3y pue ‘yied umouy| Jjam e si }| ‘ainos uonesydde ay)
JO suoiloas sueT || Mo pue sueT jadeyd ayy pasn AuO I M [AS €661 - 1961 »aoa 6 145
‘9jnoJ uonedidde ayy
JO SUOI103s BueT |9 MO7 pue sueT [adeys sy} pasn AluQ M M 9 €661 - /861 slIsyd3 s 8 vl
‘ajnoi uoneoidde ay)
Jo suoyoas aue jlap Mo pue suet jedeyd ay; pasn Ajuo I3 M 44 €661 - 1261 Bumog rd L 147
‘PIjjUBLUSIP SBM
¥ a10j0q Aemjiel ay) e Buissoso pajel Jadoid e sem asey |
‘wue |eH mouedg e yjom Buiping Supiey
Japun uaymyyl siseq Ajiep e uo pue ‘Aueinbas yied ay) pesn
"€.61 ludy pajajdwod wuoy Jesn &I M o¢ 0561 — 0261 uinqiied 4 9 14
s | g F| & : |99 | § |5¢
=~ 5 = 3 =3 o W W -
£ s > g =< g |&8° o m
w W [ - ) w .W [ <
o Q w. m m c 3 S ”
g 2 o a |2 g 5
€ | 5| § s |3 I |38
4 Z o 8 3
uoneuuIoU| J8YI0 -~ a s ewep | abeq | gej

9)eJIPISUYM U jleH moueds 0} }9ang ulepy
1apiQ uonesyipopy deyy aaniuyaq 1o uoneaiddy
1861 19V 8pIsAunod B sjIpiM




Page 107

Annex 5

Graph showing Periods of Claimed User




Page 108

€661 - 1961 ¥aoaq 6 vi
— €661 - /861 slsyol3s 8 ri
€661 - 1264 Bumogrd 4 vi
0561 — 0Z61 ungireq 4 9 vl
€661 - L961 ssabingr & i
€661 - 1961 ssabingp Vv 14
€661 - LV61 Suilsiei g € 14"
€664 - 8961 peajsieH M1 ¢ 145
€661 - L96} 1.9 r i 14}
0002 0661 0861 061 0961 0561 0¥61 0g6l 0261 as Jo pouad aweN abed qet
S Ry J9S() pawiie]) 0 spolad

oNeIp[BYM wie |jey mosueds o} jJ9ans uiepy
JapiQ uonesyipoly depy aaniuyaq 1o} uoljedliddy
1861 1OV 9pISAIUNOD B SHIPIIM



Page 109

Annex 6

Summary of Objector’s Evidence/Comments




Page 110

$801M98G Aoueynsuo)) @ juswabeuepy Aepn Jo siybiy oland

S9JeIN0SSY L)) uiqoy

‘sue|d Aemjiey
pausodaq ayy ut ‘Aunjuad YuaasulN ay) jo pud ayy Aq Buisixe se papiooal
Aulepao s1 )| 'si0joalqo J1ayjo Ag 0} pajsane se ‘sdew SO Ales uo umoys
s| yjed ay} asnedaq o) Buulgjas si sssupm ayj dew yoym Jesoun si

ujed sy} moys jou saop j|leH mouedg jo dew $Gg| ay|

*Jybu Jo se, 1esn 8q 0} PaISPISUOD aq Aj|lenba Aew asn yons * A9a10as
40 9040} ‘uoissiunad Jnoyum pasn s| Aem ay} j Jonemoy ‘ssedsal) aq 0}
Jey) Japisuod Aew Jaumopue| e ‘uoissiuuad Jnoypm yjed e sasn uosiad e §|

"8OUDISIXD JLOJSIY S} JO SOUBPIAS puB ‘Sawl} LIspow
Kl@Anejas ui yled pswied ay) Jo asn ay) JO S0UBPIAD S| BJaYj uolUassE
ouoBsjes B yons SYELW UBD JBUMOPUE| B UBA3 ‘BUOAUB MOY Jeajoun §i J

Buissedsal) sem Ji payjem aney o} Buiwied suoAue
pue '¢00Z Pue ge6 | usamiaq yied ay) payiem sey ApogoN

‘Remuapun Ajjuanino ss800.d ayj 1}y "PapNdUOD IOABU SEM

€002-60-9Z Pajep ion9) ‘wued

1ajew 8y} Inq ‘€661 Ule pew sem uoneslidde QNING 9yl 101100ul S SIYL €661 Ul pajosal pue passnosip Sem Jajew ayl lleH moaseds jo pisydays 4 8z 0z
'$$8001d Buijew uoisioap ayl j0 Wed SE JUNOOJE 03| U} aue] ajelplaum
aq Ajingme| UBS jey) JaRBW B JOU S} S8)N0J BAIBUISYE JO AjljiqEjieAR Byl Jo AemybBi peoig el S9jn01 SAIBUISYE SIGENNS i aIdy |
"@OUS)SIXD OLOISIY S)t JO AOUBPINS
poob si alay) 1anemoy ‘yied ey} Jo asn waepow jo uonsabibns ou st aiay] yjed ay; asn 03 pajdwane jons sey ApoqoN
‘yied ay) 4o Juawysinbuiixa ayj Jo adoUaPIAG INJISUOD
SIY} sa0p Aem ou u| ‘9)ep 19je| B Je pajebiisanul Suiag Snjels Jiay) 0} MalA
e ypm ‘awn eyl 1e ssao0id ay) WOl paAowa) a1am ‘suonoafqo o} wslgns
aI9M YoIym ‘depy [BUOISIAOLY By} uc umoys syjed ‘paysiignd aq o) sdep
8ANIUYS  BU} djqeus 0} Japi0 U ‘UONDBIIP {eUSISIUIN B JO Jinsal e se ‘ley) €661
108§ 3y} Woyy asue 0} Jeadde yalaq siyl "swi) 18yjo Aue Je paspul Jo ‘961 depy aauyaQg ay) woy 18qo10 9 palep Jene) ‘uued
ul paysinbulixe sem yyed ay) jey; Aioay) ay) poddns 0} aouapIAG ou S| 8JayL | panowsal Ajjuanbasgns pue zg6 | Ul pausinbunxs sem yied ayj |lBH moueds jo piaydays 4 62 0z
sjusWIWon uopoalqo owreN eBeg | qey

SJUGWIWOY/2UIPIAT S,40)93[q0 J0 Arewwing

mw. xvt@

ayeIp|ayM uue4 jieH moseds o} 193N wiepy
1ap1Q uciedlipoiN de aauyaq Joy uonediddy

1861 10V apISANUNOD 2 SJIPIIM




Page 111

$90IAI9G Aoueynsuoy) g Juswabeuepy Aep Jo SiybIY dand

$9JeI00SSY LD uiqoy

"UOHENJS BY} SWLYUOD 18R8| S J0103{q0 3y} O} payoeye
2ouspuodsauiod ay) ‘udnepapun Buiaq mou ssaoosd ay} Ajlenuasse sy pue
‘pauaddey Jansu syt ‘ejep io)ie] e je pasapisuod Bulaq ansst oy} 0} MaIA
B UNM paLIajop SEM J| "PAUILISISP JaABU sem uondslqojuonedidde aroqe
By} ‘uondalIp [BIBISILI B JO }NSa) B Se 'jey} ale Jayew ayj jo 0B} 8yl

"10108(qo 3y
Aq 0} pausjes uonesidde, ay) aG o) paasaljaq si sIyl pue ‘depy |euoisincid
ayy uo yjed siy) 4o uoisndul Y} 0} Pa3oalqo IBNH M L A 1By} paldadde si |

"JaA810) PasO|2 sem yled ay) painsua aney pinoys
1979 8Y} YiM pasojoua aouapuodsanod "s,0961 dyj ui dew
ay) wioyy pajejep yyed ay) eney oy paydde Jayjed sII6NH JN

€661 JaquwiadaQq ,0¢ pajep Jaye
‘uue poombBeH jo iitbnH JN JO
Jleyaq uo uolun) sisuue |euolieN

Ll

814

"sjyBu pap10oaiun jo aoua)sixa Jjqissod
ay} 0} aoipnfeid JNoyum ‘asInod 4o ‘sl siul “dely aAMuyad SYj U papIodBs
Aem jo sjybu o1jqnd ou Butaq a1ey) se pajaidiajul 8q ued asuodsas sanebsu
ay) 1sow Jy J0YoN0S sy AQ pasIApe usaq aney Aew ued i se ‘pue| ay)
ssosoe Aem jo spybu oiggnd ou a1em 313y} Jey) uesw Jou PINOM }I ‘paAISdaI
sem asuodsas anjefiou e pue ‘payse aiam suopsanb jeuondo esayy
§ "leuondo Janamoy ase Aayy ‘Aem jo sybu ongnd ) Bunejas suonsanb yse
ued Joyoyos e aseyoind Auedoid e jo ped se yosess e Bujonpuod usypa

(anoqe) Jo9} snoirasd

01 )0Bq SJajey 'pue; au) ssosoe Aem jo syybu onaqnd ou
9i9M 319U} Jey) PaSIAPE a1em pue ‘sauinbua [ensn sy} apew
SIOJIONOS SIY PUB /861 YOIBW Ul LWie [IBAN MO paseydind

£002 sequialedsylgl palep Jaye
‘aBpo uoisary Jo ed v N

oe

(174

‘ased e 0} Jybiam
Jayuny sppe } ‘sdue)sul Sy} ul se ‘pIp JO 's80p auo aisym ybnoyje ‘isixa
AjleaisAyd o} yied e 104 Juswaiinbas ou aioja1ay) S| 818y pue| ajeaud JaA0
ssed-ai pue ssed 0} Jybu {eba) e Jng ‘ANus |eaisAud e jou si Aem jo ybu
s1qnd e ‘siyy BuspueisyumioN ysed ayy ul isixa AjedisAyd pip yied e jey
sdepy Aaaing aoueupiQ ey} Jo Aem AQ ‘aouspine Aigjuawnoop Jes|d st a1y}
‘spjaly ay) SS0JoE Yjed pauyap e Jou si aiay} ARuannd jey) saibe s it ISIUM

yied pauigep ou si 818yl

"@OUDJSIXD JLI0ISIY S} JO SDUBPIAS PUE ‘S UISPOW
KioAneiel ul yied pawieio ay) Jo asn Uy} JO SDUSPIAS S| 3J8Y} "UOIISSSE
2u069}ED B YONS YW UEBD JOUMOPUE| B USAD ‘BUOAUB MOY Jeajoun si ji

pUE| 3y} POSSOID SBY BUO-ON

‘UOIHOSSE DI9W JOU ‘SBOUBPINS pUE JOB) JO SISNeW
uodn peseq ag jim uois|oap Auy 'ssadold Juaund ay) ybnouiyy pauiuusep
aq 0} Jajew ay} si ‘Aem jo jybu dgqnd B Jo 3SIMIBYI0 JO BOUIISIXS By

pue| oy} ssosoe yiedioo) ou i aidyL

€661 JaqUIZAON
G2 PAYEP 1997 “uued jloMm
MO JO Yed V JW JO JIeyaq uo
uoS g J8ISIT PIEMSO ‘IiIH PiAEQ

€€

174

sjuswIo)

uopoelqo

swieN

ebed

qel

9)eIP|OYAA LB |jeH moureds 0] 19aulS uleN
18P0 uoneolIpPOW dep aAiuLaQg Jo) uoledddy

1861 10V 9pIsAUN0D 9 SHIPIM




Page 112

sa01M9S Aoueynsuo) g Juswabeuepy Aepn Jo siybiy ogqnd

S9JeI00SSY LieD) uIgoy

"MOU Jijun pauiuLdjep

U93q JOABU Sey JOJeW By | "9Jep JJe| B B UOHEISPISUOD JO) PILIS}OP SEM
8IN01 8Y} JO 9OUS)SIXS BY) JAAC UOISIOaP Aue ' UORDBLIP [BUSISIUI B JO JjNsal
e sy /961 ul Aem Jo Jybu alignd B Jou Sem ajnol ay} ey} paacid Jou sem }j

‘ISIX® jou
pIp pue pasn Jou sem yjed ayj jey panoid sjualed siy 2964 U)

‘aNjeA |BI}USPIAS OU JO 3[R Jo aq

M yied sy uo uey) ssyjo suogoe pue subis yong yied ay; Buisn auokue
ueas JaAsu sey ay jey) pajess Ajsnolaasd isnf sey 10}99fqo ay} asnedsaq
uonebisaau; Japun ajnos ay) UeyY} JaYio seale 0} sajejas Ajqewinsaid siy]

‘20e|d uaye}
sey ssedsal) yons alaym subis , sjeAud, paoe|d pue ‘way)
paJajunooud sey ay uaym pue| ay) aaes; o} ajdoad payse SeH

(spiooay Joy adueuld 016] ‘sueld Aemjiey ‘sdepy SO) Anjuen yienuam,
2y} Jo ued Ajiea ayj ui a0UB]SIXa S JO IDUDPIAS St BI3Y) InQ pash Ajaesy
sem yjed siu jey; paysabbns jou si } -aoe(d aye} jou pip asn yons jeyy
ueaw saop ajnos uonedldde sy) ssn suoAue aas Jou pip Ay jey) Joey ay L

‘siadasy aweb 0 siayiom
uuej ay; aaey Jou ‘yied ay) Bunjiem sjdoad uass Janau seH

"s)ybu ouoIsIy Jo SouasIxa B|qIssod ayy apnjoald Jou 80p ‘pesn Ajjualind
jou st spiay ey} ssosoe yied ay jey) 1oey ayy ‘Isixe sjybu pabajje ayj jou Jo

uaaosdun pue pasn
jou si spiayy sy} ssouoe yled ayy ‘yjed pjo pasn jjom e Si Siy )
‘(sueT 1ap Mo pue suen) deyn)) abeia ay) jo abps ay) 0}

¥661 YIEIN L pSjep Jaya

Iayjaym suluLISIBP 0F SBOUSPIAS BY) JO JUBWSSASSE UE S| $58001d JUBLIND BYL | }9ANS UIBW BY) ULO) LUONDaS ay) Alsly ‘sped om Ui st yjled ayl | “uued poombBBeH jo IBNH d  JW 6 0z
"MOU {JUN PaUIULIB)SP
U2a( 1aA3U SBY Jejjew 8y '9)ep JSJe| & e UONEBIBPISUOD 10} PaLIJSp SEM
8JN0J By} JO FOUB)SIXD BY) JOA0 UOISIOBP AUB * LOIORIP |BLIBISIUIN € 4O Jnsal ajnol uones)dde ay) Buoje Aem jo Jybu olgnd ou sem a1ay)
e sy '2961 ul Aem Jo 1ybu oygnd e Jou sem ajnos ay} Jey} pasoid Jou sem )| ey} panoid sem )i pue pasedaid sem depy saiuyaa e 2961 |
‘Aem Jo JybBu oygnd e ‘pauteyo pue
40 3ousjsixe ay} Hoddns 03 8oUSPIAS [BOUIOISIY JUBDYILDIS SI BB} pauoUAW pejed ai0)81ay) sem puk ‘AJUSI3L |NUN ‘BJESUN SEeM UIRIq jIeH
Aisnoinaid se Inq ‘sieak Jusoas aiow Ul ased ay} ussq sAeyY Aew Siy . ay} Jan0 abpliq ay) pue pasua; Ajainoas alam smoisbpay ey
(spiodal 1oV soueUl] 0161 ‘Sueld Aemjiey ‘sdepy SO) Anuad yienuamy
ayj jo yed Aues ay} uj ous}SIXa S)l JO BOUBPIAS SI BIBY} JnQ pasn Ajaesy sdoio Aue ybBnosy} aouapins y661 Lenuep
sem Ljed siy) eyl paysabbns Jou st ) *a0e|d aye) Jou pIp 8sN YINS jey) uesw 3jqisia ou sem aJey} pue ‘yied pawiejo sy} Buisn auohue | g1 pejep seneT ‘wie4 poombBen
seop ajnol uoliesljdde ey} asn sucAue 89s Jou pIp |IIBNH Iy JEY) 10B) SYL | MES J9ABU PUB G6| O} 6E6 L WOl e poops BBeH paidnoog 40 Appauuoy ‘BnH M L 4N 2z oz
sjuswIwion uonaelqo sweN ebeq | qel

9MBIPIBYM Wi |[eH moueds 0} JoaNS e
JapiO uoRelipoly dejy saniuyeq 10} uolesiiddy

1861 10V 8pISANUNOS B SJIPIIAA




Page 113

$601/8S Aouelinsuo) g Juswabeuep Aepa jo subry oyand

$9)RI00SSY LB uIqoy

‘uayepapun Buiag mou ssa001d 8y} Ajjenuasse S| pue

‘pauaddey Jaaau siy] "aJep 1ene| e Je pasepisuod Buiaq anssi ay) 0} MaIA
B UlIM P1I2Jop SEM )| ‘PBUILLISIEP 19ASU Sem uoloalqo/uonesidde anoge
ay} ‘uoljoalip |eLRISIUI € JO JNSal B Se ‘Jey} ale JaJew ay} 4o joe} ay L

"10303(qo 8y}
Aq o) pausyes uoneoydde, ay} aq 0} parayaq si Siy} pue ‘deyy |euoisincIg
ay3 uo yied siy} jo uoisnjoul 8y o} pajoalqo 11BN A L 1IN 1eY) pajdacde st i

paysinbunxa sem yied au} L961 Ul

asayip Aj9jeidwod aze ssay}

Se $S9008 J0 sjybu ajeaud o} Buile|as S|IBjop JO UOISNIOUI BY) YIiM UMEIP 9q
JouuEd UOSEAWOD W 'ISIX® Jou PIP SIYBU By} Jey) SoUBPIAS JoU S| signoiued
SS[BS AU} U PAJIEIOSP JOU SEM YJBd By} JO S2USISIXD BY) Jey) 1.} ay L

(Kem jo yybu ayenud e 'a1)

SJBUMO 3y} 40} Aem JO JybL Jayjoue 0] 30UBIS}a: B SEM BI3Y)
J1anamoy ‘wie) ay) Joj siejnoiued Sales 86| ayi Ui papnjoul
sem Aem jo ybu olignd e jo aouaysixa ay) 0} 30Ua19}0: ON

'$,0061 91| 8y} woiy Aem o Jybu sygnd
© 0§ 80Ud)sIXd 3y} Hoddns 0) 2UBPING AuBluaWnoop AjB}UlYap SEM 3idY)

‘yied Aue Jo 9oUBPIAG OU SEM B18Y)}

£00Z 4840100
«8 Palep Jaje| ‘bnk JW J0

se ‘9ouapIng [ed1sAyd oy sia)al A|qewnsaid S0USPIAS OU 0} 30UBIJSI By pue €64 Wioj uue poombbeH pajueua) sauie} S HBNH JN | Jieyaq uo SIoNDN0S 00 B pueleH b4 0z
‘Aanins ayj Jo swiy ayj je
‘syjed se yons ‘sainjes; jeoiydeibodo Jo adua)sixa ay) Jo asuapiae apiaoid
Janamoy op Aay] ‘sybi ongnd Jo 8oUB)SIXS Y} JO SOUPIAS JOU SI Aem JO sjuawubije Juasayip uo Buiuuni pua ulBYUou
3oy} ‘yied Aue jo Buimoys ay) Jey) 10aya ay} o} 1awieosip e Aled sdew SO s} Je yjed ay} moys Z/6} pue 0161 ‘9681 wois sde] SO
‘yied yons auo aq Aew sIy| "S8|epn pue pue|bug
noybnouy} syied papiodaiun Jo spuesnoy; Auew ale a1ay) Jey) pajsebbns
sey yoieasai Joe} u| 'JSixa Jou op sjybu pabajje sy} Jey) @ouapiAs Jou
S1 piodas |eba) ayy uuoj yied siy} J0 uoissIwo ay] 'slybu papiodalun Jaylo
Aue jo souajsixa ay) 0} sotpnfaid Jnoypm s siy} Ing ‘J uodn papiodal sybu ‘deN 2AljIULaQ SY) U0 UMOYS
8y} JO 20UBISIXD BY) JO BOUSPIAS BAISNOU0D Sapiroid dey aaliuyeg ayl | 99 Apeaje pjnom )i Aem jo 6L dlgnd umouy e sem yled ay) Ji
‘sueah Auew 10j pasn uaaq jou sey yjed
8y} j1 uaas Aepoj Jsixe 0} ANURUOD PINOM SKYBL YaNs JapiO JuswysINBuxgy oo+
{EULIO} B JO BouUasqe ay) uj "siu) 0} Joud sieak g — OG SWI0S PaIsIXd
Apeaije Kem 40 Jybu o1gnd e jey) smoys aouapIne AIBjuswndop Jey; 198} oy}
LLIO} }0B.1}3P J0U S50 ut aeb e jo Buioo| ayy ‘siy) BupuEISYIMO puej ayj ojuo upapuem sjdoad
43089p P G/vO61 Ul B1ED € JO Buy20! 8y} 'SILY DUIPUEISLIMION dois 0} Sem siy| “uieIq POOMI{EL SBSS0ID )l BJaum yied oy ¥661 YOI . Palep Jona
e saye asn awos 0} alqns sem yyed ay) jey) 1sebbns Aew siuy), | SS0IoE pauleyd pue Pasod sem a)eb pajuied siym e G/961 U] | uued poombBeH Jo 1IBNH d [ JW
sjuaWOD uondalqo eweN ebed | qel

eyeIplayM uued jeH moisedg o} 19ang Uiy
JapaQ uonieoyipoly dey aaniuyeq 1o uonedyddy

1861 10V 8pIsAIUNOD B SJIPIM




Page 114

sa01eg Aoueynsuo) g Juswabeuepy Aepn jo sybry onandg

S9je100ssyY LeD uiqoy

(spJooas 1oy 2oueUl] Q16| ‘SuBld Aemjiey ‘sdeyy SO) Anjua) yienuem]
8y} Jo ped Aues ay) Ul 30UBISIXA S} JO SOUTPIAS Si BIBY] JNG Pasn Ajiaesy
sem yjed siy) 1ey) paisabbns jou si )| "aoeid aye) Jou pip asn Yons jey) ueawt
S90p 8jnou uonedlidde ay) asn suoAue a3s Jou pIp IBNOW S 1BY) 108} 8y 1.

anoJ ay} Buisn ajdoad Jo aouapIAS AuR UDSS JOASU SEH

ssaooud Buppw
uoISIOBp Y] Jo Led Se JUNODOE OjUI USKE] 3G UED Jey) SIslew Jou ale asayl

‘spaiq aweb pue sdoio o} abewep Buisneds sBop
pajlosuooun pue ‘aseasip Buipeaids jo ysu ay) 'sjediweyd
Buisn uaym subis Buiuiem 10313 0) Buiney JO 20UBIUBALODU|

suonoalqo s,jibnH
JIN spoddns pue ‘ajnoa uonesljdde ayj jo ped Aq passolo

Y66 LYDIEIN 6 POIEP JoyST

su01308(qo s,1BnH JN o sjuswwod 333 | (pue| s HIBNH JN) pue| aui Jo Wed jo (sieak z jsed) Jueus) ayy s | ebpo Aquebioy] J0 IBNOIN OHD 74 (174
‘yyed sy} Buisn suoAue mes 1anau pue
(paxooj asem Aay) asnesaq Algewnsaid) a3nos uoiealdde ayj
uo sajeb Jano quio 0} BulAey S|{EdaL puUB ‘Jooys Spoomyoe|g
"9A0QE JUBWILIOD 835 Ay} JO JaquIaW B SEM JNOS JW 9261 PUB 0/61 Uusamieg
(spiodal oy aoueul] 016) ‘sueld Aemjiey ‘sdepy SO) Ainuag yishusml
8Y) Jo ped Ajiea ay) uj 30uBISIXa S)I JO DOUSPIAS Sf BI3Y} Inq pasn Ajiaeay ‘g)nos uones)dde ayy Buisn suoAue
sem yied siy3 jeyy paysabiins jou si )| "aoe|d 8)E)} jou pIp asn yons jey) uesw MES J9ABU pue ‘uued Jlop moT Je Bugoenuod aw jo junowie ¥66) Asenuer 6| pajep
S30p 9)no; uoneoldde ay) asn auoAue 83s Jou PIP ¥NOS JW 1By} 198} 8y | 8|qesapISU0D & Juads PNOS JN 0861 PUB 0961 Usamidg | 19)197 ‘lleH MO||eMS 30 BNOS [ JN €z 0z
(spiooal 1oy doueui4 OL6L ‘sueld
Kemjiey ‘sdeyy SO) Aimuad yienusml ayj jo ped AlJes ay) Ul aous)SIXe ‘goeyd Bupye) ash yons jo
S}l JO @0UBPIAS Si 318Y) INQ pasn Ajiaeay sem yied syl jeys pajsabbns |  aouapine ou usaq sey a1ay) "pasn uaaq sey yijed pawied ay)
jou s} J| "s0e|d 9)E) JOU PIP SN YONS JBy} UBSW S0P ‘@SN YONS JO 9OUDPIAS 10U JO Jaylaym mouy 0} uosod anbiun e ul st {iBnH I Siesk
10 ‘ajnos uoneoldde sy} asn auoAue aas jou PIp 16N JW 1Y) 108} By L 05 JoA0 1o} e poombBer paidnooo Jospue paumo BuineH
"anJ) UIEWs USY) SPBW SIUSLUILUIOD
JaN9) SIY} Ut pasies SaNSS] 0) asU0dsal Ui SACUE SJUBLLIWIOD 395 ay) pue ‘ODAN 03 8j0um 6NH I PE6L UDIBIN L UO
€00¢ 1840300
sieak
9)ep uonesepag fionje
Ayy 1an0 Joy sBuipunoLINS SjBIPSWIWI PUB LB} BY) UMOUY w6 PIEp uoheieeq s
sey pue wiey poombBey je gy61 ul wog sem b dr JN 1én{ d r v 0z
sjusuiwon uonaalqo owenN ebed | qelL

SYBIPISUM ULEB jleH mouedg 0) }12ai)S Ulepy
JapiQ uonesyipo dew aauyaq 10} uogesliddy

186} 1OV apiskunod ' a4IpIM




Page 115

$891A18G Asueynsuog g juswabeuepy Aepn Jo siybry oyand

SOIBIN0SSY 1B LqoY

‘(sp1o2at oy aoueUld 016) ‘Sueid Aemjiey ‘sdely SO) Ainjue?) yienuamy,
ay) Jo ped Ajiea ay} Ul 3dUSISIXD S JO FOUBPIAS SI BIAY} Ing pasn Ajiaeay
sem yjed siy) Jey} paysabbns jou si )| ‘eoejd a)e)} Jou pIp asn yons jey} ues

101 Buisn auoAue
10 Yjed e jo aouapins Aue mes Janau aul) jey) Buunp pue

v661
yoJely ,01 Uop DOAN Aq paatadal

$20p ajnos uoedldde ay} asn auoAue aas Jou Pip 9X%00Y I Jey) 108} YL wue4 poombbeH je Jojoejuoo e sem 661 Pue 0661 Buung 18197 uoiBulSaH JO 3400y V¥ I [~74 0z
*(sp100as
1OV oueuld 0161 ‘sueld Aemjiey ‘sdeyy SO) Anua) yienuamy ayj jo "a)Ap ay} sano abpuq ay; ssosoe
ped Aues ay) ur a0UBISIX S) JO BOUBPIAS S| a1ayj Ing pasnh AjAesy sem yjed ajeb e sem a1ay) $,0/01 3l€| 2y} 0} $,006} Piw 8Y) wod4 ') 661
SIy} Jey) paysabibins jou st )| ‘aoe|d e)e) Jou pIp SN YONS jey) uesw saop yem auoAue mes 1aaau puk Yjedjooy e fuiaq Jana a1ayj |jeoal yosely ,04 U0 DOAN Aq panisoal
ajnoJ uoljeo)dde ayj asn auoAue 9as Jou PIP UOWIWIEBH JW Jey) JoB} oyl 10U S30(] ‘2661 [UN LP6] Wolj uueq poombBEeH je paXJOpn | 18112 "a3BIPIBUM JO PUOWIWEN [°Y4 0C
SHUBWWOD uondalqo aweN ebeq | qgel

9)eIPISYM Wik jleH mouedg 0} 18948 UIBN
1ap1Q uonedyIPOK dely aaliuyaQ Joj uonesljddy

1861 10V apisAnunod g aiIpPIM




Page 116

Annex 7

Legal Tests




Page 117

Legislative Tests

Test to be Applied

When considering an application for a DMMO to add a public right of way
to the Definitive Map the burden of proof initially rests with the applicants
to prove their case. If a prima facia case in favour of the application is
established, the onus then falls upon anyone opposing the application to
provide evidence in rebuttal. The standard of proof is the civil test of ‘on
the balance of probability .

If, having taken into account all of the available relevant evidence, the
Authority is satisfied that, the alleged rights subsist or are reasonably
alleged to subsist the Authority has a duty to make a DMMO. Such an
Order can however, only be confirmed if, on the balance of probability,
the alleged rights can be shown to actually subsist.

Evidential Tests
Highways Act 1980, Section 31
Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states:

“(1) Where a way over land, other than a way of such character
that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the public
as of right and without interruption for a full period of twenty years,
the way is deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless
there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that
period to dedicate it.”

“(2)The period of twenty years referred to in subsection (1) above
is to be calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of
the public to use the way is brought into question whether by
notice, such as is mentioned in subsection (3) below or otherwise.”

“(3) Where the owner of the land, which any such way as aforesaid

passes has erected in such manner as to be visible by persons
using the way a notice inconsistent with the dedication of the way
as a highway; and has maintained the notice after the first January
1934, or any later date on which it was erected, the notice, in the
absence of proof of a contrary intention, is sufficient evidence to
negative the intention to dedicate the way as a highway”

Section 31(1) has two ‘limbs’ the first provides that proof of twenty years
continuous user “as of right” endorses a claim that a highway exists; the
second (sometimes referred to as ‘the proviso’) provides that proof of a
lack of intention to dedicate the way as a highway defeats the claim.

Section 31 is further supplemented by Section 32 of the Highways Act
1980, which states:




Page 118

“A court or other tribunal, before determining whether a way has or
has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such
dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration any
map, plan or history of the locality or other relevant document,
which is tendered in evidence, and shall give weight thereto as the
court or tribunal considers justified by the circumstances, including
the antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by
whom and the purpose for which it was made or complied, and the
custody in which it has been kept and from which it is produced.”

Common Law

Before public rights can be asserted under the Common Law, a
landowner must be shown to have intended to dedicate the right of way
over his land. The question of dedication is purely one of fact and public
user is no more than evidence, which has to be considered in the light of
all available evidence. Public use will not, therefore, raise the inference
of dedication where the evidence, in its totality, shows that the public
right of way status was not intended.

At Common Law, there is no specified period of user, which must have
passed before an inference of dedication may be drawn. It is necessary
to show, in order that there may be a right of way established, that the
route has been used openly, “as of right”, and for so long a time that it
must of come to the knowledge of the owners of the fee that the public
were so using it as of right.

If the landowner has done exactly what would be expected from any
owner who intended to dedicate a new highway, the time may be
comparatively short. However, as a matter of proof at Common Law, the
greater the length of user that can be demonstrated, the stronger the
inference of dedication will (usually) be.

Factors such as desirability, suitability, financial viability, need or even
public safety, whilst genuine concerns cannot lawfully be taken into
account, when making a decision. Therefore, whilst there may be some
genuine concerns about the anti-social behaviour occurring along part of
the alleged public right of way, it cannot lawfully be taken into account
when determining the application to modify the Definitive Map.



Page 119 Agenda ltem 7

COUNCIL

Decision Session 2 February 2010
Executive Member for City Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY - Application for Definitive Map
Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath from Thorganby Lane
to Lawn Closes (Public Footpath No 7), Wheldrake

Summary

1. This report seeks to assist the Executive Member in determining whether or not
to make a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) to add the route (shown
by a broken black line on Plan 1 (Annex 1) to the Definitive Map, as a Public
Footpath. In determining this issue it is important to consider the available
evidence against the requirements of the legislation (see Annex 7).

Recommendation

2. It is recommended that the Executive Member approves Option A and
authorises the making of a DMMO to add the route as a Public Footpath to the
Definitive Map.

Reason

3. Taken at face value, the tests set out within Section 31 (see page 3, Evidential
Tests) of the Highways Act 1980 would appear to have been satisfied, at least
to the extent of there being a reasonable allegation over the existence of the
alleged footpath. In addition there would appear to be a prima facie case in
favour of the establishment of public rights over the application route. No
evidence has been submitted by, or on the behalf of, the landowners to
demonstrate sufficiently overt acts, directed at users of the application route,
which constitute a lack of intention to dedicate.

Background

4. In September 1993 Wheldrake Parish Council submitted, to North Yorkshire
County Council, an application for a Definitive Map Modification Order, to add
the footpath, shown by a broken black line on Plan 1 attached to this report (the
application route). Then in 1996 as a result of Local Government
Reorganisation the application, which had still to be determined and remained
outstanding, was passed to City of York Council as the newly appointed
Surveying Authority for the area.



10.

11.

Page 120

In 2002 the Council commenced preliminary investigations into this, and a
number of other similar applications made by Wheldrake Parish Council. Whilst
these investigations were substantially completed at that time, the applications
were never formally determined. Therefore, more recently, and in order to bring
these matters to a close, the previously considered evidence was checked and
ratified, so as to allow the matter to be brought to a conclusion.

Summary of Evidence

Historical Documents

As part of the investigations a range of documents have been consulted, and
these are listed in Annex 2 of this report. Where the documents are considered
to have some evidential value in this case, they are further summarised within
the report, with more detailed comments included in Annex 3.

Ordnance Survey Maps

Ordnance Survey maps for the area show the physical existence of Susscars
Lane, which is shown as a bounded lane and named. The remainder of the
application route is not shown.

User Evidence

The application was supported by eight user evidence forms, and a further form
was submitted during the current investigation. These forms claim use during
the period 1963 — 2000. These forms are summarised in Annex 4 of this report,
and the periods of claimed use summarised on the User Graph in Annex 5.

Submissions made on behalf of the Landowner

In 2003 a submission was made on behalf of the landowners. The submission
claims that the application routes not shown on various maps; reports that
numerous people with knowledge of the area have never seen anyone using
the application route, or have never known it to be a footpath; and that the
route has been impassable for many years. The submission concludes that this
evidence demonstrates that public rights do not exist. The submission is
summarised, with comments in Annex 6 of this report.

Comments on Evidence

Historical Evidence

The Ordnance Survey Maps certainly confirm the physical existence of the
Susscars Lane section of the application route as being an historic feature in
the landscape, however such maps carry a disclaimer to the effect that the
showing of any path, track or way is not evidence of the existence of public
highway rights.

User Evidence

In common with many cases of this nature across the country, the fact that the
application is being determined some sixteen years after it was made, is
problematic so far as the continued availability of withnesses is concerned. The
evidence of the four witnesses who were interviewed should be given more
weight than that of the withesses who were not, which can only be taken as



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 121

read. Caution must also be exercised in the interpretation of the user evidence
forms as some witnesses state how long they have known the path, but then
have not gone on to say during which years they actually used it.

Submissions made on behalf of the Landowner

The submissions made on behalf of the landowner are of minimal evidential
value. The fact that various maps do not show the application route does not
preclude its existence; nor does the fact that various people have not seen the
application route used, preclude such use actually taking place. In addition the
seasonal ploughing and cropping of the route would not prevent the
establishment of public rights. Finally, and perhaps of most importance, the
submission provides no evidence of any acts demonstrating a lack of intention
to dedicate.

Assessment of Evidence

Historical Evidence

The recording and depiction of the Susscars Lane section of the application
route on the Ordnance Survey mapping may be considered to be consistent
with it being a public right of way however, equally as an apparent cul-de-sac
lane, in a rural location, this may suggest otherwise. This evidence, on its own,
is certainly insufficient to meet the legislative tests. It should however be
considered alongside, and in support of the user evidence to demonstrate the
use and reputation of the route as a public right of way.

User Evidence

Common Law

The user evidence suggests public user, “as of right” over a long period of time
(1963 to 2000), but the extent of the use is only occasional. Whist this would
not prevent an implication of dedication arising, pursuing a case under common
law dedication is not recommended.

Highways Act 1980, Section 31

Calling into question and 20 year period of user

Three of the user witnesses claim to have been challenged, by the landowner,
when using the application route during the period 1991-3, the latter date of
which coincides with the submission (1993) of the application for the Definitive
Map Modification Order. The Parish Council also noted, at the time of the
application that notices prohibiting use of the route had recently been installed.

Direct and personal challenges by a landowner are perhaps the most difficult to
pin point because, unlike fencing a path off, each challenge requires effort on
the part of the landowner, and is often only witnessed by the two parties
involved. The erection of notices, which appears to have occurred circa
August/September 1993, is a far more effective means of challenging use.

The application route does not appear to have been subject to high levels of
use, nonetheless half those who claim to have used it were challenged during
the period 1991 — 3.



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Page 122

If the earliest of these dates is accepted, then the required 20 year period of
user would be 1971 — 1991; if the latter (which includes the erection of notices)
is accepted, then the period will be 1973 — 1993. The evidence submitted in
support of the application covers the full twenty year period in both instances.

Actual use and enjoyment by the public

All of the withesses who submitted evidence in support of the application claim
to have actually used the path, and would fall within the general definition of
being members of the public. Whilst the user evidence that has been submitted
represents the minimum level of user, it still only gives a picture of occasional
use. Such levels of use may however, still be acceptable in relatively rural
locations such as this.

Use “As of Right” and without interruption

For use of a path or way to be “as of right”, it must be use without force, without
secrecy and without permission. There is no need for the user to believe they
are exercising a public right of way. The evidence submitted in support of the
application would appear to meet this test.

Whether use of the route has been subject to “interruption” is open to question.
In this context the term “interruption” does not mean a short period of time
where nobody used the route, it refers more to acts of interruption by a
landowner, such a preventing use, or turning people back. There must also be
the necessary intent on the part of the landowner. If the earlier challenge date
of 1991 is accepted, then there is no evidence of interruption, however of the
latter date of 1993 is accepted, then the witnesses who claim to have been
challenged, if they did not then continue with their use, in 1991 and 1992 would
have been interrupted in their use, thus not fulfilling the full period of 20 years
user.

Consultation

Consultations have been carried out in accordance with the Parliamentary
Rights of Way Review Committee’s Code of Practice on consultation, which
includes consultation with user groups etc. The Parish Council and landowners
have also been consulted, and the latter indicated an objection to the
application. Any evidence arising from the consultations has been included in
this report.

Ward Councillors
Clir C Vassie — No comments received.

Political Parties
Clir S Galloway (Lib Dem) — No comments received.

Clir R Potter (Labour) — ‘Happy to support the modifications comments
received 30" December, 2009.

Clir I Gillies (Conservative) — No comments received.



23.

24.

25.

26.

Page 123

Clir A D’Argone (Green Party) — No comments received
Options

Option A: If, having considered all of the available evidence the Executive
Member decides that public rights are reasonably alleged to subsist, the
Executive Member should resolve that:

(a) The Director of City Strategy be authorised to instruct the Head of
Legal Services to make a Definitive Map Modification Order to add a
public footpath, along the route A — B on Plan 1 (Annex 1) attached
to this report, to the Definitive Map;

(b) If no objections are received, or any objections that are received, are
subsequently withdrawn, the Head of Legal Services be authorised to
confirm the Order made in accordance with (a) above; or

(c) If any objections are received, and not subsequently withdrawn, the
Order be passed to the Secretary of State for confirmation.

(d) A decision be made regarding the Authority’s position in respect of
the confirmation of the Order (i.e. support, or seek non-confirmation)

Option B: If, having considered all of the available evidence, the Executive
Member decides that the alleged public rights do not exist, they should resolve
that:

(a) The application to modify the Definitive Map be refused.

(b) The applicant be advised of their rights of appeal.
Corporate Priorities

If it is determined that the available relevant evidence shows that a right of way
subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist and is added to the map the
benefits of doing so would link into the Council’s Corporate priorities. A public
right of way is sustainable, car free and provides access to health and
recreation opportunities thus contributing to the priorities of making York a
Sustainable and a Healthy City.

Implications

Financial

If it is determined to progress a Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) it
will have to be advertised in the local press. The cost of advertising the order
would be in the region of £1500. If an order is made, and no objections are
received the order will be confirmed and re-advertised, again at a cost of
£1500.



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 124

If objections to the order are received, and not withdrawn, the outcome of the
order will be decided by the Secretary of State, possibly by means of a Public
Inquiry. The cost of a Public Inquiry being approximately £5000.

If the order is confirmed by either the Council or the Secretary of State the
authority has to accept that the route is maintainable at the public expense.
Acceptance is not as such a new obligation but is part of the Council’s statutory
duty to keep that map up to date and formally record the rights of the public
where those rights exist but are not yet shown and recorded in the definitive

Human Resources
There are no human resource implications.

Equalities
There are no equalities implications.

Legal

City of York Council is the surveying authority for the purposes of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, and has a statutory duty to ensure that the Definitive
Map and Statement for its area is kept up to date. If, and when, the Authority
discovers evidence to suggest that the Definitive Map and Statement needs
updating, it is under a statutory duty to make the necessary changes. A
Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) enables any changes to the map
and statement to be made. DMMO’s do not create any new public rights of way
they seek to record those already in existence but not formerly recorded in the
definitive map and statement. Issues for example such as safety, security and
desirability whilst being genuine concerns cannot be taken into consideration.
The DMMO process requires an authority to look at all the available evidence,
both documentary and user, before making a decision

Before the Council can make the a DMMO to add a route to the definitive map,
as is the subject of this report, it must be satisfied that taking into account the
available evidence, that a right of way can reasonably be alleged to exist. If it
can, the authority must make the order.

Taken at face value, the provisions of Section 31 (see page 3, Evidential Tests)
of the Highways Act 1980 would appear to be satisfied, and there would appear
to be a prima facie case in favour of the establishment of public rights over the
application route. Where there is possible evidence of lack of intention to
dedicate, it appears to coincide with the dates of challenge and it may therefore
be outside the relevant time periods. The matter is further compounded by the
limited number of withesses who are still available to confirm their evidence.
No evidence has been submitted by, or on the behalf of, the landowners to
demonstrate sufficiently overt acts, directed at users of the application route,
which constitute a lack of intention to dedicate. The only evidence of such acts
is contained within the user evidence forms relating to challenges, and the
submission by the Parish Council, which refers to deterrent signs. However
these are the same acts that appear to call into question the existence of the
alleged rights, thus triggering the provisions of Section 31 of the Highways Act
1980. If this is the case, these acts may have occurred too late to prevent
public rights being established.



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

Page 125

An Order cannot however be confirmed unless those rights are shown, on
balance of probability to subsist. A situation can therefore arise where an
Authority is obliged to make an Order, even though that Order may not be
capable of confirmation. Despite such a situation arising, if the rights are
reasonably alleged to subsist, the Authority cannot refuse to make an Order
despite knowing that it will be incapable of confirmation. This would appear to
be such a situation.

Crime and Disorder
There are no crime and disorder implications.

Information Technology
There are no IT implications.

Property
There are no property implications.

Other

If the definitive map modification order process concludes that public rights do
exist the public footpath becomes maintainable at the public expense and
should be recorded as such on the List of Streets Maintainable at Public
Expense. The Council, as the highway authority for public rights of way, has a
duty to maintain the public footpath to a standard that allows use by lawful
traffic: the right of way is on foot only.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council's Risk Management Strategy, Options A is
subject to internal budgetary pressures (financial). There are no risks
associated with Option B.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Joanne Coote Damon Copperthwaite, Assistant Director
(Definitive Map Officer) City Development and Transport
Network Management
(City Development & Transport) Re vz

_ port Date 22.01.2010
Tel No: 01904 551442 Approved
Wards Affected: An [ ]

Wheldrake

For further information please contact the author of the report



Page 126

Background Papers:

Evidence evaluated and background report prepared by Consultant: Robin Carr
Associates, Public Rights of Way Management and Consultancy Services

Highways Act 1980

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Rights of Way: A Guide to Law and Practice, Fourth Edition, by John Riddall and
John Trevelyan.

England and Wales Court of Appeal (Civil Division) Decisions: R v Secretary of State
for Wales ex parte Emery (1997)

Appendices:

Annex 1: Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Thorganby Lane to Lawn Closes
(Public Footpath No.7), Wheldrake

Annex 2: List of documents consulted

Annex 3: Summary of Documentary Evidence

Annex 4: Summary of User Evidence

Annex 5: Graph showing Periods of Claimed User

Annex 6: Summary of Objector’s Evidence/Comments

Annex 7: Legal Tests



Page 127

Annex 1

Plan 1: Claimed Public Footpath, Thorganby Lane to Lawn
Closes (Public Footpath No.7), Wheldrake




A‘ﬂ ex [

Page 128

sue AquebBioyL

pp¥ 589 IS :90UaIB}0Y PUD

feeppmp——t—t———t—t—t—+—+  Ujedjoo Buysix3a

JapIO uoHEOLIPOW dely aAliulaQ Joj uohealddy
1861 19V apISAIUN0D 3 NP
Y ! AL

1 WIeA 191519 Y0610 :ouoydajaL
88u|pae301d AD 10 UON3e80Ld o3 pes] Asw pua WB1kdog umesn seBuput usRanpasdas pesOwINRUn WBuAdos umedd @ 132 40A “410, '92¢ld SPIEU03T IS §
8910 ARUOHEIS 8ASAR JBH JO JBOAUDS U JO UOISEIWIAG eyl M Budduu agzh'Y AwAIng 8OUGUPJO £661 U3 WOL} PEINPOI

Kem Jo s1yB 21aNd

-oN Qupnesg sseforg :dnaup BuneuiBL JI2NNOD /
. gooz isnbny 9 ialeQ :Ag umesq 00094 91B3IS v— m 0
@ aXBIPISUM ‘(L ON dd SXBIPIOUN) >
B “ sas0|D umen 0} aueT Aquebioy L - ylediood 2liand PaWield 10 AL1D =7
N
N
\ , \
\
\

L ON 8%eJploum
yjediood aliqnd

’




Page 129

Annex 2

List of documents consulted




Page 130

Wileiiv  cevrrer ymren « e 981
Application for Definitive Map Modification Order
Susscars Lane, Thorganby Lane to Lawn Closes Wheldrake

HAnnex 2

Documents Consulted

Enclosure Award, Map and Act
Tithe Plan and Apportionment

1910 Finance Act records
Ordnance Survey Maps

Rights of Way Act 1932 Depositions
NPACA 1949 Maps and Documents
Local Authority Files

Quarter Sessions records

Parish Council Records

Other Highway Authority records
Local Historical Maps

Deposited Plans

Estate Records

Deeds

Aerial Photographs

Robin Carr Associates
Public Rights of Way Management & Consultancy Services



Page 131

Ann x3

Summary of Documentary Evidence




Page 132

ssoInuag Aoueynsuod g Juswabeue Aepn jo sybiy onand
S3JEI00SSY LB UIqoY

"moys Aay) sainjesy
|esiydesBodo) sy jo eoud)sixe eoisAyd ay} Jo aouapire poob Aiaa
apinoid ai0j918Yy) SUBWINDOP asay] ‘sdew JIay} uo pamoys Asy)
sbuiy) jo snjejs ay} oy psebas ypm saunbua g|qeuosess ayew
0} pasinbas sjanamoy aiem siohanns ayj "siybu Aemybiy ongnd jo
9OUIISIXa BY} JO DUSPINS Jou Si Aem 1o xoes} yied Aue j0 Buimoys
ay) 1By 0aye ay) o} Jounepsip e Aued sdew Asang soueuplQ

"UMOYS JOU S| 8IN0J BY) JO JBpuIBWS) Y|
'snjejs oyoads Aue ) aynquie Jou op Jnqg ‘(SUB] SWeIsNg) SN0l
8y} Jo ed Jo aoua)sixs jeatsAyd ay) moys sdew Aenng asueuplO

sdey Aaang aosueuplO

SJUBWWOD

JUBUOY JUBWINIOY

uopduosag

200

qeL

g uvtv*

aosuapiAg Aiejuawinsoq jo Arewwing

eIpiayp s9s0jD ume] o} aueT Aquebioy] 'aue sieossng
JapiQ uoneoyipo dely anuyaQ 104 uoieslddy
1861 10V dpisAnuUNOD 2 SHIPIM




Annex 4

Summary of User Evidence

Page 133




Page 134

$80103G Aoueynsuo) g Juswabeuepy Aepn jo syybiy onqngd
S3JeI008SY JIB) uIgoy

"8|lls B pue ajnol ay} uo saieb sjjeosy
‘'umou) sem yjed awip woly USNE} USSQ SBY BSh JO poued
"Jedh B sawly p-¢ ) pasn pue sieak zz Joj yied ayj Jo mauy|

€661 - 1261

anpIow O

et

uMOU) Sem yied i} WOy udNe) usaq Sey asn Jo polad

“joeq pawin}
10 paddols JaAsu sem pue s1eak /| 1oy ) 8sn pip Inq yied
ayj Jo Aowaw pajie}sp Ou Pey SSBUNIM 3y} PaMBIAIBIUL UBLUAN

suonebisanu| Zooz Jo wed se pamaintayuy

€661 —9.61

pieebiaisO

€l

PEY00)

Buiaq way) Jo aduspina ou Ing ‘aynos ayy Buoje sareb piay
siaquiawal pue ainses|d 10} yied ay) pasn ‘umouy sem yied
LI} WOJ) udXe) Uaaq sey asn JO pouad J1eak B saul) G-y #
pasn pue sseak 7 o} yied ay) JO umouy SABY 0} SLUIBD SSOUNA

€661 - 9861

jung s

€l

"yied ay} J0 pus uIBISED AY] B pPajoala Jale|
SEM 30[J0U S19SSBASal} OU 7 “JOUMOPUE| 8y} JO MB|-UI-UOS By}
Aq paBuajieyo uaym s,0661 Anea ay) ul yled ay) Buisn paddoig

‘pus peoy Aquebioyy
8y} 18 9[iIS B OS|e Sem aJayj 'Pexoo| Janau elam Aoy}
Nq ‘aynos ay} uo sajed piay asam alayy 00} ) Buisn s19yio mes
pue ‘‘Buiyoiem piq 10} sBuj ayeiplaypn 03 388 03 yed ayl pasn
‘Kem ay) jo yonw Joy yjed uappol) Jeapo e Ajjeuibuo sem aiayy

suonesysanu] Zo0oz Jo Med se pamaiaIBu)

w
o

2661 - 1961

ssafiing 9

€l

uonewoyuy Jayio

uondnisajul
Inoyimiasn | 7

Wby josysesn | 7

21iqnd 40 Jequialy | 7
8S[) SJESA 4O ON

asn jo pouad

o410

8sduapuodseiso)

MeINIBYUL SSOUIM | 7

wog4

aouspiAg tosn | 7

sweN

aBeq

qey

+ xvt&\

92uapIAg 198 Jo Llewwng

SYRIPIBYM S8S0JD UMET 0} eue] Aquebioy | 'eueT sJeIssnS

18pIQ uoneoyipoly depy aanuyaq Joj uonesiddy

1861 10V BpISANUNOD 9 BYIPIM




s801M8G Aoue)nsuo) B uswabeuepy Aepn Jo siybiy dland
S8}e100SSY LB uigoy

‘pua wia)s ay) Jeyy a3eb ayy jo doy sy ssoioe paoe|d Sem aim
pagieq uaym 0OOZ IUN Jeak e aoim) 10 8ouo yied ayy pasn 3 3 r 6 0002 - 1661 r uosmeay | 6 el

‘punolb ay) uo SNOIAGO Ajuessadau
jou Ing ‘uado uaaq sAemie pey yled ay) ‘siy} 0} 10ud

Aem Jo JyBU Ou Sem a1ay) Jey) Jaumopue] ay)
Aq pauLoju) SEM BYS UBYM ‘1661 O) 6961 ULO) Yied ay) pasn

suoneBysanu| Z00zZ 40 ved se pamaiaia; | p S IS zz 1661 — 6961 r r esor | 8 €1

'sa)eb pjay o 8oua)sixa ay) sjjedsl
pue ajnos ay} Buisn wuoj pajusiald JaAsU SBAN HMOBgasIoY
pue 100} yjog uo ainsea|d 10§ A|jeuoiSed30 3JN0I By} pasn M M M oe €661 - €961 M Aqiieg © L el

Page 135

‘yjed au} Jo pus uia)sea ay) je pPajoals J9je|
SBM 801J0U Suassedsal) Ou  "JBUMOpUE| 8Y) JO MB|-UI-UOS ay}
Aq pabusjieys uaym s,0661 AlJes ay} ul yied ayy Buisn paddoig

"USYO UBIP}IYD pue
pueqgsny Jay yum Ajensn ‘sbuj sy} pajsiA ays SUoIONIISQo
JO S01J0U OU B19M 218y} pue asn 0} Asea sem yyed ay .

suoneBisanul 00z Jo Wed se pamainall | b r M sz 7661 - L961 M M ssebingr | o €l

"8]1}S © pUB 3JN0J By} Uo sajeb sjjeoay
‘umouy sem yjed aw) woy uaye} usaq Sey asn jO poled

‘ieak e sawl p-¢ ) pasn pue sieek zz 10} yied ay) Jo mau) IS M M 44 €661 - 1261 p aNpION 3 S €l
sc | ¢ | 5| 7 ? |2 | 5 |35
g3 | 8 | 3 | o s (38 | § |3¢
2 $ > m. < W- /I % m
o= (7] =2 ® o k-] 7] <,
5 ¥ o o o - -] 5 <%
< - ] [ 3 = (]
3 m X T @ o 2 3
o c o [ O
g s & 3 2 ®
uoneULIoU] J3UI0 = H @ i $ swep | abed | qey

axBIP|OYM $8S0|D umeT] 0} sue Aquebioy) ‘aue sueossng
18p10 uoneoyipow deyy aAuLaq 1o} uoyiesriddy
1861 10V 9pisAUN0D 8 JIPIM




Page 136

Annex 5

Graph showing Periods of Claimed User




Page 137

S %5\*

000cC - 1661 uosmeq 6 €1

1661 - 6961 e sor 8 €l

€661 - €961 Aqjiag © . €1

2661 - L961 ssabingr 9 €l

€661 - L1461 anploN3 § €l

€661 - 1461 SNpISN D ¥ el

€661 - 9461 pieebio)sp1 € €1

i ——— €661 - 9861 ungs 2 €l

2661 - 2961 ssefingn | €l

0002 G664 0661 G861 0861 G661 0461 G961 0961 as( 40 poued aweN afeg qeL

188 pawnel) J0 spousd

O)EIPIBYAA S9S0]D) umeT] 0} aue Aquebloy) ‘aue sieossng
18pIQ uonesyipoly depy aaniuaq 104 uoneslddy
1861 1oV apISAIUN0Y 3 SIIPIIM




Page 138

Annex 6

Summary of Objector’s Evidence/Comments




Page 139

seoinag Aoueynsuod g Juawsbeuepy Aepn jo sIYBIY dand

sajenossy e ugoy

‘Jsixa jou op
sjybu Jey) aouUapIAG Jou 1 Jf “yied pawied ayj Jo asn |BNJO. NBY] JO SOUPIAD
uanib aney ajdoad jey) 0B} By} uuoy 1oeNep Aem Aue u) ‘Jou S30p SIYL

‘y1ed100) B 8G 0} SJN0J Y} UMOU) JOASU SBY 8H

*K19100S [EDLI0)SIY [BD0] BY) O JAGLUSLI JSPUNOY B SI pue )| Siy
40 Quolew ay} 1oj abe|iia ay) Ui pany sey G/ pabe ‘umoig 3 JIN

aouapine Atejuawnoop uodn jueyal Jou pue ‘Paseq Jasn aq 0) PAISPISUOD S|
18pIO ue Jo poddns ui ases Auy ‘sBuipuy sJUBHNSUCD BY) YIM JUS]SISUOD S|
SiY} ‘SdBL SNOLIBA UO UMOYS S! UDIYM ‘8ue SLBosSng Jo uolidsoxs ayj Ui

‘papadsul usaq aaey jey) sdew Aue
uo yjed e Jo 3oud)siXa 3y} PaLIUBPI JoU SeY YoIeasas {EDU0]SIH

'S,0661
ayi ul pesn sem yjed ay) jey) SOUSPIAR SI B1ay) alouudyung Aiowaw

BuiAl UM SI YOIM /G U1 Wiy By} pasnboe Ajuo suopels) ayj asnessq

SJ1auUmo

€002
19quie08(g SpeW UOISSIWANS

P
SUOS 9 UOLIBID A [ 40 JiByaq uo

juswWalels Siy) Jo ADBINOOE BU) 0} SB AJUlEUSOUN SWOS 84 ISnw syl 8y} jo Aiowaw Buial] ul pasn uaaq 1aAsu sey Yjedioo) ayt $301A9G AHadold {einy sniody Z 6l
‘@peW aq 0} AABY [|IM $80U3} JU03|8 p| pue sajeb
suoisinasd ssedoe Jsixa sjybu oyagnd §i ‘sseo0id Guijew uolsIoap ay) jo ped Z 9jenobau 0) aAey pinom s1asn pue djqejdaddeun ag pinom
SE JUNOJOE J0} Ul 9)B] 8Q JOUUBD PUB UOIIBIIPISUCD JUBAS|SS B Jou S| SIYL pioy 0} ssaooe 2ijqnd Buimol|e pue piesy Aiep abie| e aneH
‘yjed 9y) pasn pue ‘J0 SIEME SIaM SJUSPIS8) JAP|0 SWos Ajuiensd ‘pasn Buiaq yied ay) Jaquialual Jouued sieak
1ey} sysebbns yaiym ‘aouapine Jasn ey) Aq peioipesjuod aq o} sieadde siul 0G JaN0 Joj 218y} pani| aAey oym ‘ebejiia ayl Jo sjuapisal piO
*3}e2Ipap 0} UoHUAUL JO Hoe|
JO uondniialul JO 8OUBPIAS @Q 0]} PalapISuod aq UEBD SIY} Jaylaym |npqnop
2JojoIay} S| }| "9ABe| O} WaY] PaySe pue HOoBq Wyl pauin] aAey jouued SABY| 0} POXSE US3Q SBY SPEOI LB} JO WaJSAS jeussiul
Kayj ‘anos uonedldde ay) Buisn eucAue ueas JOu SABY SJBUMOpUE| Byl Ji sy} 0} uo syjed pabpajmoudoe woyy pakells sey oym suohuy
‘yed ayj} Jo yoadsal uj Jol|as Xe} PSWIBJO SISUMOpUE| ay) Jeadde pinom
} 818UyM SPIOdBl dOUBUY OL6LO Y} @le anjeA jejuepine sajeasb sdeysad
1O "pouad awi) payioads SIBUMO Juaund ay) a1048q ‘Ajyby Ajuo yaqie ‘pasn snbnv paniadal
sem yed ay) pue ‘adusisixe ul s1om sybu Jey; sisabbins ases senoued 0} mmmm ﬂcoumﬂ% >_.. Eo.cw%z\%__
SiY) Ul S0UBPIAS 3Y} JaABMO oe|d UaXe)} Jou SBY ash YoNns Jey} ueaw jou 81N0J BY} YiEm BUOAUE USSS JAABU SBY Bul} JBy}
sa0p ‘yied sy} Buisn suocAue uaas JouU SABY SISUMOPUE| BY) JBY) 108} Ul Buunp pue (g661 03 Joud) sieak /¢ Joj pue| 3y} pawle) seH SUOS R UCRBID A [ vl 61
SJUBWIWOD uop22(qo aweN ebed | qeL

SJUBWIWOY/32UBPIAT S,10)23[qO Jo Aiewwing

"9 xvt“%\

2)eIPIBYMN S950)D umen o} aueT Aquebioy} ‘sueq sieossng
1apJO uonEduIPON dely sauyaQ 40} uonedliddy

1861 10V apISAUN0D B BHIPIA




Page 140

$801A13G Aoueynsuos g Juswabeueiy Aepn Jo sybry ongnd

SO)eI00SSY LEe) uIqoy

BAOQE SJUBLIWIOD 39S

‘yied ayj asn 0} buikly suokue uass Jana bBuiaey jjedas
JOU Op 9)IM SIY PuB UOREID) UBYIBUYO[ JiA JOUMO Juasaid ayL

2A0(E SjuBLILIOD 988

"aynol uoyealdde ayy Buisn suoAue Buiaas |jeDal J0U OP 6661
pue 0661 Usamjaq wue;} ay) je paxiom oym saakojdwe Jowio4

2AOE SJUBLILOD 338

‘yjed ayj Buisn sjdoad Buiass jjeoal Jou s80p 8y
PUE 6861 0} S,0961 By} W)} LBy 8Y) UC PaxIOM uojelo v JN

"9]e2IPap O} UOHUSIUI JO HOB| S JOUMOPUE| B JO S0UBPIAS SJNISU0D Jou
S90p Siyt ‘soejd 9)ej Jou pip s yons jeys uesw jou saop yied ayy Buisn
suoAue Buiaas (jeoau Jou op Ajiwe) 1Byl pue S1BuMopue| ay) eyl 108 ay

2jno: pauneo ay3 Buisn auokue mes JaASU pue gge} Ijun aiay}
Pani| pue G861 Ul 86200 YUED O} PAAOL UONEID ¥ SIN

‘goe|d a)e)} Jou pip asn

yons jey) uesw ‘uopeulbew) ay) Jo yolans Aue Aq Jou saop yled pawie}d
ay) Buisn auoAue uaas jou sey Jaumopue| Buunogybiou e jey) 108} ay|

"8}n0J pawied ay)
Bumyiem ojdoad Buiass sjjeoas 10U ay pue suns yjed pawiep
ay) yoiym ybnouy; puej sy o} Juadelpe pue] SUMO XOM d JIN

sjuawwo)

uop23fqo

sweN

ebed

qel

8)BIpjeYM S8s0|Q umen o) aue Aquebioy] ‘aue sIeossng
19p10 uonESKIPOW dep aAuYa( o) uoneslddy

1861 10V 8pishiuno)d g SjIpIM




Annex 7

Legal Tests

Page 141




Page 142

Legislative Tests

Test to be Applied

1. When considering an application for a DMMO to add a public right of
way to the Definitive Map the burden of proof initially rests with the
applicants to prove their case. If a prima facia case in favour of the
application is established, the onus then falls upon anyone opposing the
application to provide evidence in rebuttal. The standard of proof is the
civil test of ‘on the balance of probability .

2. If, having taken into account all of the available relevant evidence, the
Authority is satisfied that, the alleged rights subsist or are reasonably
alleged to subsist the Authority has a duty to make a DMMO. Such an
Order can however, only be confirmed if, on the balance of probability,
the alleged rights can be shown to actually subsist.

Evidential Tests
Highways Act 1980, Section 31
3. Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 states:

“(1) Where a way over land, other than a way of such character
that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has been actually enjoyed by the public
as of right and without interruption for a full period of twenty years,
the way is deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless
there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that
period to dedicate it.”

“(2)The period of twenty years referred to in subsection (1) above
is to be calculated retrospectively from the date when the right of
the public to use the way is brought into question whether by
notice, such as is mentioned in subsection (3) below or otherwise.”

“(3) Where the owner of the land, which any such way as aforesaid

passes has erected in such manner as to be visible by persons
using the way a notice inconsistent with the dedication of the way
as a highway; and has maintained the notice after the first January
1934, or any later date on which it was erected, the notice, in the
absence of proof of a contrary intention, is sufficient evidence to
negative the intention to dedicate the way as a highway”

4. Section 31(1) has two ‘limbs’ the first provides that proof of twenty years
continuous user “as of right” endorses a claim that a highway exists; the
second (sometimes referred to as ‘the proviso’) provides that proof of a
lack of intention to dedicate the way as a highway defeats the claim.

5. Section 31 is further supplemented by Section 32 of the Highways Act
1980, which states:




Page 143

“A court or other tribunal, before determining whether a way has or
has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such
dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration any
map, plan or history of the locality or other relevant document,
which is tendered in evidence, and shall give weight thereto as the
court or tribunal considers justified by the circumstances, including
the antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by
whom and the purpose for which it was made or complied, and the
custody in which it has been kept and from which it is produced.”

Common Law

Before public rights can be asserted under the Common Law, a
landowner must be shown to have intended to dedicate the right of way
over his land. The question of dedication is purely one of fact and public
user is no more than evidence, which has to be considered in the light of
all available evidence. Public use will not, therefore, raise the inference
of dedication where the evidence, in its totality, shows that the public
right of way status was not intended.

At Common Law, there is no specified period of user, which must have
passed before an inference of dedication may be drawn. It is necessary
to show, in order that there may be a right of way established, that the
route has been used openly, “as of right”, and for so long a time that it
must of come to the knowledge of the owners of the fee that the public
were so using it as of right.

If the landowner has done exactly what would be expected from any
owner who intended to dedicate a new highway, the time may be
comparatively short. However, as a matter of proof at Common Law, the
greater the length of user that can be demonstrated, the stronger the
inference of dedication will (usually) be.

Factors such as desirability, suitability, financial viability, need or even
public safety, whilst genuine concerns cannot lawfully be taken into
account, when making a decision. Therefore, whilst there may be some
genuine concerns about the anti-social behaviour occurring along part of
the alleged public right of way, it cannot lawfully be taken into account
when determining the application to modify the Definitive Map.




Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145 Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL

Decision Session — Executive Member for City 2 February 2010
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements — Consultation Results and
Detailed Design

Summary

1. This report provides the results of the consultation undertaken on the proposed
improvements to the A19/A1237 roundabout. It also updates the Executive
Member on the changes which have been made to address the comments and
accommodate constraints identified during the design period. The report
identifies that, subject to approval, the amended scheme can be constructed
within a revised budget allocation in the summer/autumn of this year.

Recommendations
2. The Executive Member is recommended to:

e Note the comments raised by the public, Councillors and interested
organisations.

¢ Note the Officer’s response to the comments and the proposed amendments
to the design.

e Approve the further development of the scheme in line with the amended
layout to enable the improvements to be tendered and constructed in the
summer/autumn of 2010.

e Approve the inclusion of a total allocation of £1.5m in the City Strategy
Capital Programme to construct the proposed scheme.

e Authorise the removal of the minimum amount of vegetation from the A1237
West landscaped bund in February, to allow the main works to proceed later
in the year to minimise the impact on nesting birds.

Reason: To reduce journey times for travellers in the A19/A1237 area whilst
maintaining safe crossing points for pedestrians and cyclists.



Page 146

Background

Overview

The 2008 Outer Ring Road study confirmed that travellers on the A19 to A59
section of the A1237 Outer Ring Road experience some of the worst journey
delays on the entire route. The upgrade of the A59 roundabout is included in
the Access York Phase 1 scheme planned for delivery in 2011/12 subject to
DfT funding approval. The works proposed in this report will reduce journey
times in the A19 area.

The Executive Member approved the delivery of improvements to the
A19/A1237 roundabout using the additional funding from the Regional Funding
Allocation at the 21 July 2009 City Strategy Decision Session.

The outline layout of the improvements was approved at the 20 October City
Strategy Decision Session to enable the scheme to be put out for consultation.

Consultation

Following further preparatory work after the confirmation of the preferred option
a consultation exercise was undertaken between 27 November and 18
December to ensure the views of the adjacent population, external
stakeholders and users of the roundabout were identified to allow incorporation
into the final design where possible. The consultation leaflet and layout
drawings are included in Annex 1 and 2.

The consultation included the following elements:

e Distribution of a leaflet to all households in the Skelton, Clifton Without
and Rawcliffe Ward area. (approx. 6,000)

e Displays at Clifton Library, 9 St. Leonard’s Place and Rawcliffe Bar
Park & Ride site.

o A staffed exhibition at the Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride site on 10

December (9:00 to 20:00)

Attendance at the Rawcliffe Parish Council Meeting on 14 December

Erection of road signs on the approaches to the roundabout.

City of York Council Website

Creation of an A19 Roundabout email address

Press Release

Internal Consultation with Council departments

External Consultation with interest groups and the Emergency

services



Page 147

8.  The following responses were received:

Source Number
Email 93
Clifton Library Display 4
9, St Leonards Place

. 3
Display
Rawcliffe =~ Bar P&R

. 4
Display
Rawcliffe Bar Exhibition | 4 (22 attendees)
Letters 7
Telephone Calls 4

9. The responses included over 270 comments with approximately 30 unique
items. A more detailed list of comments and officer responses is included in
Annex 3. The items in order of number of times raised are listed in the
following table.

Number
General Comment Of Rank
Comments
Congestion in area is caused by A59 roundabout 26 1
Concerns about merging traffic on A1237 24 2
Concerns about driver behaviour on the roundabout 24 2
Supportive of scheme 23 4
Other sections of A1237 should be upgraded 18 5
Traffic signals would improve capacity/safety 18 5
The A1237 needs to be dual carriageway 16 7
Proposal not considered to be value for money 15 8
Segregated Left Turn Lane would improve capacity 14 9
Pedestrian/cycling issues 13 10
Concerns about congestion on the A19 Northbound out
of City 12111
Concerns about affect on landscaped embankment 11 12
Concerns that the scheme will not reduce journey times 11 12
in the area
Concerns about closure of westbound Lay-by 10 14
Concerns about traffic speeds on roundabout 9 15
Concerns about queue lengths since previous upgrade 4 16
Concerns about level of lighting proposed 3 17
Questioned value of existing underpass & use by 3 17
peds/cyclists
Concerns over access to Ings Cottages/House 3 17
Flyovers are needed 2 20
Concerns about access/ exit to Rawcliffe Bar P&R 2 20
Should spend money on alternative modes of transport 2 20
Problems exiting Manor Lane will be worse 2 20
Misc. Comments (Raised by single resident - 14 items) 14 24




Page 148

Summary of Comments

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The main comment areas are listed in the table above and summarised in the
subsequent paragraphs. More detailed responses are included in Annex 3 and
the changes proposed to the scheme to address the comments are identified in
the design section of the report. The comments principally relate to
suggestions that different improvements at the roundabout or alternative
locations would provide better value for money solutions. Other comments
highlight concerns about driver behaviour (speed and lane discipline),
concerns about the proposed merge lanes, the consequences of the proposed
closure of the westbound lay-by and the impact of the scheme on cyclists and
pedestrians.

The council have undertaken a number of studies into the operation of the
A1237 Outer Ring Road which has identified the highest priority junctions for
improvement. The latest study was reported to the Executive on 23 September
2008. The studies have shown that for affordability, value for money and
environmental impact reasons improving the existing roundabouts is
considered to be the most appropriate way forward.

The busiest section of the A1237 is between the A19 and A59. It is not
expected that the full benefit of the A19 upgrade will be realised until the
improvements to the A59 roundabout, proposed to be funded through the
Access York Phase 1 project, have been completed. However for eastbound
A1237 and southbound A19 traffic the proposed A19 roundabout
improvements are expected to substantially reduce journey times even in
advance of the A59 upgrade.

The provision of segregated left turn lanes and traffic signalised solutions have
been investigated but are not considered to be warranted, feasible or
affordable at this location.

The twin lane straight ahead approaches and exits are a fundamental element
of the scheme to achieve the desired increased capacity for the A1237. The
layout is similar to the exit onto the A1237 recently constructed at the
Hopgrove roundabout but provides a wider hatched central strip between the
lanes rather than double white lines. Additional signing and lining will be
provided to identify the new road layout. It is anticipated that the increased
capacity at the roundabout will reduce the incentive for drivers to use the
incorrect lane. It is considered that the traffic islands proposed on the 3 lane
approaches will assist in reducing speeds and deter the use of incorrect lanes
on the roundabout.

Closure of the A1237 westbound lay-by is essential to enable the safe
operation of the merge lanes proposed on the exit to the roundabout. Following
comments made during the consultation period it is now proposed to provide
an alternative 24hr parking area in the Park & Ride extension car park to
compensate for the loss of this facility.

A number of amendments are proposed to the scheme to address the safety
and accessibility comments raised by local residents, cyclists and the police. It



17.

18.

19.

Page 149

is proposed to provide an at grade crossing facility of the A1237 East arm for
cyclists and pedestrians which can be used when the subway is not available.
The widened segregated footway/cycleway is planned to be extended to the
riverside cycle route. An additional traffic island is proposed at the access to
Ings Cottages.

More detail of the main comments in the list above with officer responses is
included Annex 3.

Consultation with Outside Bodies

The consultation drawings were sent out to the standard list of stakeholders
including the Emergency Services, Cycling Groups, North Yorkshire County
Council, Skelton & Rawcliffe Parish Councils etc.

Comments were received back from North Yorkshire Police, North Yorkshire
County Council, Rawcliffe Parish Council and the CTC as identified in the
following paragraphs.

North Yorkshire Police

20.

21.

North Yorkshire Police have been involved with the independent Safety Audit
process and have also commented on the proposed outline design. They
raised a number of concerns including the need to address the consequences
of removing the westbound lay-by, the lack of ground level pedestrian/cycling
facility on the A1237 eastbound approach above the subway and the merging
arrangements following the roundabout.

Constructive discussions have been held with a representative from the police
and they are satisfied that, taking into account the layout constraints which
apply to the scheme, the proposed revised design adequately addresses their
concerns. The scheme will be subject to an independent safety audit later in
the project programme which will include review by an independent police
team.

North Yorkshire County Council

22.

23.

North Yorkshire County Council supports the proposed improvements to the
A19 /A1237 roundabout. They consider that the improvements would improve
journeys in / out of York /North Yorkshire and accessibility to key services for
residents of both North Yorkshire and York, particularly through the use of the
Park and Ride facilities at Rawcliffe Bar.

They have asked to be kept fully up to date with future plans and any traffic
management issues etc throughout the construction and development of the
scheme as they will possibly impact upon traffic flows etc within North
Yorkshire.

Rawcliffe Parish Council




24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 150

An Officer from the council attended the Rawcliffe Parish Council meeting on
14 December to enable the scheme to be discussed. Subsequently the Parish
Council issued a formal response to the consultation which included the
following comments:

The Parish Council are aware that consultation in 2000 proposed the view that
any improvement work on A19/ A1237 would have little effect until extensive
improvements were made to the A59 roundabout — and would therefore like to
question the validity/effectiveness of proposed improvements with this view in
mind? Would it not be prudent to defer any improvements to the A19/A1237
roundabout until A59 roundabout has been improved?

The loss of the lay-by by Rawcliffe Bar Park and Ride amounts to the loss of a
well used public amenity and as such the Parish Council strongly objects to
this proposal.

The Parish Council wish to propose that the possibility of a deceleration
lane/slip road into Manor Lane is explored to reduce the congestion and assist
the flow of traffic in this area.

The pedestrian refuge (on the west side) is not a safe access and pedestrians
should be encouraged to use the underpass.

The Parish Council feels very strongly that segregated lanes divided by
pedestrian refuge will cause confusion to drivers. Inclusion of such in this
development should correspond with detailed monitoring of this section of the
scheme.

Officer Response

30.

31.

32.

33.

It is anticipated that the A19 improvements will reduce journey times in the
area — particularly in the eastbound and southbound directions prior to the
upgrade of the A59. The full benefit of the A19 improvements is unlikely to be
realised until the A59 roundabout is upgraded as well.

To enable the two lane exit to be provided on the A1237 it is not considered
safe to maintain the westbound lay-by in position. In response to the comments
made it is proposed to provide a 24 hr parking area in the Park & Ride
extension car park.

Owing to the relatively slow speeds of traffic off the roundabout it is not
considered necessary to provide a deceleration lane at the A19/Manor Lane
junction location. There is a risk that it would be less safe for vehicles exiting
Manor Lane if a deceleration lane was provided on the A19 due to the potential
for reduced visibility of vehicles travelling southbound on the A19 behind left
turning vehicles.

The safest crossing point of the A1237 for pedestrians/cyclists is considered to
be the subway however this does not cater for all movements. It is therefore
considered necessary to provide additional islands on the arms of the
roundabout with 3 lane approaches. In addition if the subway is not available



34.

Page 151

for use safe crossing points need to be provided for cyclists/pedestrians who
still need to gain access to York/Skelton.

The additional pedestrian crossing islands act as subsidiary deflection islands
which are a standard method of reducing traffic speeds at roundabouts.

CTC North Yorkshire

35.

36.

37.

The CTC have concerns about how the proposed scheme fits within an overall
sustainable transport policy.

They identify that the consultation leaflet refers to reducing delays in the
locality and improving safety for all road users. It is their view that safety of
pedestrians and cyclists, irrespective of their amenity, will not be enhanced by
the provision of more traffic lanes. They would like to be assured that this has
been modelled or otherwise audited. They would also press for simultaneous
safety enhancements to the dedicated cycle links across the bridges, at the
very least a parallel cantilevered lightweight bridge of adequate width and of a
standard to encourage significant increase of cycle use for the short journeys
made between the various housing and employment locations.

They are convinced that there is significant potential for modal shift towards
environmentally friendly modes on the route under consideration, but regret
that Cycle City plans do not appear to have been directed towards the need for
appropriate and radical measures. It is their view that the council should
recognize that meaningful promotion of cycling can tackle congestion and its
increased adoption will reduce the oil-dependence of our transport system and
be good for our energy security and balance of trade. Economic benefits in
another context would come from reduced health-care costs and absenteeism,
with improved productivity. Thus the need to abandon this scheme in favour of
other measures which could be less socially divisive, and particularly look more
closely at individual travel needs/aspirations and target accordingly.

Officer Response

38.

39.

Improvements to the Outer Ring Road are included with the Council’s Local
Transport Plan which was prepared after widespread consultation with the
residents of York. It is anticipated that increased capacity at the A19 will help to
reduce traffic levels in residential areas of the city and enable the transfer of
road space to more sustainable modes. The upgraded layout has been
designed to accommodate cyclist/pedestrian movements wherever possible.
No more than two lanes of traffic have to be crossed on all arms of the
roundabout. Unfortunately improvements to the cycle route over the river Ouse
are outside the scope of this project.

The promotion of cycling is a key element of the Local Transport Plan with the
initial results of the Cycling City programme suggesting significant increase in
the numbers of people cycling. The Council is delivering a significant
programme of cycling infrastructure works across the city which is prioritised
on a value for money basis to achieve higher cycling levels.



40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

Page 152

Member Views

Officers consulted with Skelton, Rawcliffe and Clifton Without Ward Councillors
Waudby, Moore and Watt, plus Councillors D’Agorne, Gillies and Potter on the
proposals. Their responses to the consultation layout are summarised below.

Ward Member Views
Councillor Watt has the following comments:

e Considers that the upgrade would be a waste of public money.

e Does not approve of the removal of the Westbound Lay-by.

e A major bottle-neck is caused by the island on the A19 at the end of
Manor Lane - can this not be altered to permit 2 lanes Northbound?

e Concerned about lane discipline on the roundabout

Councillor Waudby had the following comment on the option layout, no further
comments have been received on the consultation layout:

e Concerned about the effect on the existing footpath/cycle path over
the bridge, particularly in relation to the number of young people going
from Rawcliffe to Manor School.

Councillor Moore had the following comments on the option layout, no further
comments have been received on the consultation layout:

e Opposes the closure of the westbound layby

e Raises concerns about the need for enforcement of traffic regulations
at the roundabout

e Raises the issue of the capacity of the A59 roundabout restricting
flows in the A19 roundabout area.

Other Member Views

Councillor D’Agorne raised concerns about the provision of cycling and
pedestrian facilities on the outline layout. No further comments have been
received on the consultation layout.

Councillor Gillies had the following comments on the outline layout -- he has no
further comments on the consultation layout:

e Concerned about the possible closure of the westbound layby
e Raises concerns about traffic speeds and cyclists using the Skelton
cycle route.

Councillor Potter had the following comments on the option layout -- she has
no further comments on the consultation layout:

e Concerned about the possible closure of the westbound layby and
suggests that an alternative parking area with access to the river bank
should be provided if the layby is closed.



47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Page 153

Response to Member Views

The majority of the comments have been addressed in the main part of the
report and in Annex 3. Other items are addressed in the following paragraphs.

The traffic island close to the end of Manor Lane provides a dual function of a
pedestrian/cycling crossing and protection to the right turn movement into
Manor Lane. Alterations would require significant widening of the road into the
south verge to allow the facility to be maintained. Further investigation has
revealed the presence of services which would be prohibitively expensive to
move.

Cycling movements over Ouse Bridge will continue to be possible from the A19
area throughout the construction works and in the permanent layout. It is
proposed to continue the segregated path between the A19 and river Ouse
embankment.

It is proposed to provide a CCTV camera at the roundabout to enable traffic
movements in the area to be monitored and allow improved management of
the network.

It is considered unlikely that signalising the roundabout would provide
additional capacity unless the roundabout was substantially increased in size
to allow the provision of storage capacity in the circulatory area.

The lane designations will be designed to minimise overall queuing however it
may not be possible to allocate lanes to suit all conditions due to variations in
the turning movements during different times of the day and week. Lane
designations may be amended throughout the life of the roundabout to
accommodate changes to the turning movements which may occur in future
years.

Design

The proposed detailed design for the roundabout improvements has been
prepared by the Council’'s framework consultant Halcrow to deliver an
upgraded roundabout with additional capacity which is safe for all users. The
layout has been amended since the option report to meet current design
standards, address comments received during the consultation period and
minimise the cost of service diversions. The proposed layout is shown in
Annex 4.

The following main changes are proposed from the consultation layout:

General

55.

It is proposed to include a CCTV camera at the roundabout to enable traffic
movements to be monitored. The location is to be confirmed but the current
preferred position is between the A19 North and A1237 East arms near the
north end of the subway.



Page 154

56. Destination lane markings (e.g. S’ BRO, LEEDS etc.) have been changed on
the approaches and circulatory carriageway to simplify and match those used
elsewhere on the ring road.

A19 North Arm

57. An additional traffic and pedestrian island is proposed north of the access to
Ings House/Cottages to restrict traffic to a single lane north of this point. This
will make the turning movements in and out of the access safer to undertake.

58. It is proposed to move the start of the left turn lane southwards owing to the
presence of a BT chamber and fibre optic cables in the southbound verge. The
cost of moving the chamber was estimated by BT to be over £200k and would
have significant impact on the project programme and the communication
infrastructure in the area. Transport modelling has been undertaken which
indicates that the changes will not have a significant affect on the capacity of
this arm of the roundabout.

59. The pedestrian crossing position has been moved southwards and the length
of the existing traffic island has been reduced to enable the 3 southbound
lanes and traffic island to be accommodated.

60. The extent of the cycle/pedestrian route has been adjusted on the southbound
approach to allow the eastbound A1237 to be joined by cyclists without
rejoining the A19. The adjustment will also allow pedestrians to gain access to
the ground level crossing point of the A1237 if the subway is not available.

A1237 East Arm

61. It is proposed to provide an additional traffic island on the A127 westbound
approach to provide a safe at grade crossing position for the 3 lane approach.
Consequential adjustments to the cycle and pedestrian routes are proposed
which moves them to the east side of the subway.

A19 South Arm

62. Adjustments are proposed to the cycle/walking route to accommodate the
additional A1237E traffic island.

Park & Ride Access

63. No changes.
A1237 West Arm

64. It is proposed to shorten the central island slightly to enable the approach
lanes and cycle route to be accommodated within the highway boundary.

65. It is proposed to extend the widened segregated cycle/pedestrian route
westwards to the access to the riverside at the start of the river bridge
embankment. This will minimise conflict with pedestrians and cyclists on this
route.



66.

Page 155

To compensate for the removal of the westbound lay-by facility it is proposed
to provide a dedicated section of the Park & Ride extension car park which will
be available for use 24hrs. The existing height barrier will be maintained in
position and the remainder of the car park gated off for opening when the
extension car park was needed for the Park & Ride operation. A route will be
provide to enable walkers access to the A1237 footway and thence on to
Rawcliffe Ings.

Site Clearance

67.

68.

69.

70.

To ensure that the scheme can be constructed in the summer/autumn,
advance site clearance is required on the embankment on the south side of the
A1237 east of the A19. To avoid the bird nesting season between March and
October the site clearance must be undertaken in February or the work in the
area may need to be delayed which would push the end date of the scheme
into one of the busiest periods at the Park & Ride site (St. Nicholas Fayre
onwards). The extent of the site clearance will be kept to a minimum to allow
the works to be constructed. Replanting of the bund will be undertaken once
the scheme is complete.

Programme

The aim of the project is to deliver the improvements by the end of 2010. The
following milestones are envisaged.

Activity Programme Status

Outline Design July - October 2009 | Complete

Consultation November - | Complete
December 2009

Detailed Design December 2009 - | Ongoing
February 2010

Site Clearance | February 2010

(Embankment

Vegetation)

Tender Process March — June 2010

Utility Diversions April — July 2010

Main Construction July — November
2010

It is anticipated that the majority of the works will be undertaken whilst
maintaining all existing traffic lanes (speed restrictions and lane narrowing may
be required) although some of the work, such as resurfacing, will need to be
undertaken at night to minimize traffic disruption. This will be kept to a
minimum to reduce the impact on local residents. For safety and cost reasons,
where possible, the scheme has been designed to minimize the need to
undertake major work in the centre of the carriageway.

Estimated Costs

The estimated construction cost for the revised proposed scheme is £1.280m
including service diversions, design and supervision. The inclusion of an



71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

Page 156

allowance for contingencies means that it would be prudent to provide a
budget allocation of £1.5m in the Capital Programme. The increase from the
£1.4m estimate identified in the October report is principally due to the
inclusion of a CCTV camera, additional traffic islands on the A19 and A1237
East, amendments to the A1237 West cycle route and provision of the
dedicated parking area in the Park & Ride site.

Corporate Priorities

The improvements to the capacity of the A19 roundabout will contribute to the
following corporate priorities:

Thriving City — Additional traffic capacity will reduce journey times in the area
enabling trips to the adjacent business and retail areas to be undertaken more
efficiently. The upgrading of the capacity of the Outer Ring Road is one of the
key strategies within the council’s Local Transport Plan.

Sustainable City — The improved capacity will contribute to enabling the
delivery of developments on the brownfield sites in York Northwest.

Safer City — The projected reduction in traffic travelling along adjacent roads is
anticipated to reduce the level of accident risk in residential areas.

Implications
The following implications have been reviewed.

« Financial -- It is proposed to fund the £1.5m required for the construction
of the A19 roundabout improvements from the 2009/10 and 2010/11 City
Strategy Capital Programme. Details of the funding allocations for the
entire 2010/11 programme will be submitted for approval to the Executive
Member in March. Sufficient funds area available from the supplementary
Regional Funding Allocation for the delivery of this scheme in 2010/11.
Funds are available in the 2009/10 allocation to complete the design,
prepare the tender documents and undertake the site clearance.

« Human Resources (HR) — There are no Human Resource implications.
« Equalities — There are no equalities implications

« Legal — There are no legal implications

« Crime and Disorder — There are no crime and disorder implications

« Information Technology (IT) — There are no IT implications

« Property — There are no property implications

« Other — There are no other implications

Risk Management

A full risk register for the delivery of the project has been prepared and
mitigation measures applied where necessary. In compliance with the



Page 157

Council’'s risk management strategy measured in terms of impact and
likelihood, the risk score has been assessed at less than 16. This means that
at this point the risks need only to be monitored as they do not provide a real
threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Tony Clarke Damon Copperthwaite

Capital Programme Manager Assistant Director City Development and
City Strategy Transport

Tel No. 55 1641

Report Approved v Date 22/01/2010

Chief Officer’'s name
Title

Report Approved | tick Date Insert Date

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Wards Affected: Skelton, Clifton Without and Rawcliffe Aan [

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers

Executive Member for City Strategy Decision Session 21 July 2009: Regional
Funding Allocation Proposal

Executive Member for City Strategy Decision Session 20 October 2009: Outline
Design Report

Annexes

Annex 1: Consultation Leaflet

Annex 2: Consultation Drawing

Annex 3: Consultation Comments and Officer Responses.
Annex 4: Proposed Layout Drawing.



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



3
5

Background

City of York Council has a strategy to improve
capacity on the A1237 outer ring road by
upgrading the existing junctions. The route
performs an essential function for both longer
distance and local journeys in the area. Delays
and congestion on the route reduce the economic
attractiveness of the city and cause inconvenience
and safety concerns for local residents.

This leaflet outlines the proposals being
considered to improve the A19/A1237
roundabout, to reduce delays in the area and
improve safety for all road users.

When would the
scheme be built?

The council proposes to upgrade the A19
roundabout in the autumn of 2010.

Following this consultation, further design
development will be undertaken to complete the
details of the proposals, taking into account any
feedback received. The proposed final design will
be presented to a council decision meeting in
early 2010.

Inevitably, there is likely to be some localised
disruption during construction. However, this will
be kept to a minimum by careful programming of
the works. All entries and exits at the roundabout
and all pedestrian and cycle routes will remain
open during the day, with some of the most
disruptive work, such as resurfacing, being
undertaken at night.

3
=™  ciTY oOF

) YORK

COUNCIL

A19/A1237

Rawcliffe Roundabout Improvements

We want your views!

Why do we need
to do anything?

Travellers on the section of the ring road between
the A19 and A59 experience some of the longest
delays on the entire route, with extensive queuing
on all approaches to both roundabouts. The A19
roundabout is one of the biggest constraints for
eastbound traffic and the A59 roundabout restricts
westbound movements. Both roundabouts need to
be upgraded for the journey times in all directions
and time periods to be significantly improved.

Traffic levels on the ring road are substantially
higher than in 2001 when the A19 roundabout was
previously improved. The number of vehicles
passing through the roundabout each day has
risen from approximately 43,000 to 50,000, with
longer journey times again being experienced.

There have been 40 recorded accidents which
have resulted in personal injuries on or near the
roundabout over the last five years. The extensive
queuing on the approaches to the roundabout is a
contributory factor for many of these incidents.




Page 160
What is being propuscu:

A draft layout showing the extent of the proposed works

scheme are shown in the box below:

is shown opposite. The main elements of the

Widened entry lanes
A19 north, A1237 east and west approaches
widened to three lanes at the roundabout.

Widened exit lanes
A1237 east and west exits widened to two
lanes merging down to one lane after
approximately 250m.

Lane markings

Alterations to existing road markings on the
roundabout and approaches to accommodate
the entry and exit changes.

Pedestrian and cycle crossing points
Provision of additional islands on the A1237
west approach and A19 north approach to
ensure pedestrians and cyclists do not have to
cross more than two lanes of traffic at a time.

Landscaping

Amendments to the existing embankment and
landscaping on the A1237 east of the
roundabout to enable the road to be widened,
retaining as much of the existing vegetation as
possible.

Removal of A1237 westbound layby
Closure of the layby on the westbound A1237
to the west of the roundabout for safety
reasons. Alternative parking is available in
Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride site during opening
hours.

Additional lighting

Existing lighting to be extended along the
A1237 to cover the full extent of the new road
layout to improve safety.

The estimated cost of the proposed scheme is £1.4 million, financed from the City of York’s grant from

central government for local transport schemes.

The proposed A19 improvements in isolation will deliver reduced queue lengths and shorter journey times
on the approaches to the roundabout. However, significant reductions to the evening queues out of the city
on the A19 and on the A1237 westbound from Clifton Moor are dependent on the completion of the
proposed A59/A1237 improvements as well. The more extensive and costly A59 improvements are planned
for 2011/12 as part of the council’'s Access York (Phase 1) Park & Ride project, subject to funding approval

from the Department for Transport.

On completion of both schemes, it is anticipated that the roundabouts will be capable of handling forecast

traffic levels for 10-15 years.

How would
queuing be
affected?

Typical evening peak hour
queues in 2011 are
forecast to change as
shown, on completion of
both the A19 and A59
upgrade schemes.

The resulting journey time

from Clifton Moor to the York Business Park eg‘}/
A59 roundabout s Roundabout ,.

Rawchffe Roundabout

@

A19/A1237

predicted to reduce in the
evening peak hour by over
10 minutes.

_..‘
\"

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of

e Existing layout
e A19 and A59 roundabouts upgraded

rvey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery

Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

City of York Council 100019086 2009.




m__mmu_mf_an_am_gm__m\a
| Buryied aajeuls)e ‘suoses.
Kages 10} AgAe) Jo [eroway

B \ \ \ anm.m.Emm—.w xmnc_._w / | (e B ) ) a8 \
@aua) Al pue uoyl|n A A ) ‘wdog’g-wegy 9 Aepinies-Aepuoy RN\ o N : 0 Spe8sT pue quody
SpJeMO} (YINos) 61V | R > 8lIs 8pIY @ Yied 0 sinoy Bulusdo ) / SN : spiemo} (1sopM) L£21Y

X

‘pus uIByinos je sbu| pue yied Auno)
0] 9|ge|leA. SS822€ yim sinoy bBuiuado
Bulnp ays apiy % Yied ul a|qejieAe bBuiyied

N7 \W Z

Kep e sinoy g a|qe|iene

> y ‘paurelal AgAe| Bunsixg

N A : . N € P A ; x noAe| peol mau
; 18102 0} /€2 1Y uo Bunybij
1981]S m8au JO Juslxy

mc_omc:m vuh; S vam_EmE mE_oa
Buissolo |aas] punob 8]oA0 pue ueLSepad
*Aa1b yuep ul pawybiybiy ssue| oijesl maN

uonoss
BUB|-g MaU JO pu3

Alayes ss0.9 0] S1S11940
pue sueLisapad mojfe o}
puUB|SI J1jjel} MBU JO UOISINOI

Saue|-g
0} pauspim yoeoiddy

Seue| Jxe pue Ajjue
[EUOIIPPE 8lepoWwWoddk 0} pabueyd

paurelal ) ™Y | | sBupyew pue padeynsal INogepunoy
ssediapun Bunsix3g ,

seue|-¢

Aloyes ss010 0} sisIoAd
0] pauspim yoeoiddy 194 10 0} S1S]|

pue sueuisepad mojje o}
pUB|S! O3B} MBU JO UOISIAOI]

paulelulew
uswyuBqua Jo 1ybiay ) \ . , \ - -
"JUSWUBQWS OJUl PAUSPIM PEOY [ . . ; ) X Ajayes sso1 0
— , < : 2 ~ ~ \ | si1si1£o pue suelisapad moje
0] Buissolo mau pasodold

a|jqissod aiaym pauieal
juswueqwa uo uoieleban Bunsixgy

/

|sauel-g o} pauspim 1ix3]

/

/
/

\ Bx,m_._ pue oo :o,,t__o . > \ ! ; - saue|-g
spsemol (1sea) /e2Ly| uonoss | 01 pauspim yoeouddy

auB|-Z MBU JO pul

Uo}8)S sSpiemol

NoAg| v,,,,me mau (4uoN) 6Ly
19A00 0} /€2 1Y uo Bunyb wJe4 apISIaAlY e GLY Jo
19811 MU JO Juaxg . N Buissoio uelysepad panosdwi




Page 162
How to find out more?

There will be a public exhibition with council officers on hand to answer any questions at:

Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride Site
Thursday 10 December 2009
9.00am to 8.00pm

Unstaffed displays showing larger scale plans of the proposals will be available at the following locations
from Friday 4 December to Friday 18 December, during normal opening hours.

Clifton Library, Rawcliffe Lane, Rawcliffe, York
Council Offices, 9 St. Leonards Place, York
Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride Site

Further details and more plans of the proposals are also available on the council’s website
www.york.gov.uk/A19/A1237Roundabout/

01904 551641 (ask for Tony Clarke) Tony Clarke
Capital Programme Manager
@ By email City Strategy
A19roundabout@york.gov.uk City of York Council
FREEPOST (YO 239)
“B Online York
see council website for further details YO172Z
www.york.gov.uk/A19/A1237Roundabout/
and email comments to
A19roundabout@york.gov.uk

To enable your views to be taken into account, please send us your responses by
Friday 18 December 2009.
Any issues raised will be addressed in the final design of the scheme, where possible.

If you would like this leaflet in an
accessible format (for example in large print, on
CD, or by email) or in another language, please

contact 01904 551641, or email

A19roundabout@york.gov.uk

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMOAEMESRAE[EER cantonese)
W2 SR SR e SR ¢l (TS A | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

whasnym jezyku. (ReRI)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
e D d ST e wrw
71alcrow ‘T (01904) 551550

Produced on behalf of City of York Council by Halcrow Group Limited. Printed on environmentally friendly paper.
Published by Directorate of City Strategy. Funded from Central Government local transport allocations.
© City of York Council and Halcrow Group Limited 2009




NVd
Mo

[BUOPPE JO a3

SOUE| OlEI} MON

Buissoso ueisapad
1e Buioepns pay

Buined Aoinpiog

Bunybi mou

J8UIEq 9SION
JsujUEqWT

UoNeO| 3311

sduis ajquiny

Suoyeo0]

Buined ojnoe .

louaD AN pue uoylD
SpIemoy (Yinos) 64+

g@u ENS

) SRR
Sl

*
| LINISN3Y

Juswyuequs Jo ybieH
“JUBWNUBQWIS OJUl PSUSPIM PEOY

DY

@ N

a|qissod aJaym pauielol

JusuuBqWS Uo uoneleban Bunsixg

N\

e AQgxeH pue 0o :ot__oi%

splemo} (1se3) Z£21Y

o
s

JnoAe] Jnogepunoy pasodold

sjuswaAoIdu| JNOGEPUNOY BYIIOMEY /EZLV/6LY

2

x,N/A\\/

511S 5PId 8 SHed 16 O/e|leAR

Buiiied aAljeuls)e ‘suoseal
Aajes 1o} Aghe| Jo [eroway

‘wdog 8-wegy 9 Aepinies-Aepuolp

wdog 9-weg| 6 Aepuns

% ,///\ﬁ O |
\ —
/ 2NN

alIs apiy %R MJed 1o sinoy Buiuad

7NN ~

‘pus uisyinos 1e sbu| pue yied Aiuno)
0] 8|ge|ieAE SS899E Yum sinoy Bujuado
Buunp aus apiy ¢ Yied Ul a|qejieae Buyed

nmc_mwmh
ssedispun Bunsixg

pauerel
Jalreq asiou Bunsixgy

uoioss
sue|-g mau Jo pug

seuel-¢
0} pauapim yoeoiddy

Q%m\ AN

[SeuE|g 0} pauspim 1x3|

1NOAVT d3S0d0Odd LNOGVANNOY I44ITOMVY LETLV/6LY
7 /
/.
£

g /
%
.4 Y

Sp89T pue quody
spiemo} (1Isem) LE2LY

| Aep e sinoy 2 a|qejeAe
| ‘paulejas AgAe| Bunsixg

NoAe| peOJ Mau
18100 0} £€Z Y U0 Bunyb
19011S MaU JO Judlxg

uonoes
BuB|-Z MaU JO pug

Ajo)es ss010 0} S1S119A0
pue suelisapad moje 0}
pUE[S] OljjEJ} MBU JO UOISINOIH

IWHV4 3AISHIAAIY LV 61V JO DNISSOHI NVIHLSIA3d A3AOHdNI

seue|-g

0] pauapim yoeoiddy

N

Saue| 1Ixa pue Ajua

[EUOIIPPE 8}epPOWLLI0doE 0} pabueyd
sBuppew pue padeunsal INo0gepunoy

K|ofes ss010 0} S}sIj0AD
pue suelsapad mojje 0}

Alajes sso.0 0} sisi[oAd
pue suelisepad moj[e o}
Buissoio mau pasodold

pue|s! Oljel} MBU JO UOISIAOIH

UO}|8%S SpJemO}

1noAe| peos mau
1800 0} /£Z Ly U0 Bunypy
198.1S MaU J0 JudlX]

(YuoN) 61V

paurelal
JalLieq aSIoN

panowals aug|
uonejeban  yoeoidde
Bunsixg MaN

Buiyorey aue|
paoueyus [BJUSD  1IX8 MON
PpuE paure}al
uonejeben
Bunsix3




Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165

Annex 3: Consultation Comments and Officer Responses

1. The consultation included the following elements:

e Distribution of a leaflet to all households in the Skelton, Clifton
Without and Rawcliffe Ward area.

e Displays at Clifton Library, 9 St. Leonard’s Place and Rawcliffe
Bar Park & Ride site.

e A staffed exhibition at the Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride site on 10
December (9:00 to 20:00)

e Attendance at the Rawcliffe Parish Council Meeting on 14

December

Erection of road signs on the approaches to the roundabout.

City of York Council Website

Creation of an A19 Roundabout email address

Press Release

Internal Consultation with Council departments

External Consultation with interest groups and the Emergency

services

2. The following responses were received:

Source Number
Email 93
Clifton Library Display 4
9, St Leonards Place 3
Display
Rawcliffe  Bar P&R

. 4
Display
Rawcliffe Bar Exhibition | 4 (22 attendees)
Letters 7
Telephone Calls 4

3. The responses included over 270 comments with approximately 30
unique items. A more detailed list of comments and officer responses is
included in the following paragraphs. The items in order of number of
times raised are listed in the following table.



Page 166

Summary of Comments

Number
General Comment Of Rank
Comments
Congestion in area is caused by A59 roundabout 26 1
Concerns about merging traffic on A1237 24 2
Concerns about driver behaviour on the roundabout 24 2
Supportive of scheme 23 4
Other sections of A1237 should be upgraded 18 5
Traffic signals would improve capacity/safety 18 5
The A1237 needs to be dual carriageway 16 7
Proposal not considered to be value for money 15 8
Segregated Left Turn Lane would improve capacity 14 9
Pedestrian/cycling issues 13 10
Concerns about congestion on the A19 Northbound out
of City 12
Concerns about affect on landscaped embankment 11 12
Concerns that the scheme will not reduce journey times 11 12
in the area
Concerns about closure of westbound Lay-by 10 14
Concerns about traffic speeds on roundabout 9 15
Concerns about queue lengths since previous upgrade 4 16
Concerns about level of lighting proposed 3 17
Questioned value of existing underpass & use by 3 17
peds/cyclists
Concerns over access to Ings Cottages/House 3 17
Flyovers are needed 2 20
Concerns about access/ exit to Rawcliffe Bar P&R 2 20
Should spend money on alternative modes of transport 2 20
Problems exiting Manor Lane will be worse 2 20
Misc. Comments (Raised by single resident - 14 items) 14 24

Congestion in the area is caused by the A59 Roundabout

4.

The highest ranked comment received was the view that the main cause
of the delays in the area is queuing across the A19 roundabout in the
westbound direction caused by the lack of capacity at the A59 junction.

Officer Response

5.

One of the main causes of journey delays on the north west section of
the ring road is lack of capacity at both the A19 and A59 roundabouts.
For the full benefit of the A19 upgrade scheme to be achieved

improvements at the A59 roundabout are also required.

In the morning peak period the A19 junction is not generally affected by
the capacity of the A59 therefore significant journey time savings are
expected when the A19 roundabout is improved in isolation. However



Page 167

eastbound traffic is constrained by the capacity of the A19 roundabout
and queues can extend as far as the A59 at peak times (particularly
Saturday mornings/early afternoons). The proposed improvements to the
A19 roundabout will significantly reduce this queuing and reduce the
eastbound and westbound journey times.

In the evening peak period queues from the A59 roundabout extend over
the Millfield Lane and A19 roundabouts restricting the capacity of these
junctions. This queuing will restrict the benefits which could be achieved
from the proposed A19 roundabout upgrade. The council proposes to
upgrade the A59 roundabout as part of the Access York Phase 1 (Park &
Ride) scheme with the delivery of this scheme subject to the approval of
the Department for Transport (DfT). If approval is granted in the next few
months it is anticipated that the A59 roundabout will be upgraded in
2011/12. Full consultation with local residents and users of the
roundabout will be undertaken on the A59 scheme before the design is
finalised once the funding has been confirmed by the DfT. If the A59 was
upgraded before the A19 the full benefit of the A59 scheme would not be
realised because of queuing from the A19 roundabout.

It is not anticipated that significant improvements to the journey times of
traffic leaving the city in the evening will be achieved without the A59
being upgraded as well.

Concerns about merging traffic on A1237

9.

Many responses raised concerns that the proposed two lane exit
reducing down to a single lane will lead to additional accidents in the
area.

Officer Response

10.

11.

The twin lane approaches and exits are a fundamental element of the
scheme to achieve the desired increased capacity for the A1237.
Turning movements at the roundabout indicate that approximately 70%
of traffic approaching the junction on the A1237 at peak times (am & pm)
travels straight across. It is anticipated that reduced queuing and journey
times will not be achieved without providing additional straight ahead
capacity.

The twin lane exits from the roundabout proposed are based upon the
principle that traffic on the roundabout will be travelling at 30mph or less
(standard roundabout design practice and supported by surveys of
existing traffic at off peak times) and upon leaving the circulatory
carriageway will have sufficient time to merge in a safe manner prior to
the carriageway narrowing. The arrangement is broadly in line with the
design standard for wide single carriageway 2+1 Roads (TD70)
amended for the low speed and single carriageway nature of the roads
under consideration. The proposed layout moves the merge point away
from the roundabout and allows drivers to clear the junction area prior to



12.

Page 168

reducing to a single stream of traffic. The lengths allowed in the design
take account of expected traffic speeds.

The layout is similar to the exit onto the A1237 recently constructed at
the Hopgrove roundabout but provides a wider hatched central strip
between the lanes rather than double white lines. It is proposed to
provide additional signage to indicate that traffic should merge in turn
and the lighting provision will be extended to the end of the widened
carriageway.

Concerns about driver behaviour on the roundabout

13.

Many respondents commented on the general poor lane discipline on
the roundabout and the use of the incorrect approach lane to avoid
queues. The concern is that this leads to conflict with other road users
increasing the possibility of accidents and reduces the capacity of the
junction.

Officers Response

14.

15.

16.

Although behaviour of some drivers at the roundabout is frustrating the
lane markings are advisory and it is difficult for the police to enforce the
offence of inconsiderate driving. Lane markings have been adjusted in
the past on the A1237 approaches which has reduced misuse at the
roundabout but it is recognised that the practice still persists.

It is anticipated that the increased capacity at the roundabout will reduce
the incentive for drivers to use the incorrect lane. The left turn lanes
generate from the ahead lanes close to the roundabout giving little
opportunity to make inappropriate use. The increased capacity by having
two lanes on, through and off the roundabout for the ahead movement
will reduce the opportunity for vehicles to cut in to these lanes.

Further design work has been undertaken to develop a layout that will
encourage drivers to use the roundabout in accordance with the lane
markings. The proposed measures include the provision of:

e Pedestrian islands on all 3 lane approaches (A1237 (E&W) and A19
N). The islands and markings will be extended so that they operate
as subsidiary deflection islands to deter drivers in the left turn lanes
from excessive speeds and wilful use of incorrect lanes.

e Additional lead in lanes across the circulatory markings to ensure
that traffic is directed to the correct lane on the roundabout.

e A CCTV camera to monitor traffic flows in the area.

e Spiral lane markings on the circulatory carriageway reducing the
need for lane changes on the roundabout.



Page 169

Other sections of A1237 should be upgraded/ The A1237 needs to be dual

carriageway

17.

A number of comments were received suggesting that other sections of
the A1237 have higher priority or that the route should be dual
carriageway.

Officers Response

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

The council have undertaken a number of studies into the operation of
the A1237 Outer Ring Road which has identified the highest priority
junctions for improvement. The latest study was reported to the
Executive on 23 September 2008.

The Hopgrove roundabout before the recent upgrade had the highest
delays on the entire route. The current section with the longest delays is
in the A19 to A59 area due to longer distance traffic using the river and
railway crossings mixing with the local distribution traffic. Improvements
to this section are planned to be delivered through the proposed A19
project, which is the subject of this report, as part of the Access York
Phase 1 project and are also linked to the York Northwest development.
The next highest delays are experienced at the Haxby Road roundabout.
Outline design work is currently being undertaken to establish a more
detailed cost to upgrade the Haxby Road roundabout.

The studies have shown that for affordability, value for money and
environmental impact reasons improving the existing roundabouts is
considered to be the most appropriate way forward. It is anticipated that
dualling would reduce journey times on the ring road more than just
improvements at the roundabouts but the cost is substantially higher
principally because of the number of bridges required between the A59
and A19. The estimated cost for improvements to all roundabouts
between Wetherby Road and Strensall Road (inclusive) and dualling
between Wetherby Road and Clifton Moor is £62m (value for money
assessed as medium). The equivalent cost for improvements to
roundabouts only is £37m (value for money assessed as good). For
comparison the annual Integrated Transport budget for the City is
approximately £3m. A bid to the Regional Transport Board for funding for
the upgrade of all of the roundabouts was submitted in October 2008
however due to pressure on the budget from other regional schemes it
was classified as a reserve scheme to be progressed only if other
schemes across the region were delayed.

The proposed improvements at the A19 roundabout are not incompatible
with the introduction of a dual carriageway at a future date.

An upgrade scheme for the Outer Ring Road which included flyovers
has also been investigated by the council and would provide significant
journey time savings however the value for money would be low, the
cost prohibitive and the environmental impact considerable — particularly
at the A59 junction. A scheme which included flyovers to all roundabouts



23.

Page 170

between the A59 and A19 and improvements to all other roundabouts at
ground level and dual carriageway between Wetherby Road and Haxby
Road would cost £133m (value for money assessed as low). A full end to
end (Copmanthorpe to Hopgrove) dual carriageway with flyovers would
cost approximately £265m (value for money assessed as very poor). It is
considered unlikely that a bid for funding to progress a flyover based
scheme would be successful if it represents low or poor value for money
when assessed using DfT criteria.

The proposed A19 roundabout improvements are unlikely to be fully
compatible with any future grade separated solution as the layout would
need to substantially changed to accommodate slip roads and
structures.

Traffic signals would improve capacity/safety

24.

Many comments included the suggestion that traffic signals would
improve the capacity and safety of the junction. One resident requested
that traffic signals should not be provided.

Officers Response

25.

It is considered that the existing roundabout is not large enough to be
signalised and maintain capacity as there is insufficient circulatory
carriageway to provide stacking space for waiting traffic. Removal of the
roundabout to install conventional signals could lead to a significant
increase in accidents at this junction, particularly during quieter traffic
periods, as vehicles would be tempted to accelerate towards the signals
rather than have to stop. The capacity of the junction is likely to be
reduced by the provision of signals due to the need to introduce inter-
green periods between signal phases to ensure traffic has time to clear
the junction. A standard signal controlled junction would not be in
keeping with adjacent junctions on the A1237 and could lead to driver
uncertainty. The benefit of a signalised junction would be that traffic
flows could be controlled with priority allocated to specific approach arms
if required.

Proposal not considered to be value for money

26.

A number of residents raised concerns about the value for money of the
scheme. These comments were mainly suggesting that the scheme
would not improve journey times in the area and that either the funds
should be saved up to upgrade the A59 roundabout or to provide a dual
carriageway. Some correspondents suggested that the funds would be
better spent on alternative transport modes to reduce traffic levels.

Officers Response

27.

Owing to the extent of the existing queuing which the scheme reduces
significantly the benefits from the journey time savings is high. The cost
of the improvements is relatively low meaning that the scheme is



28.

Page 171

considered to represent very good value for money when considered in
accordance with the Department for Transport's methodology for
evaluating schemes.

The improvements to the Outer Ring Road are part of the City Council’s
Local Transport Plan strategy which includes the promotion of
sustainable transport modes. Increased capacity on the A1237 will
reduce traffic through adjacent residential areas and enable the transfer
of road space to bus and cycle routes.

Segreqated Left Turn Lane would improve capacity

29.

Many residents suggested that dedicated left turn lanes would enable
turning traffic to avoid the roundabout entirely increasing the capacity of
the junction. A number of the comments were accompanied by some
very interesting sketches.

Officers Response

30.

31.

32.

Dedicated left-turn slip roads could in principle improve the capacity of
the roundabout but are not considered practical for this junction for a
number of reasons. Conventional segregated slip roads and merge
lanes are not permissible on single carriageway roads under current
design standards. Left turn lanes with standard give way markings are
permitted but there would be concerns on high flow routes such as the
A1237/A19N movement and there would be limited advantage over the
proposed layout.

There would be significant safety concerns to overcome if left turn lanes
were proposed due high traffic speeds merging onto a single
carriageway route. These could be addressed by the provision of a
section of dual carriageway on the exit route but this would have to
extend a considerable distance beyond the merge position to enable
vehicles to join their destination route safely. Merge lanes raise particular
safety concerns for cyclists which would be more expensive to
overcome. Sufficient land within the public highway is not available to
provide left turn lanes separate to the roundabout on any of the
approaches.

Land outside the highway boundary is not available to the south of the
A1237 due to the proximity of existing properties and a left turn lane from
the A19 South would have to cross the Park & Ride entrance.

Pedestrian/cycling issues

33.

A variety of pedestrian and cycling comments were received including
suggestions that the route on the south side of the A1237 over the river
should be improved and that the crossing points should be wide enough
to accommodate tandems. Comments about the subway were also
received ranging from requests to deal with the flooding to the
suggestion that it should be converted for motorists to use. Other



Page 172

comments relating to the possible provision of a signalised
pedestrian/cyclist crossing of the P&R access were also received.
Cyclists also identified that the outline proposal did not provide an at
grade option when travelling north on the A19 cycle route and turning
east along the A1237.

Officers Response

34.

35.

36.

Unfortunately the majority of the comments relate to items which are
outside the scope of this scheme. Providing a compliant cycle route over
the Ouse and Railway line is a desirable aspiration but is not affordable
within the budget for this scheme. However, it is proposed to extend the
widened segregated cycle/pedestrian route to the access to the riverside
path at the start of the bridge embankment. It is also proposed to fund
improvement works to the subway pumping station as part of the
scheme to ensure that it is more reliable. It does not appear that the
traffic or pedestrian/cycling numbers warrant the provision of a
signalised crossing to the Park & Ride Access and there are safety
concerns about placing a controlled crossing close to the roundabout.

The design has been reviewed to address concerns that the original
proposal did not provide an at grade crossing on the A1237 Westbound
approach. It is just possible to fit in an island if the cycle/pedestrian route
is adjusted to be on the east side of the subway. A narrow path is
considered to be acceptable at this location due to the low anticipated
usage.

The subway provides a safe crossing point for pedestrians and cyclists
travelling between Skelton and the City. Approximately 200 people use
the facility daily. Converting the route to provide a vehicular underpass
whilst maintaining the pedestrian/cycling route is not practical.

Concerns about congestion on the A19 Northbound out of City/Exiting Manor

Lane will be worse

37.

A number of residents raised the issue of congestion on the A19 out of
the city. These included suggestions that the traffic island at Manor Lane
should be removed, the lane designation should be remarked and the
approach to the roundabout should be widened to three lanes. Other
residents were concerned that the exit from Manor Lane would be more
difficult.

Officers Response

38.

The outline scheme did not include any works on the A19 northbound
approach because the transport modelling indicates that once the A59
and A19 roundabouts were upgraded outbound queuing would reduce
substantially. The lanes are currently marked to even out the approach
turning movements between the two lanes as much as possible. The
turning counts suggest that at peak times the split between the left turn
and straight ahead + right turn movements is closer to an even split than



39.

40.

Page 173

a left turn + straight ahead and right turn arrangement. The provision of
an additional lane at the roundabout is not considered practical due to
the proximity of the Park & Ride entrance arm on the west side and the
subway on the east side.

The traffic island on the A19 southern approach is provided to enable
pedestrians/cyclists to safely cross and to protect the right turn lane into
Manor Lane. Widening the road to accommodate two northbound lanes
at this location could make the crossing less safe and would involve
considerable diversion of services in the existing verges. In particular
there area a number of BT chambers and fibre optic cables which would
be prohibitively expensive to move.

It is not considered that the scheme will make the exit from Manor Lane
more difficult as the layout of this arm of the roundabout is unaffected. It
is anticipated that the increased capacity of the A19 roundabout when
the A59 is also upgraded will shorten the queues on the A19 at this
location. The provision of a widened approach to the junction into Manor
Lane from the A19 is not considered justified as the speeds are relatively
low off the roundabout and the visibility for vehicles exiting the junction
may be hindered.

Concerns about affect on landscaped embankment

41.

A number of residents have raised concerns about the removal of part of
the environmental bund and associated vegetation on the A1237
westbound approach to the roundabout. The principle items raised relate
to the concern that there will be increased noise and lighting
disturbance. One resident was concerned that the land drainage in the
area would be affected. In addition there is concern that the scheme will
disturb the existing wildlife in the area.

Officers Response

42.

43.

To enable the carriageway to be widened to accommodate the new
lanes within the highway boundary a section of the landscaping and
embankment will need to be removed. The existing lighting at this
location will be moved southwards and extended eastwards to cover the
full length of the widened carriageway. Lights will be fully dark sky
compliant and directed and baffled where necessary to avoid light
pollution of adjacent properties.

Noise calculations indicate that the changes in noise levels due to the
layout changes can be considered as minor. Changes to noise levels
due to increases in speed and flow close to the roundabout increase the
impact to moderate. The changes are within the level which is
considered, by Planning Guidance, to be the minimum perceptible under
normal conditions. The increase in noise levels in the adjacent properties
will be reduced by the presence of the existing noise barrier. This fence
will be extended where necessary to cover the full length of the widened
carriageway. To ensure that an accurate baseline understanding of the



44,

Page 174

noise levels is available surveys are being undertaken in properties
adjacent to the ring road prior to the removal of any vegetation. The
removal of the existing rumble strips on the East approach to the
roundabout is being considered which may also will reduce the noise
levels at the adjacent properties.

The countryside officer has investigated the landscaped areas and
considers that there is nothing of specific wildlife interest that would be
affected by the proposals. The grass verges affected are re-sown
species poor grasslands and the screening plantation is relatively new,
though very well established, planting. This latter is of the most interest,
primarily for birds but has a very limited ground flora as one would
expect in a densely shaded area that has been established with
herbicide treatment. With the opening up of this planting, the
management needs of the whole of this section will be considered
including thinning and coppicing. Also, the opportunity will be taken to
begin to establish a more interesting ground flora and an appropriate
woodland wildflower mix will be undersown to diversify the remaining
areas. The removal of the trees and bushes must be timed to avoid the
bird nesting season.

Concerns about closure of westbound Lay-by

45.

A number of residents, the local councillors and the police have raised
concerns about the proposed removal of the westbound lay-by on the
A1237. This is considered to be a well used facility which needs to be re-
provided.

Officers Response

46.

Closure of the lay-by is essential to enable the safe operation of the
merge lanes proposed on the exit to the roundabout. The original
proposal was for the displaced vehicles to make use of the Park & Ride
site however concerns were raised that the facility would not be available
outside the Park & Ride operating hours. To take account of the
concerns raised it is now proposed to provide a dedicated parking area
in the Park & Ride extension car park. The existing height barrier will
remain and a dedicated section of the car park will be gated/bollarded
off. Access to the remainder of the car park for Park & Ride users would
be opened when the extension car park was in operation. Subject to
consultation with the Police Architectural Liaison Officer a path will be
provided to connect the car park with the footway running along the
south side of the A1237 so that access can be gained to the Ings. A
minimum of 10 car park spaces will be provided.

Concerns about traffic speeds on roundabout

47.

A number of users have raised the issue of traffic speeds on the
roundabout making it more difficult to exit from the approaches and
increasing the severity of any conflicts which occur.



Page 175

Officers Response

48.

The roundabout amendments have been designed in accordance with
current design standards to encourage appropriate low speeds. It is
anticipated that the provision of the additional traffic islands on the
A1237 E & W and A19 N arms will deter drivers from excessive speeds
on the approaches.

Concerns about queue lengths since previous upgrade

49.

A number of comments were received with the view that queuing had not
improved since the last changes to the roundabout in 2001.

Officers Response

50.

51.

The changes in 2001 doubled the diameter of roundabout and provided
an additional access to the Park & Ride site. Traffic levels have
increased substantially since then leading to some of the queuing which
is currently experienced. From the traffic counters on the A1237 typical
morning levels have increased by approximately 10% and evening levels
by 40% at this location. It is estimated that the number of vehicles
passing through the junction each day has increased from 43,000 to
over 50,000 since 2001. Traffic levels at this key junction are projected
to continue to rise.

One of the main reasons for the length of the queues at the roundabout
is the lack of a free exit westbound at peak times due to capacity
constraints at the A59 junction. This constraint will be reduced when the
AS59 roundabout is upgraded as part of the Access York Phase 1 project.

Concerns over access to Ings Cottages/House

52.

The residents of the properties at Ings House/Cottages have expressed
concern about the safety accessing their property. In particular despite
the hatched markings on the A19 and ghost island provided for traffic
turning into Ings House there are often overtaking vehicles approaching
this location.

Officers Response

53.

It is proposed to provide a traffic island at this location with pedestrian
crossing facilities. This will ensure that the traffic from the north is
constrained to a single lane and allow safer access/exit to Ings House. It
will also provide an additional crossing point away from the roundabout
for pedestrians/cyclists who want to use the subway. The island will be
positioned to accommodate manoeuvres by large farm machinery.

Concerns about access/ exit to Rawcliffe Bar P&R

54.

A number of comments were made about the access to the Park & Ride
site and whether it could be made access only with the exit from the A19
signalised junction only.



Page 176

Officers Response

55. Any changes to the access/exit to the Park & Ride site would affect the
operation of the service as car traffic would interfere with the bus
operation. The road markings on the roundabout will direct traffic to the
Park & Ride site more clearly. The main access and exit to the Park &
Ride site will remain from the roundabout. Restricted access and exit is
available from the signalised junction on the A19.

Supportive of scheme

56. Supportive comments were received from 23 users of the roundabout.



New traffic island to \
improve traffic control at

ide road junction.

Street lighting system extended \
to illuminate traffic merge nwo‘

Roundabout exit widened to
2 lanes to improve capacity.

<

improve traffic control
at side road junction.

| Right tum facility to
reduce vel nflicts
and improve link flow.

IMPROVED PEDESTRIAN CROSSING OF A19 AT RIVERSIDE FARM
Scale 1:200

Proposed CCTV camera

Y location. Exact location

+

to improve capacity.
AR / \
jan/cycle route.
facility maintained.

mmmmmm

Exitin Existing Vegetation Existing
New exit Central New approach 9 W&mms& hk z%..o
lane.  Hatching lane. Removed. zwﬂ.ﬂ__ﬂ_r
L&V_R | [
Realigned pedestrian/cycle _— VEJ
route. Crossing facility SECTION A-A
Scale 1:100

Page 177

maintained. \ <

Roundabout approach Sl ®
widened to 3 lanes to (e R

improve capacity.

,
,

to 2 lanes to improve ,
. capacity. \
\ ON I
-Access route to riverside /
path for altemative
parking users. \
OOOOOOO

Roundabout exit widened

regated route
link to

Existing layby retained,:
available 24 hours a day

Street lighting system
extended to illuminate
traffic merge area.

2




Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 179 Agenda ltem 9

Decision Session — Executive Member for City 2nd February 2010
Strategy

Report of the Director of City Strategy

ORBITAL CYCLE ROUTE SCHEME — PROPOSALS FOR THE
REMAINING THREE SECTIONS

Summary

1. As part of York’s Cycling City strategy an ‘orbital’ cycle route is being
developed to provide improved links to many destinations including schools,
leisure facilities, employment sites, shops and healthcare sites. This report
advises the Executive Member about initial proposals for the three sections
of the route, which are listed as follows:

Section 1: Clifton Green to Crichton Avenue
Section 2: Hob Moor to Water End
Section 3: James Street to Heslington Road

The report describes the proposed route alignments included in the
successful Cycling City bid in 2008, and highlights the key points along
each section. The report recommends the best option to take forward on
each section for further detailed design and public consultation.

Recommendations

2. It is recommended that the Executive Member -
a. Note the proposals for each section;

b. Provide in-principle approval for sections 1 and 3 and authorise Officers
to undertake further detailed design and public consultation on the
schemes shown in Annexes B and E.

c. Approves a review of a possible alternative route for section 2 to the
west through West York and compares this with the current proposed
route through Acomb. A further report to be brought back to the
Decision Session for route approval.

Reason: The proposals will provide improved facilities for cyclists,
completing an orbital route that cyclists will be able to use in accessing a



Page 180

variety of destinations while avoiding busy radial routes where possible. The
proposed measures would also make a significant contribution towards the
objectives of the Council in its Cycling City strategy.

Background

3.

Encouraging more people to cycle has been a long-standing priority for the
Council, and this work was given a huge boost by our successful bid to
become a ‘Cycling City. One of the key initiatives has been the
development of an orbital cycle route to improve cycle access to many
employment sites, schools, leisure facilities, healthcare and retail sites. The
aim is to connect as many of these destinations as possible, using a
combination of; off-road paths, signed routes via quiet less-trafficked
streets, some on-road cycle lanes where other alternatives have been
investigated but not considered feasible. Where the route crosses many of
the main radial routes into the city, improved crossing facilities will also be
provided. A plan showing the overall alignment of the orbital route and other
significant cycle facilities located nearby is shown in Annex A.

The route generally lies between the busy inner and outer ring roads, and
avoids travelling along busy radial routes: both of which were highlighted in
city-wide consultation as being a barrier to cycling. The orbital route is
located in a position to provide good links to a wide range of destinations
including: large employment sites (Nestle, York Hospital, Clifton Moor, Foss
Islands Retail Park, University of York, Hospital Fields Road and the former
Terry’s site); education sites (15 primary schools, four secondary schools
and two universities); retail centres such as Clifton Moor Foss Islands and
Acomb and several leisure facilities and recreation areas.

The route could never pass directly into all areas of the city, but aims to
serve as the main route of longer trips for as many attractors and
destinations as possible. The majority of users will not use the whole route
but will find it a useful means to reach many of their destinations by hopping
on and off the orbital route as it suits them. Once complete, the orbital route
will have a strong influence on the future development of the wider cycle
route network. This would include better links to outlaying residential areas,
and alternatives to the busy radial routes into the city centre.

Some sections of the route have been in place for a long time already, such
as the University to Hob Moor route, which crosses the Millennium Bridge to
the south of the city centre, and the Foss Islands Path between Nestle and
James Street to the north of the city centre. More recent additions are the
improved facilities along Water End that provided a link across the Ouse
river and railway line, and the facilities currently under construction along
Crichton Avenue. A further three sections are proposed for potential
construction during 2010/11, which will effectively complete the Orbital
Route and a key capital project within the Cycling City York programme.

Officers have examined a variety of possible solutions for the three route
sections. From these feasibility investigations outline proposals have been
developed and initial consultation with relevant Councillors, the Police, and



Page 181

Cycling England has taken place. The outcome of this work is described
below, issues arising are discussed, and where appropriate alternative
proposals are suggested.

Section 1: Clifton Green to Crichton Avenue

Preliminary Proposals

8.

The preliminary scheme proposals are shown on the plan in Annex B. A
general overview is given below, followed by a more detailed description of
the main scheme.

General Overview

9.

10.

11.

At the Water Lane end of the scheme, there is little scope to make
significant changes due to narrow road and footway widths. The main
problem for cyclists here, is that the queues of vehicles extend back from
the busy Clifton Green signals to Kingsway North and beyond, hindering
progress to Clifton Green and right turns into Kingsway North, leading some
cyclists to use the footway. Consideration has therefore been given to
reallocating road space to create a feeder lane to the existing advanced
stop line at Clifton Green, and crossing cyclists between Water Lane and
Kingsway North via either providing junction signalisation or a Toucan
crossing facility.

In Kingsway North, the main problem for cyclists is that parked vehicles
effectively narrow the road to a single traffic lane. Cyclists are often then
intimidated by following traffic eager to overtake; even though traffic calming
is in place. Road widening to allow vehicles to safely pass cyclists would be
prohibitively expensive, and therefore on-road facilities have been
discounted in favour of constructing an off-road path along the edge of the
wide central verge.

At the roundabout junction with Crichton Avenue, the main problems for
cyclists are the perceived dangers and the time it takes to ride around the
large carriageway area. In practice many cyclists avoid this by riding across
the footway near the shops. It is proposed to formalise this by-pass route by
creating a link path to connect the proposed off road path along Kingsway
North with Crichton Avenue.

Detailed Description

12.

The detailed description listing below follows the format of the proposals as
listed in Annex A.

Crichton Avenue: convert the existing pelican crossing to a Toucan
crossing to allow pedestrian and cyclist usage. A toucan can easily be
provided and would provide cyclists with improved access to the recently
improved facilities on Crichton Avenue. In particular, northbound cyclists
would use the crossing to join a shared area with a ramp to a carriageway
level cycle lane.



Page 182

Kingsway roundabout: provide an off-road cycle track near the shops.
This will accommodate two-way cycling to allow cyclists to travel between
Crichton Avenue and Kingsway North directly, rather than having to ride
around the sizable roundabout.

Kingsway North carriageway: introduce parking restrictions at the
northern end of the central grassed area to create a safe crossing point for
cyclists. The extent of parking restrictions required will be established
during detailed design. However, it is likely to be for only a short length
sufficient to provide a safe access to the proposed off-road cycle path along
the central reserve.

Kingsway North central island: 600m of 3m wide off-road cycle track
along the eastern side of the central grassed area, with improved street
lighting on the nearby footway. The appearance of Kingsway North’s
grassed area has been improved in recent years by the introduction of
timber fencing and trees along both sides. The trees are consistently offset
5.4m from the fencing located near the carriageway edges. It is therefore
proposed to build a 3m wide, two-way path cycle path within this gap. This
path would then have the advantage of being within the fencing, which
would keep it clear of vehicles, but not placed centrally in the grassed area
to avoid conflict between cyclists and other users such as dog walkers and
those playing football. Occasional gaps in the fencing would allow
frontagers to utilise the cycle path. Enhanced street lighting would allow
cyclists to be seen by nearby residents and road users, and illuminate their
path ahead, thereby improving general safety.

Kingsway North: on-road cycle lanes: At the southern end of the central
area the cycle path is proposed to return to the eastern carriageway by
means of a raised table. This gives the opportunity for cyclists to turn into
the school entrance if needed, and also to establish themselves on the
carriageway before reaching the relatively busy road of Water Lane.

Water Lane/Kingsway North junction: given the higher volume of traffic
on Water Lane, it is proposed to provide cyclists with a signalised crossing
facility. This could comprise a full junction signalisation, or a stand alone
Toucan crossing on Water Lane. Further feasibility work is required to
establish the best option.

Water Lane: cycle lane markings on the southeast side of the carriageway
to help cyclists access the advanced stop line at the Clifton Green traffic
signals. The length of Water Lane between Kingsway North and Clifton
Green signals is typically 6.3m wide. This is insufficient to introduce the
standard 1.5m wide cycle lanes; even on just one side of the road.
However, under the recently approved York Cycling Guidance, the use of
1m wide feeder lanes and narrow traffic lanes to deliver cyclists to an
advanced stop line is considered acceptable on roads where traffic
regularly queues. Therefore this approach will be adopted on Water Lane.



Page 183

Clifton Green junction: the signal arrangement has recently been modified
to assist cyclists, and no additional changes are considered necessary as
part of this scheme.

Consultation Feedback

13.

14.

15.
16.

Ward Councillors:

Councillors Douglas, King and Scott - no comments received at the time of
finalising this report

Other Member Views:

Councillor D’Agorne - the feeder lane would be a big improvement for
cyclists and reduce the occurrence of footway cycling.

Councillor Stephen Galloway - no comments at this stage

Councillors Gillies and Potter — no comments received at the time of
finalising this report

Police - support the scheme in principle

Cycling England - are concerned about cyclists riding on the Kingsway
North carriageway and therefore particularly welcomed the proposed
provision of an off-road path.

Section 2: Hob Moor to Water End

Preliminary Proposals

17.

The preliminary scheme proposals are shown on the plan in Annex C which
reflects the strategy. A general overview is given below, followed by a more
detailed description of the main scheme elements.

General Overview

18.

Unlike most other sections of the proposed orbital route, there are several
ways which Hob Moor and Water End could be linked together. Officers
examined a number of these options before selecting the proposed route,
which seeks to maximise the use of quiet streets, with improved road
crossings, while being located in a position to provide good links to a wide
range of city-wide destinations. However, at the local level, there is need for
future cycle route improvements to provide better links between the orbital
route and other parts of the outlying cycle network and residential areas,
such as Chapelfields, Westfield, Foxwood and Dringhouses and it is
proposed that these alternatives are considered before a final decision on
the routes is made.

Detailed Description




19.

Page 184

The detailed description listing below follows the format of the proposals as
listed in Annex C.

Water End/ Boroughbridge Road junction: it is proposed to make
changes to the traffic lane designations on the Water Lane approach to the
junction, to remove conflicts between straight-ahead cyclists and left turning
vehicles. To help guide cyclists and vehicles travelling through the junction
from Lindsay Avenue to Water End, additional road markings are also
proposed to minimise potential conflicts.

More significant enhancements to allow less confident cyclists to cross the
junction via Toucan crossings are also feasible and will require new
refuges, localised road widening, cable ducting and new signal
infrastructure. This will be looked at as part of the plans to provide bus
priority measures along Boroughbridge Road in support of the proposed
new Park & Ride site to the north, as will the addition of cycle lanes on
Boroughbridge Road between Carr Lane and Water End.

Lindsay Avenue: Lindsay Avenue is an existing quiet road that only
requires route signing and further examination of the existing traffic calming
to see if it can be improved for the benefit of cyclists.

Sowerby Road: the existing footway link between Sowerby Road and
Manor Drive South can be improved for use by cyclists by enhanced street
lighting, dropped kerbs and localised widening if a segregated path is
preferred.

Manor Drive South: Manor Drive South is an existing quiet road and
therefore only requires route signing. However, localised improvements to
the point closure between Manor Drive North and Manor Drive South are
also proposed to improve cycle access to these streets.

York Road/Acomb Road: Acomb Road is a busy road but riding the short
distance between Manor Drive South and Hobgate is considered worthwhile
to access the quiet street of Hobgate. In order to help cyclists make the
right turns from Acomb Road into Manor Drive South and Hobgate, it is
proposed to create right turn havens in the centre of the carriageway,
protected by refuges both in front and behind the waiting cyclist. It is also
proposed to provide cycle lanes on Acomb Road subject to further
feasibility work associated with on-street parking issues.

Hobgate, and the southern section of Moorgate that will form part of the
route are both quiet roads and therefore require no changes.

Hamilton Drive: the section of Hamilton Drive West which would form part
of the orbital route has a 20mph speed limit supported by traffic calming.
There is good visibility at the junction to help cyclists turn in/out in safety.
No significant improvements are considered necessary but the provision of
on-road cycle lanes will be investigated.



Page 185

Green Lane Roundabout: provide a two-way linking path for cyclists to
bypass the roundabout between Hamilton Drive West and Green Lane. This
will offer a journey time benefit to cyclists and also avoid the need for right-
turning cyclists to pass Tudor Road and Green Lane entries to the
roundabout. Users of the path will need to be returned to Hamilton Drive
West via dropped kerbs or minor modifications to the existing traffic calming
measures.

Green Lane: Green Lane is an existing quiet road and therefore requires
no changes other than route signing.

Consultation Feedback

20.

21.

Ward Councillors:

Clir. A. Waller — expressed concerns about: conflicts between left turning
vehicles and straight-ahead cyclists from Water End; crossing Acomb Road
without a Toucan; turning at the busy Moorgate/Hamilton Drive West
junction, and using an off-road path near the roundabout unless the detailed
design addresses conflict with vehicles parking near the shops and
returning cyclists to the carriageway on Hamilton Drive West in safety. Clir
Waller suggested that using the existing crossing on Acomb Road would be
beneficial but accepted that then using Green Lane and Green Lane
roundabout thereafter could be challenging but perhaps worthwhile on-
balance.

Councillors Alexander and Crisp — no comments received at the time of
finalising this report

Clir. D. Bowgett — no objections and pleased that no changes are proposed
on Hob Moor

Clir. Stephen Galloway - generally agreed with Councillor Waller and also
provided a number of suggestions. In particular, the Councillor would like
the orbital route to serve the residential areas of Chapelfields, Westfield,
Foxwood and Dringhouses; so as to get the best value from the remaining
orbital route budget. At the detail level, ClIr Galloway made suggestions for
improvement regarding: the Manor Drive North/South point closure, the
Acomb Road pedestrian crossing and the Sowerby Road to Hebden Rise
linking path. He also expressed concerns about the existing facilities for
cyclists in Front Street pedestrian area and in Cross Street, while also
mentioning that off-road, segregated facilities in parts of Askham Lane
appear feasible.

Clir. Susan Galloway — happy to support the views of Councillor Waller and
Councillor Stephen Galloway.

Other Member Views:



22.
23.

Page 186

Councillors D’Agorne, Gillies and Potter — no comments received at the
time of finalising this report

Police - support the scheme in principle
Cycling England:

have suggested that the route through Acomb should be reconsidered with
changes in the Acomb Road area. They would prefer the route from Manor
Drive South to turn west and use the existing Zebra crossing (upgraded to a
Toucan) then south into Severus Street and then east using the snicket to
reach Lynden Way and then Hobgate.

would like to see the scheme include a spur along Boroughbridge Road
between Carr Lane and Water End junction, to help existing cyclists who
use Carr Lane to access the wider orbital route.

Cycling England have expressed a preference for the route through Acomb
with changes.

Issues Arising / Possible Scheme Amendments

24.

The issues arising from consultation fall into three general categories as
discussed below:

Detail design comments/suggestions

25.

Some useful suggestions were received and will be explored as part of the
detailed design process.

Localised changes to the route alignment

26.

27.

28.

29.

The main issue concerns Acomb Road, where it has been suggested that
the route should take advantage of the existing zebra crossing and route
cyclists along Severus Street and use the snicket to access Lynden Way, to
rejoin the proposed route in Hobgate.

The existing highway extents of Acomb Road near Manor Drive South are
sufficient to provide an off-road link from Manor Drive South to the nearby
Zebra crossing. The crossing could be converted to a Toucan to provide a
safe place for cyclists to cross Acomb Road, and deliver them into Severus
Street via footway widening to create an off-road linking path.

Severus Street is a quiet road. In the evenings on-street parking is
commonplace, but the lack of through traffic due to a point closure offsets
this, making Severus Street easy route and safe to cycle along. Therefore,
no new infrastructure except for revised signing is required.

A weakness in this alternative is the use of the snicket between Lynden
Way and Severus Street, which is narrow and has anti-motorcycle barriers.



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Page 187

This would require cyclists to dismount, and would not be suitable for use
by tricycles or bicycles with trailers without modification. However, the route
could be attractive for the majority of cyclists for the journey time saving
compared to the current proposal and the safety benefit of using the zebra
crossing on Acomb Road.

On-balance, it is considered beneficial to make this local amendment to the
proposed orbital route but continue to develop improvements for cyclists on
Acomb Road between Manor Drive South and Hobgate as proposed. This
will support cyclists who do not find it possible or attractive to use the
Lynden Way snicket alternative. The amended route is shown in Annex D.

Changes to Boroughbridge Road between Water Lane and Carr Lane for
the benefit of cyclists will be included in the proposed Park & Ride bus
priority improvements works that could take place in the Winter of 2010. For
the interim period, the provision of on-road cycle lanes will be explored.

Moving the route slightly west to join Green Lane would be useful in serving
the residential area around Milner Street. However riding along Milner
Street itself can be difficult due to parked vehicles on both sides, and
impasses between opposing vehicles on the resultant narrow carriageway.
The alternative proposal to use Serverus Street as part of the orbital route
would provide Milner Street residents with better access to the orbital route.

An alternative route to Green Lane from Acomb Road, other than via Milner
Street, would be to improve Front Street's pedestrian area for cyclists.
However, this would require further extensive and lengthy consultation work
due to the variety of user groups, and it would also go against the
established trend that all vehicles (including cyclists) are banned from the
pedestrianised area for most of the day and regulated to just one-way travel
at other times.

Green Lane itself is also difficult to improve for cycling. The road is too
narrow for on-road facilities, and creating an off-road path would be
problematic due to mature trees and ground level difficulties leading to
drainage issues. In addition, cyclists would have to cross the Green Lane
roundabout in order to reach Hob Moor.

Wider changes to the route alignment

35.

This section of the proposed orbital route needs to connect to the existing
facilities at Water End and Hob Moor. A route further west through outlying
residential areas will increase the section’s length and reduce its appeal for
those travelling its full extent. For the residents of the outlying areas, the
links between each residential area would be improved. However, because
these residential areas are all located at a similar distance from the city
centre, most residents would actually have less facilities on a direct line
between their homes and the Water End/Hob Moor connections than would
be the case if the orbital route passed through Acomb.



36.

37.

Page 188

The function of a city-wide orbital route could be compromised by weighting
its benefits too heavily towards one particular generator of trips. Rather, it
would be better to locate it in a neutral position where it can collect both
local and city-wide cyclists equitably, and where all cyclists gain the
greatest benefit.

It is recognised that the provision of better connections to the proposed
orbital route from the outlying residential areas should be reviewed before a
decision is made for section 2. In relation to this section of the orbital route,
further feasibility work would be worthwhile to establish the best way to
improve connections between Chapelfields, Westfield, Foxwood,
Woodthorpe and Dringhouses areas to the proposed orbital route.

Section 3: James Street to Heslington Road

Preliminary Proposals

38.

The preliminary scheme proposals are shown on the plan in Annex E. A
general overview is given below, followed by a more detailed description of
the main scheme elements.

General Overview

39.

James Street is a busy road carrying high levels of HGV and bus traffic. On
street parking also takes place that creates poor conditions for cycling on-
road. The recently completed James Street extension includes extensive
off-road cycle provision. It is therefore proposed to continue this provision
along the old section of James Street by widening the eastern footway to
create an on off-road shared use path. At the James Street/Lawrence Street
junction it is proposed to create a new cycle crossing facility within the traffic
signal arrangement to provide a safe link with Regent Street. Both Regent
Street and Wellington Street are quiet roads suitable for cycling along
without any alterations. On Heslington Road, it is proposed to extend the
existing on-road cycle lanes and traffic calming, and provide a refuge to
help cyclists to turn right into Wellington Street. The route also uses a
former section of Heslington Road, which is now a lightly used service road
within the grounds of The Retreat, to provide a link with the University
campus cycle facilities.

Detailed Description

40.

The detailed description listing below follows the format of the proposals
listed in Annex E.

James Street: footway widening to extend the existing two-way shared use
path from Hazel Court to Lawrence Street. The carriageway along the older
section of James Street is typically 7.3m in width, which is not sufficient for
on-road cycle lanes to be considered, and road widening would be
prohibitively expensive. It is therefore proposed to widen the eastern



Page 189

footway to create a 3m wide off-road shared-use path. This would function
as a two-way facility and provide physical separation from HGVs.

James Street/Lawrence Street junction: provision of a Toucan with a
central refuge to help pedestrians and cyclists to cross to/from Regent
Street under signal control. Early indications suggest that a signals solution
to James Street/Lawrence Street junction is feasible and can be
accommodated without a significant loss in current capacity. However,
more detailed design and modelling is required to arrive at an optimum
layout.

As the introduction of the cycle crossing facility will require significant
alterations to the junction layout, it will be necessary to upgrade all the
signals equipment as part of the scheme.

Regent Street: Regent Street and the short section of Wellington Street
covered by the orbital route are existing quiet roads and therefore no
physical changes are required.

Heslington Road: extend the existing cycle lanes and provide a refuge to
help cyclists turn right into Wellington Street Heslington Road has existing,
on-road cycle lanes, supported by traffic calming and a 20mph speed limit
in places. It is proposed to lengthen this by approx 150m towards
Wellington Street to cover the full extents of the orbital route. The use of
refuges or build-outs may (subject to detailed design) also be used to assist
cyclist in turning.

The Retreat: this final section of the proposed route utilises the former
alignment of Heslington Road, which is now used as an access road within
The Retreat’s grounds. The access road has an established use by cyclists
but it is proposed to improve street lighting and direction signing to make
the route more attractive to new users.

Consultation Feedback

41.

Ward Councillors:

Councillors Looker, Watson and Jamieson-Ball — no comments received at
the time of finalising this report

Clir. A. D'Agorne — commented: keeping the area between Regent Street
and the advanced stop line on Lawrence Street clear of waiting vehicles
would be of benefit for cyclists who wish to remain on the road. Given the
strategic importance of a route in this location, the proposed off-road path in
James Street should have priority for cyclists over side road traffic.
Councillor D’Agorne expressed concerns about: the limited width for a
refuge on this FTR route and the sensitivity local residents feel about the
potential loss/change to parking.



42.

43.
44.

Page 190

Clir. D. Taylor — Agreed with the comments of Councillor D’Agorne, adding
that the Lawrence Street footway across the termination of Regent Street is
busy with pedestrians and that careful design will be needed to provide
sufficient visibility between pedestrians and cyclists.

Other Councillors

Councillor Gillies, Potter and Galloway — no comments received at the time
of finalising this report

The Police - support the scheme in principle

Cycling England - no comments at this stage

Cycling Evaluation Tool

45.

The Council’s Cycling Evaluation Tool is a means of scoring cycling
schemes on a range of criteria so that schemes may be ranked and
compared against each other. The proposed sections for the orbital route
have been evaluated using this tool, and achieve scores of:

Proposed Orbital Schemes Total
points
Section 1 — Clifton Green to Crichton Avenue +22
Section 2 — Hob Moor to Water End +22
Section 3 — James Street to Heslington Road +20

This compares favourably with other, similar projects, as shown in the table below:

Other Cycling Schemes Total
points
Jockey Lane — (early feasibility stage) +14
Beckfield Lane (Stage 1) — completed scheme +16
Heslington Lane — (early feasibility stage) +17
Sim Baulk Lane — (early feasibility stage) +18
Crichton Avenue — (scheme under construction) +21
Clifton Green — (completed scheme) +24
Wigginton Road — (proposals approved in principle) +25
Moor Lane Bridge — (completed scheme) +26

Options on the Way Forward

46.

The options for the Executive Member to consider are:

Option One — progress the three remaining scheme proposals for the orbital
cycle route through more feasibility work, detailed design and public
consultation. In addition, initiate feasibility work for the Hob Moor to Water




Page 191

End section to develop improved connections between the outlying
residential areas and the orbital route.

Option Two — develop alternate route proposals for the Hob Moor to Water
End section that are located within the outlying residential areas and
progress them through more feasibility work, detailed design and public
consultation. A plan showing the general area of consideration for an
alternate route is attached in Annex F.

Option Three — abandon plans to provide any further improvements
associated with one, two or all three sections of the orbital cycle route.

Analysis of Options

47.

48.

49.

Option One would allow progress to be made towards completion of the
orbital route as set out in the council’s cycling city strategy. The schemes
will provide improved cycle access to many employment sites, schools,
leisure facilities, healthcare and retail sites, leading to an increased number
of cycle ftrips. Initial consultation has indicated general support for the
proposals but detailed comments have led to some possible localised
changes to the Hob Moor to Water End section. In addition, the consultation
has highlighted the need for better connections between outlying areas and
this section of the orbital route, hence the proposal to carry out further
feasibility work.

Option Two would respond to the consultation feedback that the outlying
residential areas of Chapelfields, Westfield, Foxwood and Dringhouses are
not directly served by the orbital route by proposing a relocation of the
orbital route into those areas.

Option Three would not allow the orbital route to be completed, and would
compromise the function of previously constructed sections of the orbital
cycle route. The opportunity to take advantage of the Cycling City funding to
deliver a key part of the Cycling City York programme would also be lost.

Corporate Priorities

50.

The scheme would contribute to the following Corporate Priorities:

Sustainable City — the scheme should encourage more residents to join
radial routes into the city and in addition, would provide access to many
employment sites, schools, leisure facilities, healthcare and retail sites. The
creation of this route is thought to have the potential to significantly increase
cycling levels across the city, in preference to using motorised forms of
transport.

Safer City — the scheme would make many of the crossings with radial
routes easier and safer for cyclists to achieve.



51.

Page 192

Healthy City — the scheme should encourage more cycling, which would
have a beneficial effect upon peoples’ health.

The scheme would also contribute to several of the aims of the Local
Transport Plan, namely:

Encourage essential journeys to be undertaken by more sustainable modes
where possible;

Reduce the level of actual and perceived safety problems.

Implications

Financial/Programme

52.

53.

54.

59.

Funding for the Orbital Route is on a matched funding basis, with half
coming from the ongoing Local Transport Plan capital programme and half
from Cycling City award, which must be spent by April 2011. Therefore, it is
important that these three schemes are moved forward quickly to provide
sufficient time to construct them all by this deadline.

The 2009/10 City Strategy capital programme initially included an allocation
of £30k to fund the feasibility work for these three sections of the orbital
cycle route. This budget is sufficient to cover further feasibility and design
work up to the end of 2009/10.

An allocation of funding for design, consultation, approvals work and
construction will need to considered as part of the 2010/11 Capital
Programme process.

Given that all three schemes are at an early stage, only provisional,
budgetary cost estimates can be made at present. However, scheme costs
are currently expected to be in the order of:

Section 1: Clifton Green to Crichton Avenue £370k
Section 2: Hob Moor to Water End (including further feasibility work) £190k
Section 3: James Street to Heslington Road £600k

Alternate Route Proposals — Hob Moor to Water End

56.

o7.

Any alternate route proposal in the Hob Moor to Water End section will
need an allocation of funding for feasibility works to be considered as part of
the 2010/11 Capital Programme process.

Subject to feasibility enquiries, delivery of an alternate route maybe
challenging in time for the opening of the remainder of the orbital route in
February 2011.



Page 193

Human Resources (HR)

58. There are no human resources implications.

Equalities

59.  There are no equalities implications.

Legal

60. The Council has powers to implement the proposals under the provisions of

the Highways Act 1980 and the Road Traffic Act 1988.

Crime and Disorder

61.

There are no crime and disorder issues.

Information Technology (IT)

62.

There are no information technology implications.

Property

63.

There are no property implications.

Risk Management

64.

65.

Physical - there is always a potential for new safety issues to arise
whenever an existing highway layout is altered, but risks are minimised
through careful design and the road safety audit checking process.

Organisation/Reputation - there is a risk of criticism from the public in
implementing a scheme to which some people may have objections, but
there could also be criticism from potential supporters of the scheme if it is
not implemented. Good quality consultation should ensure that well
informed decisions are made about the scheme and reduce the risk of
public criticism.

Risk Category Impact Likelihood Score

Physical Medium Unlikely 6

Organisation/Reputation Medium Unlikely 6

66.

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk scores have all been
assessed at lower than 16. This means that at this point, the risks need only
to be monitored, as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of
the objectives of this report.




Page 194

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Malcolm McAulay, Damon Copperthwaite
Engineer Transport & Safety Assistant Director of City Development &
Transport
Report Approved / Date | 22/01/10

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

There are no special implications

All
Wards Affected: Holgate, Westfield, Guildhall, Fishergate, Heslington, Clifton

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

“York Cycling City” — report to the Meeting of Executive Members for City Strategy
and Advisory Panel on 8 September 2008

“Cycling Infrastructure within York — Standards, Evaluation Tool, and Cost/Benefit
Matrix” - report to the Executive Member for City Strategy Decision Session on 20
October 2009.

Annexes:

Annex A — Cycle Network Plan

Annex B — Section 1: Clifton Green to Crichton Avenue
Annex C — Section 2: Hob Moor to Water End

Annex D — Section 2: Hob Moor to Water End- Alternative A
Annex E — Section 3: James Street to Heslington Road

Annex F — Wider Changes to the Orbital Cycle Route



Key to Proposed Cycle Schemes

A - Acomb Improvements

B - Kingsway North

C - Wigginton Road / Hospital

D - Gillygate

E - Museum Street / Lendal

F - Railway Station Access

G - Blossom Street / Railway Station
Access

H - Hub Station

I - Fishergate Gyratory

J - Routes Through Pedestrianised
Zone

K - James Street / Hull Road

Legend

Sampleted Cyole Sity
Bl o

Cycle City Scheme for
=== 50102011

S Cibital Cycle Route
R @ \rernatve Orbitsl Roots
Cycle Route

Retail Site

School [prnmary and
secondary)

Further Educahon Sie
Universty of York Campus

Employment Site

Coity Canbie Aras
(employment and retail)

Exesting Bike and Ride Site
Polental Bike and Ride Site

Cycle Network Plan

%YORK Not to Scale . "k

Produced by Tom Hormer

This map is based upon the
Ordnance Survey mappng
with the permission of the:
Controler of Her Majeany's
Stabonery Office, @ Crown
Copyright Unautharised
repraducton infringes Crown
copyight and may lead ta
prosecution or civl proceedings,
Gy of York Counall, Licence
Mo, 1000 20818, Dec. 2008

»

4

L

V Xauuy

G6 | abed



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197

Annex B
| :
3 Route Section Number - see Notes
Existing off-road cycle track
\
17 Existing on-road facilities

Existing quiet road route

I
:

Proposed on-road facilities

Proposed off-road cycle track path (adopted highway)

Preliminary Proposals:

1. Crichton Avenue: convert existing pelican crossing to a
Toucan crossing to allow pedestrian and cyclist usage.

Roundabout: provide an off-road cycle track near shops.

Kingsway North
@ 2
N

3. Kingsway North: introduce parking restrictions to help create a
safe crossing point for cyclists.

4, Kingsway North central island : 600m of 3m wide off-road cycle
track along the east side of the central area, with improved
street lighting on the nearby footway.

5. Kingsway North: on-road cycle lanes

6. Water Lane/Kingsway North Junction: traffic signals to support
turning cyclists and keep the junction clear of queuing traffic.
These would be linked to Water End signals to manage
queuing between them. Some minor localised road widening
may be needed.

7. Water Lane: cycle lane markings on the southeast side of the
carriageway to help cyclists access the advanced stop line at

the Clifton Green traffic signals.
8. Clifton Green juntion: tie in to existing facilities and signal
arrangement.
~ / gﬁ
AvA Yok Corssttomcy YORK Orbital Cycle Route: Clifton Green to Crichton Avenue
- - Consultants of first chotce councit

BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER | Drawn | Checked Date Scale Drawing Number
OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. CROWN UNAUTHORISED

COPYRIGHT.
PROCEEDNGS, Gty of vark Coumch, Liwnca e 100008, o orert 1 PH MM | 08/01/2010 1: 2500 @ A3 DEC/09010525




Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C

Route Section Number - see Notes

Existing off-road cycle track

Existing on-road facilities

Existing quiet road route

Proposed on-road facilities
Proposed off-road cycle track path

Preliminary Proposals:

1. Water End: provide on-road cycle lanes.

2. Water End/Boroughbridge Road junction: minor improvements to
make it easier and safer to cycle between Water End and Lindsey

Ave.

3. Lindsay Avenue: route signing, and possibly modifications to the
existing traffic calming for the benefit of cyclists

4. Sowerby Road: provide a linking path for use by cyclists and
pedestrians.

5. Manor Drive South: route signing only.

6. York Road/Acomb Road: on-road facilities, such as cycle lanes and
refuge islands and/or possibly a Toucan crossing to help cyclists tum
right from the main road.

7. Hobgate: route signing only.

8. Hamilton Drive: on-road cycle lanes.

9. Green Lane Roundabout: provide a 2-way linking path for cyclists
to bypass the roundabout.

10. Green Lane: route signing only.

11. Hob Moor: tie into existing off-road facilities.

CITY OoF

YORK

COUNCIL

Av A York Consultancy
I

B conrnisonss of irst chotos

Orbital Cycle Route: Water End to Hob Moor

'ORDNANGCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER
'OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OFFICE. CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED
REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL
PROCEEDINGS, Cty of York Coundll, Licence No. 100020818

Date Scale Drawing Number

PH

08/01/2010 1: 5000 @ A3 DEC/0901526




Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex D

Tk

Existing off-road cycle track

Existing on-road facilities

Existing quiet road route

Proposed on-road facilities
Proposed off-road cycle track path

Route Section Number - see Notes

Preliminary Proposals:

1. Water End: provide on-road cycle lanes.

2. Water End/Boroughbridge Road junction: minor improvements to
make it easier and safer to cycle between Water End and Lindsey

Ave.

3. Lindsay Avenue: route signing, and possibly modifications to the
existing traffic calming for the benefit of cyclists

4. Sowerby Road: provide a linking path for use by cyclists and
pedestrians.

5. Manor Drive South: route signing only.

6. York Road/Acomb Road: convert the existing zebra crossing to a
Toucan and provide off road paths to link to Manor Drive South and
Severus Street.

7. Severus Street: route signing only.

8. Snicket: improve street lighting and barriers.

9. Lynden Way, Hobgate and Moorgate: route signing only

10. Hamilton Drive West: on-road cycle lanes

11. Green Lane Roundabout: provide a 2-way linking path for cyclists

to bypass the roundabout.

12. Green Lane: route signing only.

13. Hob Moor: tie into existing off-road facilities.

A'A York Consultancy

CITY OF

YORK

Orbital Cycle Route: Water End to Hob Moor

I B ot ot choion cowen | Alternative A
ﬁmm%%%wm“mw“m Drawn | Checked Date Scale Drawing Number
PROGEEDINGS, Gl of Yark Canch Lisncn N 1000 010, 10 o TONOREVE | PH MM 08/01/2010 1: 5000 @ A3 DEC/0901526




Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 203

Annex E

N —azel Court
K T [_J
(jﬂo -

L

=

Preliminary Proposals:

1. James Street: footway widening extend the existing two-way,
shared use path from Hazel Court to Lawrence Street.

q
2. James Street/Lawrence Street Junction: provision of a

Toucan with a central refuge to help pedestrians and cyclists
cross to/from Regent Street under signal control.

3. Regent Street: route signing only.

4. Heslington Road: extend the existing cycle lanes and provide
a refuge to help cyclists turn right into Wellington Street.

~| 1 = ——— 5. The Retreat: street lighting and direction signing to make this

existing pedestrian/cycle route more attractive (subject to
agreement with land owners).

6. University Campus: tie into existing cycle paths and signing

3 Route Section Number - see Notes

Existing off-road cycle track
Existing on-road facilities
-_— e = Existing quiet road route

Proposed on-road facilities
Proposed off-road cycle track path

=T
L =g

The Retreat

University of 3
6 York
|
AvA o | Orbital Cycle Route: James Street to Heslington
York Consultancy YORK R d

- - Consultants of first choice counciL oa
BASED UPON THE ORDNANGE SURVEY MAPPING WITH ¥ Drawn | Checked Date Scale Drawing Number
B o ! OTORCSOTON oG | PH | MM | 08/01/2010 NTS DEC/09010527




Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



Clifton Bridge

Page 205:

B
X
N\

: L N '*\‘\\
CYCLE FACILITY TYPE /\1\ s )
RECENTLYCONSTRUCTED | 7\“75/ [, : Ry Rt
= /. W\ o

\\ \
QOuse Acres \\ \

s N\

& A \\ X

School|

——

0 7 gy S
\\é (oo b i\"ﬁ*"*w{”’k V,
Ol w0 R S
;-;\ \g‘g o Mf%‘-i T, & QW
P 2 ® |LH g B
KX'\ \‘\:‘L‘\* o Z" QL 7‘ 7\7
g \ be= ——:):x Sl S/
Bridgs \\\\\ \\’ﬂ'ilﬁ@jn Sreasvy /8 “«m;‘»“-"uw A
NN g o 11 1J8 /9 ™
o oo R

V= RACE

AREA FOR CONEIDERATION

3 F Schools

—

= —=—/ A W
o j !\@T\MA@@T\‘\

SR Gy

"\BEV\TA\N\E\\\ Lamwﬂ’liﬂ%: \r J\‘ / ( 1 (( |
=, J /[ _*—\\I@@?& //

il

3

Severus' 3/
Hills (5

D
B i
~~— RNAFTON e —

Le N

,
[ 5
ig
\
\
e
—
§
P

Pl A v B
e / /é&}’y \%\,f \%\ \

fmFJH SWICK AVER:
e %
U
(

[,

| [Chapeffields| , /|

=

L
= JY ~iEF
:7/ = O

= ] r?\‘\\

= /
== —FJ| :
i 4// T L ] s

lyrranians GROME e 3 > ) S

= [ Pav Comese o] [ d T

// /5/ i ATKSIRE g7 Mem lof ;/ 5 /

e e S ; o

z el 8 [ : f

A ;4\!@\ 5 — Recn Gd

\\@&% 498 ‘ RYLATT F| ‘<\_/:_:7, rEat \
e = L)
A 3 /[ ]S'( \\ = AN Pw
: sl AR e
VAs AN \. NN

DI BN /
1/ 7 Y‘%{ /g,‘vx\ S/
V/ e ® \\\
/ / = . AR, \,

L )

//

/// achelor Hill ﬁ; SO 7\
224 70
,'\\J/ ('@G,) \/\’/, §
~ TR
| &~
/ h 4
P \

[TOWTON AVE|

| GRAncE ANE _ [
Reen Gd S EI { (Y=

! nﬂ:f—\ N\

g8 WOORS -
School //‘f \%;\ N [ MOCRGARTH 4
2 $2
v 'm\
% 77 =177
~ / LA
ik <

?
[ e U KR e
VAN

~ oy il

s/

]
)/

|
/
/]

/
o e

——Fulrry

\ Micklegate Stray i //
Y prige |
/
Hob Moor /&
{ ; [
L Ty i
T gy \ /&
= — &
/ = /5 B
/i “\ / & § e
oy R — N B
) | // .

]
~— — SLLSS0% npag 5.

N S
W ”\Q Z,
FRIVUBE LARE— E N\
[z # 3

5 Qe
3!
2
2.

%7 \ # j ‘7 CPL\TH\‘B\L /gr, X FOWAR
| Hills /j \;\ ggw_w\ g \FL 11 i

ree_ [
(14
e
/ (oo WALKER pATdt
Great (\z‘N\"‘!’ 2 ‘g’ <]
e b & B

o
\

fSiEges \ Bl
2\ Piiopsmg,
.

Acomb Moor

=

A'A crvor | Wider changes fo Orbital Cycle
York Consultancy YORK A f id #i
B B i e counel rea for consideration

[REV] AMENDMENTS ATE DEC/ SCALE | Not to Scale

BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING WITH THE
PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY
REPRODUCTION

OFFICE © o ED

INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION
OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

City of York Council, Licence No. 1000 20818

J Xouuy

MM DATE | 20/01/10

Checked

BP

g

3

g

<
§§§
3

H
[ Drawn




Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION SESSION — EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CITY STRATEGY

Annex of Additional Comments received from Members and residents etc since the agenda was published

TUESDAY 2 FEBRUARY 2010

AGENDA | REPORT RECEIVED FROM | COMMENTS
ITEM
4 PROW - Application for Crombie Wilkinson, | See attached PDF files of comments

Definitive Map Modification
Order, Ings Bridge to
Storwood, Wheldrake
(Page 29)

Solicitors

/02 abed

Xauuy epuaby



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 209

Decision Session — Executive Member for City Strategy — 3 February 2010

Submission by Crombie Wilkinson, Solicitors regarding Agenda item 4
PROW - Application for Definitive Map Modification Order, Ings Bridge to
Storwood, Wheldrake

Alleged Public Footpath At Wheldrake

Maps and Routes

At a preliminary point, we refer to the fact that there are 5 maps germane to the
purported right of way and the bundle of these appears at Annex 1.

Plan 1. This was prepared in 1976 and is with an application for a Modification Order
made by the Wheldrake Parish Council in that year. The particularly important points
are, first, the route of claim is along the old course of the River Derwent. Secondly, at
its western extreme it stops east of the River Derwent and does not cross the river.
Thirdly, it stops at the position where the old drawbridge was and not where the new
Bailey bridge is. The 1988 application, to be determined, was not accompanied by a
map but referred to the 1976 map.

Plan 2. This is a plan sent by North Yorkshire County Council to Yorkshire Wildlife
Trust. It neither reflects the 1976 Plan, nor the one that accompanies this Report.

Plan 3. Yorkshire Wildlife Trust requested a copy of the 1976 plan of North
Yorkshire County Council and they were sent Plan 3. The salient differences with
Plan 1 are, first, the route is now on the flood bank and not on the old course of the
Derwent and, secondly, on the western boundary the route is extended south. Thirdly,
the route crosses the river on the new Bailey bridge. Fourthly, the map could not have
been produced in 1976 because it is produced on the metric edition, which was first
published in 1978.

Plan 4. This accompanied the City of York Council Report Findings in January 2002.
Plan S. This is the plan now referred to in the current Report.

In the Annex, the annotations give more detail of the changes in the Plan but it is safe
to say that the plan has been a movable feast for 34 years and certainly, the production

of Plan 3 by North Yorkshire County Council to Yorkshire Wildlife Trust was
misleading.



Page 210

Why, at law, there is no public right of way.

1. The author of the City of York Council Report dated 22™ January, 2010, at
paragraph 38 concludes that the relevant 20 year “user as of right” period is 1946-
1966, which right, according to the Plan, that accompanies the Report, crosses the
Bailey bridge owned by Yorkshire Wildlife Trust. This was built in late 1966 and
prior thereto there was no bridge on this site (Annex 2). It is impossible, therefore, to
have a user period 1946-1966 in respect of a structure that was not built until 1966.
The claim must fail.

2. A PROW can realistically only be established when it links from highway to
highway, cul-de-sac excepted. There is no highway link to the west of the Bailey
bridge. Public Footpath No.2 ends approximately 50 m to the north at the western end
of where the old drawbridge was. The “road” highway ceases approx 25 metres from
the western end of the Bailey bridge. (Annex 2) There is also no highway link at the
eastern end (see para. 6) so the route supported by the Report has neither highway
access at the west or the east: it is “suspended” as though in mid air.

3. The Bailey bridge was built in 1966 over tidal waters, which then vested in the
Crown. The Crown granted a licence for this purpose (Annex 3 — a new licence was
required when YWT bought the land from Forbes-Adam). With the creation of the
Barmby Barrage, the bed of the River Derwent was transferred to predecessors of the
Environment Agency. No public rights were granted in respect of this licence, either
whilst in the hands of the Crown or the Environment Agency. (It is impossible to
acquire prescriptive highway rights against Crown land.) The bridge was built by the
then landowner, the Forbes-Adam family of Escrick Park. (The author is wrong to
suggest this land was owned by Dunnington-Jefferson and this basic inaccuracy is an
indicator of the cursory manner in which the author has handled the evidence).

4. For the sake of completeness, we refer to the old drawbridge. (Annex 4) The old
drawbridge was on a site some 50 metres away to the north and forms no part of the
claimed route. The bridge was part of the Navigation. The River Derwent Navigation
Act 1702 was revoked by Order of Parliament in 1935. The bridge fell into disrepair
in 1960. It was demolished in 1966. The ownership of the bridge was transferred in
1935, without any public rights, to the River Ouse (Yorkshire) Catchment Board,
whose successors demolished it without complaint or contention that public rights
were being compromised. There is no evidence at all that there was any public right
over the bridge, that there was any complaint at the closing of the bridge nor that there
was any complaint that access was denied over the bridge. We say all of this by way
of background information but it is clear from the claimed route that no claim is made
over the site of the old drawbridge.

6. The claimed PROW does not reach the highway at Storwood because, at the
eastern extremity of the claimed right, Point B on the Council’s Plan, it is necessary
then to cross, first, British Waterway Board property and, also, farmland, being part of
New Farm. Historically, this was occupied by Jim Cooper (since deceased) who was
interviewed in 2003 on the point. He confirmed that a “Private” sign was put up in
1949 to protect against a claim of any public right of way. The current occupant of
New Farm, Peter Rhodes, has confirmed that when he took over the farm in
November 1981, the sign was still in situ. The towpath and the canal have both to be



Page 211

crossed before the public highway is reached. It is only after the farmland, the
towpath and the canal are crossed that the public highway is reached. The canal and
its towpath have their origins in the nineteenth century. The bridge was built as an
accommodation bridge. Ownership was with the railway companies, then British
Transport Commission before passing to British Waterways Board. The use of such
towpaths and the canal is permissive and not “as of right”.

The comment in respect of a lack of access to the public highway on the eastern
terminus remains good and relevant notwithstanding the fact that the County
boundary is crossed just beyond point B.

7. At paragraph 35, the author has untruthfully reported the landowner’s statement
concerning the bridge. The landowner truthfully stated there was no bridge at the
location of the Bailey bridge prior to its construction and had the author properly
examined the mapping she would have readily realised the two bridges were separate
and distinct and in different locations. Two aerial photos (Annex 5) from 1962 and
1968 show the respective positions and distances of the two bridges.

8. Ipso facto, in that there is a ¢.50m gap between the site of the old bridge and the
Bailey bridge (a distance approximately from the Council Chamber to the far side of
the River Ouse), and no evidence has been adduced at all of any use of such land, the
claim must again fail.



Page 212

Why the Claim must fail consequent on Procedural Flaws

1. The Application of the Wheldrake Parish Council in 1988 was made pursuant to
Section 53(3)©(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The application is
regulated by Schedule 14, paragraph 1, which notably, expressly requires an
application to:

“Be accompanied by a map drawn to the prescribed scale and showing the way or
ways to which the application relates”.

Paragraph 2 also requires an applicant to serve a notice stating that the Application
has been served on every owner and occupier of any land. The Application was not
accompanied by a plan and the Application expressly states that the “map was
provided in 1976”. 1In these circumstances, North Yorkshire County Council, the
Surveying Authority then dealing with the application, ought to have identified the
relevant map with the Parish Council and then required the Parish Council to verify
that such was the map referred to in its application by signing a copy accordingly.
They did not do that. There is no evidence that this map or any map was ever shown
to any of the witnesses. (Annex 6 R (ex p. Winchester) v Hampshire C.C.)

2. Under paragraph 2, all owners of the land should have been served. The claimed
route is along the Old course of the River Derwent, according to the 1988 application,
as shown on the 1976 map to which it refers (Annex 1). The old course is in the
ownership of the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust to the south and five owners to the north,
including Mr and Mrs Carstairs and, also, the Carstairs Countryside Trust. (Annex 7)
Mr and Mrs Carstairs purchased the land prior to 1988 to protect it for nature
conservation and were not served with the Application. Carstairs Countryside Trust
bought their land from the Crown in 2008. Preliminary enquiries on purchase did not
reveal the existence of a notice having been served and, indeed, the Application
admits that they were not served. These irregularities render the application void.

3. North Yorkshire County Council and the Successor Authority have relied on
various plans, all of which differ (Annex 1). There is no evidence that the Surveying
Authority went through any proper administrative process in changing the claimed
route. Counsel’s Opinion states as follows:

“The route can be changed from the claimed route if there is clear and cogent
evidence to justify a modified route. However, in such circumstances, clear
reasoning would have to be provided by the Surveying Authority. Such reasoning
ought to be contained in a Report to the Council’s relevant Committee, which,
together with the minute of the Committee’s decision, should be on the Council’s file
and available for public inspection. It is not, of course, open to a Council Officer to
merely change the route himself or herself to fit the Council’s objectives or indeed for
any other purpose.”

Such procedures have not been met with.
4. In paragraphs 4 and 33 of the Report, the author implies that a failure to provide

Statutory Declarations gives rise to the prima facie case of the establishment of the
public footpath. On the basis that the Council accepts that the signs erected



Page 213

prohibiting access bring to an end the 20 year period, that which was done post
acquisition by Yorkshire Wildlife Trust in 1971 is irrelevant. Such comments,
therefore, which seek to portray the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust in a poor light either
indicate that the author does not understand the law or are made mal fides.

5. The Yorkshire Wildlife Trust requested the Council to release details of the
Witness Statements. It was refused until post publication of the Report, ostensibly on
the basis that there was a breach of the Data Protection Acts. It is submitted that there
is no breach at all of such Acts and, further, the landowners are prejudiced by late
release of such information. The Councils have had in excess of 22 years to consider
the witness position; the landowner has had merely 4 clear working days to do
likewise.

6. The Council has sought to introduce witness evidence in respect of a completely
different footpath. There are 10 Witness Statements, which are purporting to support
a claim, which runs from Storwood in a north westerly direction, to a destination well
away from the landowner’s land, and nothing at all to do with the alleged right over
the YWT's property. There is one statement that does not support any right of way
but recreational use of the Ings and there is one statement that deals with matters east
of Point B. Because the land owner has been compromised by late production of
Witness Statements, it has not been possible to identify the names of all 12 witnesses
concerned but we can refer to 8 from Annex 5 being: James Beal, Edith Harrison,
Arthur Henry Harvey, Fredrick Houseman, Lance Moore, D. Popplewell, Earnest
Smith and Stephen Swales. The impression the Council gives in its Report is that
there are more witnesses than there actually are supporting a claim for a right of way
across the YWTs land to Storwood. It is misleading and mal fides.

Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 in particular relate to substantial administrative failings on the
part of the author and are judicially reviewable.



Page 214

Witness Statements

1. Not a single witness has said they used the route during the relevant user period
that is now suggested because the bridge in question was not there.

2. We have referred above to the grossly inadequate time given for the consideration
of statements and, therefore, the following comments are brief.

3. The 1988 application did not have a map attached to it and there is no evidence as
to which map is inadequately referred to. The fatal flaws of the application are
referred to above. There is a reference to a 1976 plan. The only 1976 plan drawn onto
a copy of the definitive footpath provided by the NYCC is materially different to the
plan annexed to the Report. The route it supports follows the old course of the river
and not the flood bank. It does not include the Bailey bridge and stops short of the
river. Nor does it go further than few hundred yards to the east. Indeed, it is for a
markedly different route to any map, which NYCC or CYC has produced since. Thus,
the statement at paragraph 9 is untruthful as is the statement at para 24 that the
application is supported by 45 witnesses. The application is supported by 8 witnesses
whose evidence is analysed below. An ungainly collection of other witness
statements, taken from many years before, are included but they were certainly not
given in support of the 1988 application.

4. There is no evidence that any witness ever saw any plan. Notwithstanding the
provision for a signature of a person taking the statement, no signature is witnessed. 5
forms seem to be substantially completed in the same hand and are remarkably similar
in contents.

5. The majority of all witnesses gave their statements in the mid 1970s. Those
statements cannot be taken into account because they relate to an entirely different
route to that which is now being considered. There are no witnesses at all who are
supporting the route as claimed.

6. There has been a complete and utter failure by the author to give proper analysis to
the evidence. In particular, and in accordance with the statutory requirements, the
author has:

a. Failed to analyse which precise route a witness is claiming.

b. Failed to give consideration to the period of time during which the witness has
used the route.

c. Failed to give consideration to the frequency the witness has used a route.

d. Failed to give consideration in respect of whether or not a witness was a tenant.
(The land in question was strip farmed by many tenants who had rights to cross the

Ings.)
e. Failed to test the veracity of any of the witnesses’ evidence.

There are 8 statements, which purport to support the 1988 Application:
A. Myers

a. No proper identification of the route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. No confirmation of type of path.



Page 215

c. No statement over what period he has used the path.

d. No reference to prohibition notice on bridge. Therefore, use must have
stopped by 1966.

f. Has not confirmed path is well defined.

B. Young
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Says use is between 1940 and 1967 but veracity in question as has not
mentioned prohibition sign.

C. Carr
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Says footpath
c. Has failed to confirm path is well defined
d. Contradicts herself; regards the path as public but acknowledges the prohibition
notice on the bridge.
e. Fails to state period of use

D. Harrison
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Says footpath
c. Has failed to confirm path is well defined
d. Contradicts herself; regards the path as public but acknowledges the prohibition
notice on the bridge.
e. Fails to state period of use

E. Harrison
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Says footpath
c. Has failed to confirm path is well defined
d. Contradicts herself; regards the path as public but acknowledges the prohibition
notice on the bridge.
e. Fails to state period of use

F. Carr
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Says footpath
c. Has failed to confirm path is well defined
d. Contradicts himself, regards the path as public but acknowledges the
prohibition notice on the bridge.
e. Fails to state period of use

G. Beilby
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Use is only occasional.
c. Veracity is compromised because failed to acknowledge the prohibition notice.

H. Beilby
a. No proper identification of route. No evidence any plan seen.
b. Use has been only occasional.



Page 216

¢. Veracity is compromised because failed to acknowledge the prohibition notice.

Of all of these 8 witnesses, 5 are hopeless. Of the remaining 3, there are serious
concerns with their evidence and, in particular, they cannot be relied upon because
they have failed to acknowledge the prohibition notice.

For the applicants to succeed, they have to show that the path has been used by the
public during the relevant user period. Quite simply, 8 witnesses, who largely say
their use is occasional, are not enough. The evidence is wholly insufficient to
establish a public right in any event. The author’s case is grim and hopeless.

7. In contrast, the Statutory Declaration evidence of David Peter Hargreaves, Craig
Scott Ralston and Timothy Eric Dickson is consistent and to the effect that during
their periods of regular contact with the land trespass use of same has been minimal.

8. Whilst witnesses purportedly claim a right of way across the river, no single
witness acknowledges the closure of the old drawbridge in 1960 and its demolition in
1966.

9.Photographic evidence shows the alleged way simply was not used (Annex 5).

10. The veracity of a number of witnesses is called into question. For instance the
evidence of William Hudson Hairsine claims to have used the path, as of right yet was
a tenant farmer. He was part of the Ings Management Committee, which in 1950.
erected a fence on the flood bank, thus, compromising access and egress along same.
(Annex 4 and 8) It is believed he was also a member of the Wheldrake Parish
Council, which submitted the application, in 1976. Thus, here is a witness, who could
not have exercised any right as of user, was party to the erection of a fence to
compromise the use of such alleged rights and who then was party to an application to
record such alleged rights. And there lies the nonsense of this application.



Page 217

Why Does It Matter?

1. It is submitted that, prima facie, if a public right of way exists, notwithstanding the
quality of the land over which it passes, it is right and proper to make an order.

2. It is, however, vitally important to note that if any error is made the consequences
on an extremely sensitive site are absolutely diabolical. Annex 9 illustrates the Ings.

3. Wheldrake Ings is one of the top 5 bird inland wetlands in the country. It is part of
the SSS1 and is internationally recognised as an SPA. Recent reports have listed the
site as nationally/internationally important for, amongst others: Whooper Swan,
Wigeon (9" highest in the UK), Gadwell, Teal (9" in UK), Pintail, Shoveler, Black-
necked Grebe, Golden Plover, Lapwing, Moorhen (5™ in UK), Ruff (3 in UK), Snipe
(2™ in UK) and Whimbrel (7" in UK). It has to be born in mind that even extremely
modest human presence in the locality can have catastrophic results. These are
compounded if dogs are allowed to roam. The application route cuts through the
deepest sanctuary part of the Nature Reserve, across the full view from the bird
watching hides.

4. The Yorkshire Wildlife Trust is committed to affording public access and, via a
path around the southern area of the site, both members of YWT and non-members
can walk through a large area of the site and, moreover, enjoy the hides, specifically
provided, for bird watching as illustrated in Annex 9. The site is an exemplar of its
kind but the value of the site is only as it is because of proper management. It is
York’s prime environmental asset of renowned international standing.

Conclusions

Taking all matters into account, there is wholly insufficient evidence to establish on a
balance of probabilities that a PROW between points A and B is reasonably alleged to
subsist.

The above comments have been considered by leading counsel who endorses the
views expressed.

Crombie Wilkinson
York
January, 2010



Page 218

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 219

ANNEX L

[lounod Ajunod anysxio A YuoN Ag pepinoid sem (depy aaniuyaq jo Ado)) dew aseq sy |
Isea ay) 03 dew ayj jo abpa sy} Je spus Aem pawielo ay |
abpug-melp sBuj sso1o Jou S0P |
Juamia(g au} JO 9SIN02 PO BU} JO PaQ 8Y} SMO||0) 8IN0I 8Y |
Usiew ayj o} inds sy :SION

"WIeD S |Iounoy ysied ayeipiaypi paluedwosoe yoiym ‘dew ayy si siy

(8861 Pue 9261) DOAN 0} WIE|D |I2UNOD YSiied ayeipldayM 9.6 Atenuep g | ueld

ueoyiubis Alswalxe aie Aoy Ing ‘espgns wess Jybiw suonelleA sy "wie|) 886| 8y} Ul pabpoj [I9Unod) ystied aXeIPIBUAN

Jeym jnoge Ajsjos si Wie|o sy} passquiawial 8g 0} 13| "Wied siy} Jo swiay) ay} Buunp peonpoid sdew jo sbuel sy} ate mojaq sebew ay |

sdepy syl




Page 220

"LAMA
01 1 Juas oym DOAN Sem ) - DDAN Aqg psonpoud Ajqeqoud sem dew siyy Jeyy $3saBBNs siY]  "UMOYS JOU S| POOMIOIS WOJ) 8IN0J UISISES 8y |

"abplig 8y} 03 Jusmia( PIO SU} JO 9SIN0D 8y} BUole WIeD a3 IPIBUAA BU} 10B)481 JOU SB0P 1| “Mued pooj} ay; Buoje mou si umoys Aem sy} 810N

‘OdM O suoISSILgNS 0} Uole|al Ul 8leinooeul

st} "DOAN Ag Ajgeqoud psonpoud susodwos e aq 0} sieadde 3| “Aem pswied ay} jo 81nol ay) Buleq se | A 843 01 Juas sem dew siy |

OOJAN 9.6} Atenuer ¢z Z ueid




Page 221

'8/61 810189 paonpolid uasqg aney jou
pINoo pue ouaw si | "abpuq Asjieg ay) ss0I0 0} YINOS Jayuny spusixa ybnoyy ‘g/61 Alenuer gz uo paonpoud dew sisodwos ayj o] Jejilis si i

abpug Asjieg s, 1 MA 9U} SSOIOB pUB 0} YINOS papualxs ussq sey .
Jusmia( 8y} Jo 8sIn0d plo 8y} Buoje sYUBQPOO)} BY} USBMISY PUB| BY} Ul JOU PUB JUBGPOO|} a4} uo pade|d s .
poomuols o} sBul ay} ssoioe Aem ayj |je spusixg .

1Ry Ut dew wiep 9/ DA 3U) Wod) SIYIP )i

'9/61 Ul Juss usaq aAey 0} ples Sem 0} paliajal dew ayj “wiepo
8861 @y} paluedwoooe aAey pinoys yoiym ‘dew ay) Jo Ados e uoj 3senbal s, | pA 03 Aldas ui dew siy) psonpoud |19unos AJUno?D) alysHIoOA YLON

LMA 01 DDAN 8861 Jaquisldag G ¢ ueld

-



Page 222

abpug Asjeg syl (¢élesjoun — 1sno pue) 0] Aem ayj puaixa o) sieadde mou 00} }
"1Se8 8y} Ul Alepunog DAD 8y} 1B Spua Jl pue ysiep\ syl 0} Inds ou sI a1ay] “YUegpool) 8y} Jo yinos isnf a1nos sy} moys o} sieadde |

sBuipui{ jo poday ay} ui passasse a)nol ay) smoys dew siy |

sBuipuid jo poday DAD Z0 Atenuer 6z ¢ ueld

€ uejd

cona®



Page 223




Page 224

‘uosuedwoo

Joj mojaq utebe umoys st dew 9/ 8yl "gg ul Wie sy poddns o} dew sy} sem yoiym depy 9/ [euibLo ay) O} [IEJep PUEB JUSIXS Ul JUSISYIP
Alloym st )| 'pOOMIO}G 0} UOIOSS UISISEa OU pue ysJepy ay| 0} Inds ou s a1ay] "JOAL 8U} SSOID Jou $90p pue abpug-melp sBu| je sdojs wiep
[euiBuo ay) seasaym ‘abpug Asjieq ayj Jano pue o} spusixs J| "sBuj exelplaup Jo Aiepunog uielses sy je spus )| (D3) SMOpPESW 8y} SSOJ0e

Jou (DdM) Jusmuaq plo 8y} JO 8SIN0D 8y} UO Jou ‘ueqpool) sy Buoje Ajwuiy sinos ayy seoed 3} “dew sBuipul Jo podey auj 0) Jejllis sty

'PSSSSSE 111} SBM WIBID 83U} USUM | AMA 01 DAD Aq Juss dew ay) si siy |

LMA 03 DAD €002 Isnbny /z g ue|d



Page 225

-A- A AN WA -A‘- -'A"— ] ”’A

W R

WY Wives s T ‘“‘“‘“me
A ] 17\ Ik : § ‘§ %i ** ii!gzn{;u{,

gy s R WFE




Page 226

Highway ends here

Footpath 2 back
here




Page 227

’BSTATL COMﬁISSIONBRS on behalf of Her Magesty acting in
exercise of the powers of the Crown Estate Act 1961
(hereinafter called "the Commissioners") of the second part
and :TIE‘YORKSHIEE NATURALISTS TRUST LIMITED whose

registered office is ab ¢lifford Chambers 4 Clifford Street

in the City of York (hereinafter called "the TLicensee") of

he third part
WITNESSETH as follows :--

IN consideration of the annual sum hereinafter made

II,

payable and of the covenants by the Licensee and conditions
hereinafter contained the Commissioners HEREBY GIVE to the

Licensee LICENCE AND PERMISSION & during the continuance

of this Licence to mainbain over the foreshore and bed of
the River Derwent at Wheldrake Ings in the County of York
the span of a bailley bridge (hereinafter called '"the said
works") in the position shown by red colour on the plan
herebo annexed and from time to time to enter upon the said
foreshore and bed of the river and inspect repalr or renew
the said works PAYING THEREFOR during the continuance

of this Licence on the Sixth day of October in every year

to the Queen's Majesty and Her Successors the annual sum
of TEN POUNDS +the first payment thereof to be made on the

execution of these presents (the said sums to be paid to
the Commissioners at their Office for the time being)

TN consideration of the Licence hereby given the

Ticensee HEREBY COVENANTS with the Queen's Majesty and Her
Successors and as a separate covenant with the Comnissioners

ag follows :-
(1) To pay the said annual sum on the days and in manner

aforesaid

(2) To pay all present and future rates taxes charges
impositions assessments outgoings and duties (if any)
whatsoever payable in respect of the said works . e

(3) At all times during the continuance of this Licence




Page 228




Page 229

ANNEX

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH
16 October 1962

AUTHENTIFICATION

, E?@GLXSH KE?I’?AGE

NATIONAL
| %(B%U%EMTS
__ RECORD

| :”’ﬁafgféﬁﬂﬁ ng / X 3 ;‘3 ’ fﬁ‘if ’M’ 4“2}&3

Sapﬁ!iad for ref&renaa aﬁiy Ap;’f ta




Page 230

ANNEX

€961 4390100 9} HdVHOOLOHd 1vId3av







Page 232




ANNEX

20U jo sur uo
~ anoy uopesyddy

AemybiH o1jqnd jo pu3l

Page 233

dew aAjiUyag uo

~ebpug >>m§ H,w,mm-_u_o, umoys se yjedjoo z oN

AV NOILYOITddY 40 AVTHIAO HLIM
2961 ¥3F0LO0 91 HAVHOOLOHd TvINaY



" (Warden and Fellows of Winchester Co Page 234 v Hampshire County Cou... Page 1 of 2

PHE INCORPOR

Home | WLR Daily | ICREs | Publications | Mooting | Search | Prices | About ICLR

YWLR D Menu - Latest Cases | Subject Matter Search | Monthly Archive | Court Reference
Abbreviations | About WLR Daily

Daily

HIGHWAY — Right of way — Definitive map — Rights for mechanically propelied vehicles —
Local surveying authority determining to upgrade to byway open to all traffic — Application to
modify definitive map and statement — Whether failure to comply with statutory requirements
as to making of such applications rendering application invalid — Whether invalidity of such
application preventing operation of saving provision relating to extinguishment of existing
rights — Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, s 53(5), Sch 14, paras 1, 3 — Matural Envirenment
and Rural Communities Act 2006, s 67

R (Warden and Fellows of Winchester College and another) v Hampshire County Councii [2008]
EWCA Civ 431; [2008] WLR (D) 132

CA: Ward, Dyson and Thomas LJJ: 29 April 2008

The formal requirenients governing the making of an application to modify a definitive map and
statement under s 53(5) of, and para 3 of Sch 14 to, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1881, which were
contained in para 1 of Sch 14, had to be adhered to strictly. Where such an application was found to be
invalid, certain rights ostensibly extinguished under s 67(1) of the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities Act 2006 were not apt to be saved by virtue of s 67(3) of the 2006 Act since the latter
provision was predicated upon a valid application.

The Court of Appeal so held when allowing the appeals of the claimants, the Warden and Fellows of
Winchester College, and Humphrey Feeds Ltd, from a decision of George Bartlett QC, sitting as a
Deputy Judge of the High Court in the Queen’s Bench Division on 28 November 2007 [2007] EWHC
2786 (Admin), refusing their claim for judicial review of the refusal by the defendant, Hampshire County
Council, to reconsider decisions made on 22 March 2006, as surveying authority for Hampshire, to
make an order modifying the definitive map and statement by upgrading two rights of way to the status
of byways open to all traffic.

The decisions had followed upon separate applications by two members of the public: first, to upgrade
a bridleway; and, second, to upgrade a road used as a public path. The judge held, inter alia, that such
rights for mechanically propelled vehicles as existed over the two rights of way on 2 May 2006 were not
extinguished by s 67(1) of the 2006 Act when it came into force. He held that the rights had been saved
from s 67(1) extinguishment under s 67(3)(b) by virtue of the defendant’s decisions on 22 March 2006,
which he found to have been valid determinations of the various applications to modify the definitive
map and statement under s 53(5) of, and para 3 of Sch 14 to, the 1981 Act. In the case of the
bridleway, the judge further held that the applicable rights had been saved from extinguishment under s
67(3)(a) of the 2006 Act by virtue of a valid application under s 53(5) of, and para 1 of Sch 14 to, the
1981 Act. The grounds of appeal were that the applications should have been found to be invalid in
light of failures to comply with the formal requirements governing such applications, and the judge
should therefore have found that the relevant rights had not been saved from extinguishment.

S 53(5) of the 1981 Act provides: "Any person may apply to the authority for an order under subsection
(2) which makes such modifications as appear to the authority to be requisite in consequence of the
occurrence of one or more events falling within paragraph (b) or (c) of subsection (3); and the
provisions of Schedule 14 shall have effect as to the making and determination of applications under

this subsection.”

http://www.lawreports.co.uk/WLRD/2008/CACiv/aprl.5.htm 29/01/2010



' (Warden and Fellows of Winchester Co Page 235V Hampshire County Cou... Page 2 of 2

S 67 of the 2006 Act provides: “(1) An existing public right of way for mechanically propelled vehicles is
extinguished if it is over a way which, immediately before commencement——(a) was not shown in a
definitive map and statement, or (b) was shown in a definitive map and statement only as a footpath,
bridleway or restricted byway. But this is subject to subsections (2) to (8) ... (3) Subsection (1) does not
apply to an existing public right of way over a way if—(a) before the relevant date, an application was
made under section 53(5) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ... for an order making modifications
to the definitive map and statement so as to show the way as a byway open to all traffic, (b) before
commencement, the surveying authority has made a determination under paragraph 3 of Schedule 14
to the 1981 Act in respect of such an application ... (4) ‘The relevant date’ means—(a) in relation to
England, 20 January 2005 ... (6) For the purposes of subsection (3), an application under section 53(5)
of the 1981 Act is made when it is made in accordance with paragraph 1 of Schedule 14 to that Act.”

DYSON LJ said that the principal issue of law was: what was meant by “an application made in
accordance with paragraph 1 of Schedule 14 to the 1981 Act” within the meaning of s 67(6) of the 2006
Act, where the claimants contended that neither of the applications in issue was a qualifying
application? Construing the applicable provisions, for any of the three exceptions identified ins67(3) 1o
apply a's 53(5) application had to have been made in accordance with all the requiremerntsof para 1.of
Sch 14, viz it had to have been: made in the prescribed form; accompanied by a map drawn fo the
prescribed scale and showing the way(s) to which the application related; and accompanied by copies
of any documentary evidence (including statements of withesses)which the applicantwished to adduce
in support of the application. Those words were expressed in clear and ordinary language and were to
be given their plain and ordinary meaning, and an application which was not accompanied by a map
(para 1 (a)), or by copies of any documentary evidence (including statements of witnesses) which the
applicant wished to adduce in support of the application (para 1 ()), was not made in accordance with
para 1 of Sch 14 to the 1981 Act. On the facts, for the purposes of the saving provision within s 67(3) of
the 2006 Act, the applications were not made in accordance with para 1 of Sch 14 to the 1981 Act, so
that neither was a qualifying application. It followed that the relevant rights had not been saved from

extinguishment.

THOMAS and WARD LJJ agreed.

Appearances: George Laurence QC and Ross Crail (Knights, Tunbridge Wells) for the claimants;
Timothy Mould QC (Head of Legal Services, Hampshire County Council, Winchester) for the defendant;
John Litton (Solicitor, DEFRA) for the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, an
interested party.

Reported by: Matthew Brotherton, barrister

Subscribe now for full text reporis
Brought to you as part of The Daily Law Notes service by the reporters to The Incorporated

Council of Law Reporting for England and Wales, in association with JustCite who provide the
cross-reference links.

LS

g
&

§aw

L

http://www.lawreports.co.uk/WLRD/2008/CACiv/aprl.5.hun 29/01/2010



Page 236




Page 237




Page 238

Hide for vistors looking out across towards the claimed floodbank top way




Page 239

sanctuary for tens of thousands of bird — one of the top international wetlend sites
in the UK . Below: Alleged route shown by red arrow seen from a visiotrs’ hide




Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	
	3 Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Church Lane to Carr Lane, Wheldrake
	one

	4 Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Ings Bridge to Storwood, Wheldrake
	two

	5 Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Main Street to North Lane (Love Lane), Wheldrake
	three

	6 Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, from Main Street to Sparrow Halll Farm, Wheldrake
	four

	7 Public Rights of Way - Application for Definitive Map Modification Order, Alleged Public Footpath, Thorganby Lane to Lawn Closes (Public Footpath No.7), Wheldrake
	five

	8 A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements - Consultation Results and Detailed Design
	Annex 1 Consultation Leaflet
	Annex 2 Consultation Layout
	A19-A1237 Detailed Design Annex 3 Rev 1
	Annex 4 Proposed Layout Rev2

	9 Orbital Cycle Route Scheme - Proposals for the Remaining Three Sections
	DS Annex A
	DS Annex B
	DS Annex C
	DS Annex D
	DS Annex E
	DS Annex F

	Annex of Additional Comments Received since the agenda was published
	Submission - Crombie Wilkinson
	Crombie Wilkinson - Annex 1


